
 

 

NOTICE AND AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING 
 

Wednesday, April 14, 2021, 1:30 PM 
 *** BY TELECONFERENCE ONLY ***  

 

Consistent with the California Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 this meeting will be held by Zoom and teleconference. 
No physical location will be available for this meeting.   
 

PUBLIC ACCESS AND PUBLIC COMMENT INSTRUCTIONS 
 

To join the meeting click:  https://cccounty-us.zoom.us/j/95768795211 

 

Or call the number below. As a courtesy to the other participants, please mute your device when not speaking. 
USA 214-765-0478 
USA 888-278-0254 (US Toll Free) 
Conference code: 525510 
 

LAFCO meetings are audio recorded and posted online at http://contracostalafco.org/meetings-and-public-hearings/. 
Audio recordings are available the day following the LAFCO meeting. LAFCO meeting materials and staff reports are 
available online at http://contracostalafco.org/meetings-and-public-hearings/. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: The Commission will consider all verbal and written comments received.  Comments may be 
emailed to LouAnn.Texeira@lafco.cccounty.us or by U.S. mail to Contra Costa LAFCO at 40 Muir Road 1st Floor, 
Martinez, CA  94553. Please indicate the agenda item number, if any. If you want your comments read into the record, 
please indicate so in the subject line. For public hearings, the Chair will announce the opening and closing of the public 
hearing. The Chair will call for verbal public comments.  

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 

Disclosable public records for a regular meeting agenda distributed to a majority of the members of the Commission less 
than 72 hours prior to that meeting will be made available on http://contracostalafco.org/meetings 
 

Campaign Contribution Disclosure 
If you are an applicant or an agent of an applicant on a matter to be heard by the Commission, and if you have made campaign 
contributions totaling $250 or more to any Commissioner in the past 12 months, Government Code Section 84308 requires 
that you disclose the fact, either orally or in writing, for the official record of the proceedings. 
   

Notice of Intent to Waive Protest Proceedings 
In the case of a change of organization consisting of an annexation or detachment, or a reorganization consisting solely of 
annexations or detachments, or both, or the formation of a county service area, it is the intent of the Commission to waive 
subsequent protest and election proceedings provided that appropriate mailed notice has been given to landowners and 
registered voters within the affected territory pursuant to Gov. Code sections 56157 and 56663, and no written  opposition from 
affected landowner or voters to the proposal is received before the conclusion of the commission proceedings on the proposal. 
 

American Disabilities Act Compliance 
LAFCO will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to join the meeting. Please contact the 
LAFCO office at least 48 hours before the meeting at 925-313-7133.   

https://cccounty-us.zoom.us/j/95768795211
http://contracostalafco.org/meetings-and-public-hearings/
http://contracostalafco.org/meetings-and-public-hearings/
mailto:LouAnn.Texeira@lafco.cccounty.us
http://contracostalafco.org/meetings


 

 

APRIL 14, 2021 CONTRA COSTA LAFCO AGENDA 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Adoption of Agenda 

4. Approval of Minutes for the January 13, 2021 regular LAFCO meeting  

5. Public Comment Period (please observe a three-minute time limit): 

Members of the public are invited to address the Commission regarding any item that is not scheduled 

for discussion as part of this Agenda. No action will be taken by the Commission at this meeting as a 

result of items presented at this time. 
 

OUT OF AGENCY SERVICE REQUESTS 

6. LAFCO 20-08 – City of Martinez – Bay’s Edge, Subdivision 9065 – consider a request by the City of 

Martinez to extend municipal water service outside its jurisdictional boundary to support development of 30 

townhomes. The subject area includes two parcels (APNs 375-311-001/-003) located at 3128 Sycamore 

Street in unincorporated Martinez (Mt. View area). The Commission will also consider related actions per 

the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEWS (MSRs)/SOI UPDATES 

7. “Parks & Recreation Services” MSR/SOI Updates (2nd Round) – receive overview of Public Review Draft 

MSR, public comments, and provide input. The MSR covers all 19 cities, four community services districts, 

three parks & recreation districts, one regional park district and eight county service areas Public Hearing 
 

BUSINESS ITEMS 

8. Fiscal Year 2021-22 Proposed Budget and Work Plan - consider approving the proposed budget and work 

plan for FY 2021-22 Public Hearing 

9. Legislative Update and Position Letters – receive update and consider submitting position letters  

10. Call for Nominations – 2021 Special Districts Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) Board of Directors 

receive SDRMA information and consider submitting a nomination 

11. FY 2020-21 Third Quarter Budget Report - receive FY 2020-21 third quarter budget report 

12. Actuarial Evaluation – Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan GASB 75 Supplemental Schedules - 
Reporting Period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 – informational item – no action needed 

13. Update - Chang Property Reorganization – Annexations to the City of San Ramon, Central Contra Costa 

Sanitary District and East Bay Municipal Utility District and Detachment from County Service Area P-6 –  

informational item – no action needed   
 

CORRESPONDENCE 

14. Correspondence from Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA) 
 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

15. Commissioner Comments and Announcements  

16. Staff Announcements (CALAFCO Updates, Pending Projects, Newspaper Articles) 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

Next regular LAFCO meeting is on May 12, 2021 at 1:30 pm.  

LAFCO STAFF REPORTS AVAILABLE AT http://www.contracostalafco.org/meeting_archive.htm 

http://www.contracostalafco.org/meeting_archive.htm


DRAFT 

CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 

January 13, 2021 

1. Welcome and Call to Order; Roll Call (Agenda Items 1&2)

Chair Andersen called the regular meeting of January 13, 2021 to order at 1:32 p.m.

The following Commissioners and staff were present:

Announcement: Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order and local county health orders issued 

to address the COVID 19 pandemic, the Commission meeting is being held via Zoom videoconference. 

The public may listen to the meeting telephonically and comment by calling in to the teleconference 

meeting per the instructions on page 1 of the agenda. As required by the Brown Act, all votes taken this 

afternoon will be done by a roll call vote to the attending Commissioners participating via teleconference. 

3. Adoption of Agenda

Upon motion by Commissioner McGill and second by Commissioner Glover, the Commission

unanimously, by a 7-0 vote, adopted the agenda.

VOTE: 

AYES: Andersen, Blubaugh, Butt, Glover, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff 

NOES: NONE 

ABSENT:  NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 

4. Selection of 2021 Chair and Vice Chair and Recognition of Outgoing Chair

Upon motion by Commissioner Blubaugh and second by Commissioner Glover, by a 6-0 vote,

Commissioner Skaredoff was named as LAFCO Chair for 2021

VOTE: 

AYES: Andersen, Blubaugh, Butt, Glover, McGill, Schroder, 

NOES: NONE 

ABSENT: NONE 

ABSTAIN: Skaredoff    

Upon motion by Commissioner Blubaugh and second by Commissioner McGill, Commissioner 

Schroder was unanimously, by a 7-0 vote, named as LAFCO Vice Chair for 2021. 

VOTE: 
AYES: Andersen, Blubaugh, Butt, Glover, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff 

NOES: NONE 

ABSENT: NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 

Regular Commissioners Alternate Commissioners Staff 

Candace Andersen, Chair 

Igor Skaredoff, Vice Chair 

Don Blubaugh  

Tom Butt 

Federal Glover  

Mike McGill 

Rob Schroder  

Diane Burgis 

Edi Birsan 

Stan Caldwell 

Chuck Lewis   

Lou Ann Texeira, Executive Officer 

Sharon Anderson, Commission Counsel 

Sherrie Weis, LAFCO Clerk  

April 14, 2021
Agenda Item 4



Local Agency Formation Commission of Contra Costa County 

Draft Meeting Minutes of January 13, 2021   Page 2 

 

DRAFT 

 

 

Outgoing Chair Anderson was recognized by resolution for her service as 2021 LAFCO Chair. 

Commissioner Skaredoff assume the role of Chair.  
 

5. Welcome New Commissioner 

Introduction and welcome of new Commissioner Edi Birsan – alternate city member. 

 

6. Commissioner Approval of Minutes 

Upon motion by Commissioner McGill and second by Commissioner Butt, the December 9, 2020 

meeting minutes were unanimously, by a 7-0 vote, approved. 

 

VOTE: 

AYES: Andersen, Blubaugh, Butt, Glover, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff  

NOES: NONE 

ABSENT: NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE     

 

7. Public Comments 

Skaredoff invited members of the audience to provide public comment. There were no speakers. 

 

OUT OF AGENCY SERVICE REQUESTS 
 

8. LAFCO 20-08 – City of Martinez – Bay’s Edge, Subdivision 9065 – consider a request by the 

City of Martinez to extend municipal water service outside its jurisdictional boundary to support 

development of 30 townhomes. The subject area includes two parcels (APNs 375-311-001/-003) 

and is located in unincorporated Martinez (Mt. View area). The Commission will also consider 

related actions per the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

Attorney Wilson Wendt spoke representing the owner/applicant. There was extensive discussion. 

Commissioners expressed a preference for annexation of the subject property.   

 

Commissioner McGill moved second by Commissioner Blubaugh, Option 1. Before roll call vote 

the motion and second were withdrawn. 

 

A substitute motion was made. Upon motion of Commissioner Butt, second by Commissioner 

Blubaugh, the Commission, unanimously approved, by a 7-0 vote, Option 4 – continue this matter 

to a future meeting to obtain more information. 

 

VOTE: 

AYES: Andersen, Blubaugh, Butt, Glover, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff 

NOES: NONE 

ABSENT: NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 

 

SPHERE OF INFLUENCE (SOI) AMENDMENTS/CHANGES OF ORGANIZATIONS 

 

9. LAFCO 10-10 – Annexation to Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District (TDBCSD) 

– Newport Pointe - consider approving an annexation to the TDBCSD to include 21.64+ acres (2 

parcels) located east of Bixler Road and west of Newport Avenue in unincorporated Discovery 



Local Agency Formation Commission of Contra Costa County 

Draft Meeting Minutes of January 13, 2021   Page 3 

 

DRAFT 

 

Bay and consider related actions under CEQA. The annexation will facilitate development of 67 

single family homes. Public Hearing 

 

Chair Skaredoff opened and closed the public hearing; there were no public speakers. 

 

Upon motion of Commissioner Butt, second by Commissioner Schroder, the Commission, 

approved, by a 6-0 vote, to approve, Option 1 – approve the annexation as proposed. 

 

VOTE: 

AYES: Andersen, Blubaugh, Butt, Glover, McGill, Schroder,  

NOES: NONE 

ABSENT: NONE 

ABSTAIN: Skaredoff 

 

BUSINESS ITEMS 

 

10. Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22 Budget Schedule Work Plan Preview – provide input on the FY 2021-

22 proposed budget schedule and work plan preview 

 

Upon motion by Commissioner Anderson, second by Commissioner McGill, the Commission 

unanimously approved, by a 7-0 vote, to accept 2nd round MSRs and other workplan goals. 

 

VOTE: 

AYES: Andersen, Blubaugh, Butt, Glover, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff 

NOES: NONE 

ABSENT: NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 

 

11. Fiscal Year 2021 2nd Mid-Year Budget Report - receive FY 2020-21 mid-year budget report 

Upon motion by Commissioner Butt, second by Commissioner Blubaugh, the Commission 

unanimously approved, by a 7-0 vote, to accept Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-2022 2nd Mid-Year Budget 

Report. 

 
VOTE: 

AYES: Andersen, Blubaugh, Butt, Glover, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff 

NOES: NONE 

ABSENT: NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

12. Correspondence from Contra Costa Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCREA) 

 
 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

13. Commissioner Comments and Announcements  

• Commissioner McGill reported the following:  

a. Coastal Roundtable, December 10, 2020. 

b. Upcoming CALAFCO Board retreat and meeting January 21 and 22, 2021. 

c. Overview and update of Coco San Sustainable Farm. 



Local Agency Formation Commission of Contra Costa County 

Draft Meeting Minutes of January 13, 2021   Page 4 

 

DRAFT 

 

• Commissioner Butt noted his appreciation of the update on CoCo Farm. 

 

• Commissioner Skaredoff reported on the January 13, 2021 Watershed Forum meeting he 

attended. 

 
14. Staff Announcements 

• CALAFCO Daily Legislative Report – January 5, 2021 

• Pending Proposals 

• News Articles 

 

The meeting adjourned at 3:05 pm. 

 

Final Minutes Approved by the Commission February 10, 2021 

VOTE: 
 

AYES: Andersen, Blubaugh, Butt, Glover, McGill, Schroder, Skaredoff 

NOES: NONE 

ABSENT:  NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The next regular LAFCO meeting is February 10, 2021 at 1:30 pm.  

 

By       

Executive Officer  



CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT 

 
 

April 14, 2021 (Agenda) 
 
 

LAFCO 20-08  City of Martinez - Out of Agency Service Request (Bay’s Edge Subdivision 9065)  
 
SYNOPSIS 
This matter was continued from the January 13, 2021 LAFCO meeting. 
 
This is a request by the City of Martinez to provide municipal water service outside its jurisdictional 
boundary to two parcels (APNs 375-311-001/-003) totaling 1.47+ aces.  The subject area is located at 3128 
Sycamore Street in unincorporated Martinez (Mt. View area). (See Map - Exhibit A). In February 2021, 
LAFCO was informed that the subject property was sold – the new landowner is Michael Arikat, 
Millennium Properties. 
 

The subject property is currently vacant.  The project received  approval from the County for a tentative 
subdivision map and the project applicant must file a final map with the County by August 21, 2022. The 
subdivision plan allows for construction of 30 two-story attached townhomes which will increase the 
County’s housing stock in accordance with the County’s General Plan policy. 
The County’s General Plan designation for the parcels is Multiple Family Residential – High Density (MH), 
and the zoning is Multiple Family Residential – maximum 29 units per acre  (M-29). The subject parcel is 
located within the City of Martinez’s sphere of influence (SOI) and within the City’s Urban Limit Line. 
The subject area is surrounded by residential to the north, south and west, and light industrial to east.  
 
After further research, City and LAFCO staff learned that the subject property is not prezoned and does not 
have a City General Plan designation. Thus, to annex this property in the future, prezoning, a General Plan 
amendment, and an environmental review is needed. This will take additional time to complete. We 
understand that the new landowner has submitted to the City applications for a General Plan amendment, 
prezoning, and a deferred annexation request along with applicable fees. 
 

As discussed below, the out of agency service (OAS) request is inconsistent with LAFCO statutes and local 
policies as there is no existing or impending public health or safety threat, and the project site is adjacent to 
the City limits and proposes new development. For these reasons, approval of the OAS request should be 
conditioned on an annexation application being submitted within a specified timeframe.   
DISCUSSION  
Statutory Framework – Out of Agency Service (OAS) - The Government Code and local LAFCO 
policies regulate the extension of out of agency service. Government Code (GC) §56133 states that “a city 
or district may provide new or extended services by contract or agreement outside its jurisdictional 
boundary only if it first requests and receives written approval from the Commission.” LAFCO may 
authorize a city or district to provide new or extended services under specific circumstances: a) outside the 
agency’s jurisdictional boundary but within its SOI in anticipation of a future annexation; or b) outside its 
jurisdictional boundary and outside its SOI in response to an existing or impending threat to the public 
health or safety. 
LAFCO’s Out of Agency Service Policies - The Commission’s policies regarding out of agency service 
are consistent with State law in that annexations to cities and special districts are generally preferred for 
providing municipal services. However, in unique situations, for example  in response to an existing or 
impending public health and safety threat (e.g., failing septic system or contaminated well), or in 
anticipation of a future annexation, out of agency service may be considered as a temporary measure. 
LAFCO policies contain  provisions  relevant to this proposal including the following excerpts:  

April 14, 2021 
Agenda Item 6 



Executive Officer’s Report 
LAFCO 20-08 

April 14, 2021 (Agenda) 
Page 2 

 
3) Objective – Out of agency service is generally not intended to support new development. 

This out of agency service request is intended to serve development of  30 townhomes.  
4) Out of Agency Service Policies: General Statements  

• Annexation to cities and special districts involving territory located within the affected agency’s 
SOI is generally preferred to out of agency service.  
The subject area is within the City’s SOI and is contiguous to the City boundary. 

• LAFCO will consider applicable MSRs and discourage out of agency service extensions that 
conflict with adopted MSR determinations or recommendations.  
The previous LAFCO MSRs recommended annexing properties that are receiving, or will require, 
City water service, as appropriate. The City has committed to the future annexation of several 
areas including the Mt. View area. 

• If immediate annexation (i.e., within 12 months) is not a feasible alternative, then the extension of 
services may be approved in anticipation of a later annexation if the agency provides LAFCO with 
a resolution of intent to annex, as well as appropriate assurances (e.g., prezoning, plan for 
annexation, deferred annexation agreement, etc.) which demonstrate that out of agency service is 
an intermediate step toward eventual annexation. 
In the past 10 years, the City of Martinez attempted to annex North Pacheco, which was rejected by the  
voters. The City successfully annexed a portion of Alhambra Valley. Further, the Martinez City 
Council adopted resolutions stating the City’s intent to pursue annexation of the Alhambra Valley area 
by 2020, and annexation of the Pacheco Boulevard corridor including the Mt. View area by 2030. 

In March 2020, the City retained a consulting firm (RSG) to provide a fiscal analysis of annexation 
of areas within the City’s SOI (i.e., Alhambra Valley, Mt. View, North Pacheco, Vine Hill, and PBF 
Energy – formerly Shell refinery). The study concludes that annexation of these areas is not 
financially viable for the City. The study is available on the City’s website at: https://legistarweb-
production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/750184/Martinez_Annexation_Study_Final_Draft_
11.12.2020.pdf.  

5) Form of Request 
a)  All Requests 
Requests to authorize out of agency service shall be filed with the Executive Officer by the affected 
city or district. The application shall be signed by an authorized representative of the city or 
district. Requests shall be made in writing with a completed LAFCO application, payment in the 
amount prescribed under the Commission’s adopted fee schedule, appropriate environmental 
document, proposed service agreement, and an executed and recorded deferred annexation 
agreement (DAA) and waiver of property owner protest rights. The recorded DAA shall run with 
the land and be binding on all future owners of the property. An indemnification agreement will be 
required with each application. 
The City has obtained and recorded a DAA on the subject parcels. 
c) Request in Anticipation of Annexation 
An out of agency service application must be accompanied by a change of organization or 
reorganization application, including an approved tax sharing agreement, in order for LAFCO to 
determine that the out of agency service is in anticipation of a change of organization (i.e., 

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/750184/Martinez_Annexation_Study_Final_Draft_11.12.2020.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/750184/Martinez_Annexation_Study_Final_Draft_11.12.2020.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/750184/Martinez_Annexation_Study_Final_Draft_11.12.2020.pdf


Executive Officer’s Report 
LAFCO 20-08 

April 14, 2021 (Agenda) 
Page 3 

 
annexation) within the next 12 months. This dual application requirement may be waived in 
certain situations by the Commission if compelling justification is provided. Circumstances which 
may warrant such a waiver include, but are not limited to, the following: 

• Lack of contiguity (e.g., city boundary) when the project was approved prior to 2011 
The subject area is contiguous to the City boundary. 

• If immediate annexation (i.e., within 12 months) is not a feasible alternative, then the extension of 
services may be approved in anticipation of a later annexation if the agency provides LAFCO with 
a resolution of intent to annex, as well as appropriate assurances (e.g., plan for annexation, 
deferred annexation agreement, etc.), which demonstrate that out of agency service is an 
intermediate step toward eventual annexation. 
Given the subject property is contiguous to the City boundary, annexation of this property is 
possible. The City’s preference is to pursue annexation of the Mt. View and other areas in the future.  

City’s Prior and Future Commitment to Annexations - As noted in LAFCO’s previous Municipal 
Service Reviews (MSRs), the City is providing water services beyond its corporate limits to over 1,500 
water connections. Since 2012, the City has submitted 18 OAS applications to LAFCO, most of which have 
been in the Alhambra Valley, Mountain View and Pacheco areas. The LAFCO MSRs recommend that the 
City of Martinez annex areas receiving city services, as appropriate.  
In response to LAFCO’s concerns regarding the use of OAS, the Martinez City Council has taken various 
actions demonstrating its commitment to annexation of these areas a summarized below.   

• In 2012, the City successfully annexed a portion of the Alhambra Valley, and attempted to annex North 
Pacheco; however, this annexation was rejected by the voters.   

 
• The City Council adopted resolutions stating the City’s intent to pursue annexation of the Alhambra Valley 

area by 2020, and annexation of the Pacheco Blvd corridor including the Mt. View area by the year 2030.  
 
• In June 2019, the City provided LAFCO with an update noting that the City Council identified annexations 

as one of its top five goals over the next two years, and within the next year will explore an annexation study 
for the Mt. View/Pacheco Corridor and the Alhambra Valley areas.  

 
• On October 23, 2019, the Martinez City Council hosted a community workshop to discuss annexation of the 

Alhambra Valley, Mountain View, North Pacheco, and Vine Hill areas. The City Council agreed to move 
forward with an annexation study.  

 

• As noted above, RSG was hired by the City and prepared a fiscal analysis of annexation of those areas 
within the City’s SOI. 

 

Water Supply to the Subject Property – The subject property is in the Mt. View area, which is 
characterized by high density single family residential use. The Mt. View area is partially served with water 
service through the City of Martinez and receives sewer service through the Mt. View Sanitary District.  
 
As noted in the City’s application, infrastructure needed to serve the project includes approximately 600 
linear feet of 8-inch water main for domestic and fire use. Each of the lots will have a separate water system 
consisting of a one-inch lateral pipe, a one-inch water meter, and a backflow device. All required 
construction costs will be borne by the property owner. The demand for water is approximately 5.08 acre 
feet per year for both indoor and outdoor use. The City indicates it has adequate water to serve the subject 
property. 



Executive Officer’s Report 
LAFCO 20-08 

April 14, 2021 (Agenda) 
Page 4 

 
 

Environmental Review – In 2006, Contra Costa County, as Lead Agency, prepared and approved an Initial 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) in conjunction with the proposed development project 
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The MND identified potentially significant 
effects (i.e., Air Quality, Biological Resources, Geology/Soils, Hydrology and Noise). Mitigation measures 
were adopted which reduced all impacts to a less than significant level; therefore, there are no significant 
and unavoidable impacts. The MND also noted that domestic water service to the project area will be 
provided by the City of Martinez. The City indicates it is able and willing to service the project area. Should 
LAFCO approve the out of agency service, the property owner must then implement the required 
mitigations for the project, including LAFCO’s approval for out of agency water service, prior to the County 
issuance of the building permit. 
In 2020, the County prepared an Addendum to the 2006 IS/MND.  The Addendum addresses issues not 
previously covered in the IS/MND including identifying LAFCO as a Responsible Agency pursuant to 
CEQA, discussing the need for OAS, the deferred annexation agreement and/or annexation, and approval 
by LAFCO to allow for municipal water service by the City of Martinez. The County’s environmental 
documents are adequate for LAFCO purposes and are available through the LAFCO office. 
Comments from Affected Agencies/Other Interested Parties: 
On January 5, 2021, LAFCO received a letter from the former landowner representative, a copy of which 
is attached  (Attachment 2).  Following the January 13, 2021 LAFCO meeting, the landowner 
representative, City and LAFCO staff met and discussed options, terms, and conditions to which all parties 
agreed.  These terms and conditions are reflected in Option 1 below.  
 
CONSISTENCY ANALYSIS 
As noted above, this application for OAS is inconsistent with the following LAFCO OAS policies as 
summarized below: 

• Policy: OAS is generally not intended to support new development.  

This OAS request is intended to serve development of  30 townhomes. 

• Policy: Annexation to cities and special districts involving territory located within the affected 
agency’s SOI is generally preferred to out of agency service.  

The subject area is within the City’s SOI. 

• Policy: LAFCO will consider applicable MSRs and discourage out of agency service extensions that 
conflict with adopted MSR determinations or recommendations. LAFCO will consider applicable 
MSRs and discourage out of agency service extensions that conflict with adopted MSR determinations 
or recommendations.  

The previous LAFCO MSRs recommended annexing properties that are receiving, or will require, City 
water service, as appropriate.  

• Policy:  An out of agency service application must be accompanied by a change of organization or 
reorganization application, including an approved tax sharing agreement, in order for LAFCO to 
determine that the out of agency service is in anticipation of a change of organization (i.e., 
annexation) within the next 12 months. This dual application requirement may be waived in certain 
situations by the Commission if compelling justification is provided.  

No annexation application was included with the OAS application. The Commission should condition 
approval of the OAS application on an application being submitted within a specified timeframe.  



Executive Officer’s Report 
LAFCO 20-08 

April 14, 2021 (Agenda) 
Page 5 

 
• Policy: Circumstances which may warrant such a waiver include, but are not limited to, the following:  

- Lack of contiguity (e.g., city boundary) when the project was approved prior to 2011 

The subject area is contiguous to the City boundary. 

• Policy: If immediate annexation (i.e., within 12 months) is not a feasible alternative, then the extension 
of services may be approved in anticipation of a later annexation if the agency provides LAFCO with a 
resolution of intent to annex, as well as appropriate assurances (e.g., plan for annexation, deferred 
annexation agreement, etc.), which demonstrate that out of agency service is an intermediate step 
toward eventual annexation. 
In the past 10 years, the City of Martinez has made efforts to annex some of the areas within its SOI. 
In 2011, the City attempted to annex North Pacheco, which was rejected by the  voters. Also, in 2011, 
the City successfully annexed a portion of Alhambra Valley.  

Further, the Martinez City Council adopted resolutions stating the City’s intent to pursue annexation of 
the Alhambra Valley area by 2020, and annexation of the Pacheco Boulevard corridor including the 
Mt. View area by 2030.   

As noted in the LAFCO MSRs, the cities of Concord (wastewater) and Martinez (water) have a history of 
OAS service extensions.  
The Commission recently approved two OAS applications submitted by the City of Concord. Both 
applications involve property that is contiguous to the City boundary. With both applications, the 
Commission conditioned the extension of OAS on an annexation application being filed with LAFCO with 
12 months.  The developer complied with these conditions.  
 
ALTERNATIVES FOR COMMISSION ACTION 
The following options are presented for the Commission’s consideration.     
Option 1 Approve the out of agency service request and attached Resolution 20-08 conditioned on 

the following: 
A. Find that, as a Responsible Agency under CEQA, the Commission has reviewed and considered 

the information contained in the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and Addendum 
prepared and approved by Contra Costa County. 

B. Authorize the City of Martinez to extend water service outside its jurisdictional boundary to 
1.47+ acres (APNs 375-311-001 and -003) located at 3128 Sycamore Street in unincorporated 
Contra Costa County (Mt. View area) subject to the following terms and conditions:  

1. Water infrastructure and service is limited to the proposed 30 townhomes, and  
2. The City of Martinez has delivered to LAFCO an executed and recorded deferred annexation 

agreement providing for the City to indemnify LAFCO against any expenses arising from 
any legal actions to challenging the out of agency service; the deferred annexation agreement 
binds present and future owners of the subject property, and  

3. LAFCO’s approval of water service is effective following receipt of an executed and 
recorded deferred annexation agreement and executed indemnification agreement which will 
allow the landowner to file the final map for the project with Contra Costa County, subject 
to the following commitments by the landowner and the City of Martinez (“City”): 
(a) The landowner shall within thirty (30) days of LAFCO’s approval file with the City 

applications for general plan amendment, pre-zoning, and annexation of the subject 
territory to the City, and shall process those applications to completion; and     





Martinez
Mountain

View

Pacheco Blvd

Ho
we

 R
d

Shell A
ve

Pine St

Pa
lm

 Av
e

Vin
e A

ve

Ve
ale

 Av
e

Pla
za

 D
r

Bush St

Leslie Ave

Rose St

Oa
k S

t

Monterey Ave

Pinon Dr

Sa
nta

 Fe
 Av

e

Martinez Ave

Almond St

Brown St

Sycamore St

La Salle St

Walnut St

Scenic Ave

Orange S t

Es
co

nd
ido

 D
r

Harbor View Dr

Magnolia Ave

De
lac

y A
ve

Olive St

Ulfinian Way

Boynton Ave

Be
ec

h S
t

Ke
ll y

Av
e

Tacoma Ave

Bella Vista Ave

Morello Heights Dr

Birch St

As
h S

t

Pa
rkw

ay Dr

Gregory Ave

Peach St

Potter St

Bay
sh

ore
St

Da
te 

St

S Crest Av e

N Crest Ave

Elm
 St

W Shell Ave

PomonaAve

Andrews Dr

Ce
da

r S
t

Merle Ave

Do
na

ld 
Av

e

Lemon St

Co
un

try
Run Dr

La
gu

nit
a C

t

Warren St

Chestnut St

Marie Ave

Bartolini Dr

Wy
om

ing
St

Valente Cir

James St

Sierra Ave

Be
ns

on Ct

Griffanti Ct

San Carlos Ave

Gilrix Dr

Catalpa St
Pin

on
 Ct

Mo
rel

lo

Heights Cir

Pine Ct

Helena Ave

Jefferson St

Marchi Ave

Wi
lso

n A
ve

Orange St

Monterey Ave

De
lac

y A
ve

Merle Ave

La Salle St

0 1,000 2,000500

FeetMap created 12/07/2020
b y Contra Costa County Departm ent of

Conservation and  Developm ent, GIS Group
30 Muir Road , Martinez, CA 94553
37:59:41.791N  122:07:03.756W

Th is m ap or d ataset w as c reated  b y th e Contra Costa County Departm ent of Conservation
and  Developm ent w ith  d ata from  th e Contra Costa County GIS P rog ram .  Som e 
b ase data, prim arily City Lim its, is d erived from  th e CA State Board of Equalization's
tax rate areas. Wh ile ob lig ated to use th is data th e County assum es no responsib ility for
its acc uracy. Th is m ap c ontains c opyrig h ted  inform ation and  m ay not b e altered.  It m ay b e 
reprod uced  in its c urrent state if the source is c ited. Users of th is m ap ag ree to read  and  
ac cept th e County of Contra Costa d isc laim er of liab ility for g eog raph ic inform ation. ®

LAFCO 20-08
City Bound aries

CONCORD
MARTINEZ

PLEASANT
HILL

Vine
Hill

§̈¦680

§̈¦680

ÄÅ44

ÄÅ242

ÄÅ44

LAFCO No.20-08 City of Martinez Out of Ag ency Service (Bay’s Ed g e, Sub d ivision 9065)

sweis
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



Attachment 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-08 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION 
COMMISSION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF MARTINEZ TO PROVIDE  

OUT-OF-AGENCY WATER SERVICE TO APNs 375-311-001 and -003 (BAY’S EDGE) 
 

 
WHEREAS, the above-referenced request has been filed with the Executive Officer of the 

Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission pursuant to the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local 
Government Reorganization Act (Section 56000 et seq. of the California Government Code); and 

WHEREAS, at the time and in the manner required by law the Executive Officer gave notice 
of the Commission’s consideration of this request; and  

WHEREAS, the Commission heard, discussed, and considered all oral and written testimony 
related to this request including, but not limited to, the Executive Officer's report and 
recommendation; and 

WHEREAS, out of agency service approval is needed to provide water services to the property 
in anticipation of a future annexation; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Martinez and the property owner have entered into a Deferred 
Annexation Agreement in support of the future annexation of the property to the City of Martinez.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the Contra 
Costa Local Agency Formation Commission as follows: 
A. As a Responsible Agency under CEQA, the Commission has considered the information 

contained in the Mitigated Negative Declaration/Initial Study and Addendum as prepared and 
certified by Contra Costa County. 

B. Authorize the City of Martinez to extend water service outside its jurisdictional boundary to 
APNs 375-311-001 and -003 (Bay’s Edge Subdivision 9065) located at 3128 Sycamore Street 
in unincorporated Contra Costa County (Mt. View) subject to the following terms and 
conditions:  
1. Water infrastructure and service is limited to 30 townhomes on the subject parcel,   
2. The City of Martinez has delivered to LAFCO an executed indemnification agreement 

providing for the City to indemnify LAFCO against any expenses arising from any legal 
actions to challenging the out of agency service, and  

3. The City of Martinez and the property owner have signed a deferred annexation 
agreement (DAA), and the DAA was recorded as prescribed by law and run with the 
land so that future landowners have constructive notice that their property is encumbered 
by the DAA, and 

4. LAFCO’s approval of water service is effective following receipt of an executed and 
recorded deferred annexation agreement and executed indemnification agreement which 
will allow the landowner to file the final map for the project with Contra Costa County, 
subject to the following commitments by the landowner and the City of Martinez (“City”): 

 
 



Resolution 20-08 
Page 2 

 
 
 

a. The landowner shall within thirty (30) days of LAFCO’s approval file with the City 
applications for general plan amendment, pre-zoning, and annexation of the subject 
territory to the City, and shall process those applications to completion; and     

b. The City commits to submit to LAFCO an annexation application of the subject territory 
to the City, along with application annexation fees, by August 31, 2022, in the event the 
entirety of Mt. View is not annexed to the City prior to that date.  

 
C. Approval to extend City of Martinez services beyond those specifically noted herein is 

withheld and is subject to future LAFCO review. 
* * * * * * * 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 14th day of April 2021, by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:    
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
IGOR SKAREDOFF, CHAIR, CONTRA COSTA LAFCO 
 
I hereby certify that this is a correct copy of a resolution passed and adopted by this Commission on 
the date stated above. 

 
Dated:  April 14, 2021             
                                                  Lou Ann Texeira, Executive Officer 









April 14, 2021 (Agenda) 

Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) 

40 Muir Road, 1st Floor 

Martinez, CA  94553 

2nd Round “Parks & Recreation Services” Municipal Services Review 

Public Review Draft Report 

Dear Members of the Commission: 

BACKGROUND: The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (CKH 

Act) requires that every five years the Commission shall, as necessary, review and update each sphere 

of influence (SOI); and that in conjunction with the SOI update, the commission shall conduct a 

municipal service review (MSR). 

MSRs provide an assessment of the range and adequacy of municipal services provided in the County and 

provides the basis for making LAFCO determination relating to growth & population projections, 

location/characteristics of disadvantaged communities, capacity of public facilities, services and 

infrastructure, financial ability of agencies to provide services, opportunities for share facilities, 

accountability, governance structure and operational efficiencies, and other factors relating to efficient 

and effectives service delivery. The MSR culminates in updating the SOIs for the subject agencies. 

The MSR is an important tool for LAFCO in fulfilling its legislative mandate to coordinate the efficient 

and logical development of local government agencies and services. The MSR serves as a basis for SOI 

updates and future boundary changes.  

Contra Costa LAFCO continues its work on MSRs having completed 2nd round reviews of water and 

wastewater services (2014), reclamation services (2015), fire/EMS services (2016), healthcare services 

(2018), and “city services” (2019).   

SUMMARY: In December 2019, LAFCO initiated its 2nd round “Parks & Recreation Services” MSR 

covering all 19 cities, four community services districts (CSDs), three parks & recreation districts, one 

regional park district, and eight County Service Areas (CSAs).  

The 2nd round “Parks & Recreation Services” MSR focuses on the following: 

Updating profile data including growth and population, finances (expenses, revenues, debt, 

reserves, rates/fee schedules, other fiscal indicators); and staffing   

Capacity of public services, programs, and facilities; and service to disadvantaged communities 

Shared services/facilities and collaboration  

April 14, 2021
Agenda Item 7



http://contracostalafco.org/agencies/municipal-service-reviews/


March 28, 2021 

 

 

 

 

Dear Lafco Commissioners, 

 

We understand that the Pleasant Hill Parks and Recreation Boundaries are 

under review, which review has been substantially delayed by the Covid 

Pandemic.   Since it has been two years since our first formal communication, we 

felt it best to send a letter to update you on what has happened in the district 

since our prior letter, which lays out the substantial case for removal from the 

district and that original letter is included in your materials and was signed by a 

representative 40 members of our community.  Some of the below has been 

brought to your attention in public meetings pre-covid, and we apologize for any 

duplication.   

 

Said again, we firmly believe that zip code 94549 (Lafayette residents, city and 

county) should no longer be a part of the park district, this a very antiquated 

inclusion and is no longer appropriate and the district is surely committed to 

parks and recreation for residents of Pleasant Hill (and not Lafayette) as the 

district states over-and-over in its marketing materials--please see a recent 

General Manager communication included herewith making that exact statement.   

   

As we have previously noted, there is one district park near the 

Lafayette/Pleasant Hill border, Brookwood Park.  Since the Measure K parcel tax 

passed over 10 years ago, the 94549 residents (residents of Lafayette city and 

county), we estimate, have provided the park district between ~$500,000-

$1,000,000 in tax receipts, and this individual park has received no meaningful 

investment...the basketball court and picnic facilities are unusable and park 

facility/equipment is substantially deteriorated.   The park is used as a local dog 



park for VERY nearby residents of Pleasant Hill and Lafayette, no more more no 

less.  It is a treacherous walking area since we do not have sidewalks leading 

through our neighborhoods to the park and our streets are narrow and quite 

dangerous and we have a lot of cut-through traffic. Very sadly, you might recall 

that a bicyclist lost his life in August, 2018 on these streets.    It is not fair to 

continue to saddle the 94549 residents into the district for maintenance of this 

one park.  In fact, we have now adequately funded it in perpetuity. 

   

As I mentioned to the LAFCO board last year, the district was looking to raise an 

additional $63.5 million via Measure A, an additional cost between $5,000 and 

$10,000 over the life of a typical household in zip code 94549 and, again, for no 

additional benefit to our community and the parks and recreation that we use…in 

Lafayette.  Lafayette residents were caught off-guard by this ballot initiative, and 

we worked quickly to defeat it despite being substantially outspent.   That said, it 

is a sad day when we are working to defeat park and recreation measures 

because of antiquated lines on a district map...we worked to defeat it only 

because it is inappropriate grab of taxpayer money since we do not use the 

facilities of the district, especially those we are paying for so dearly.  

     

Since Measure A was defeated, I have communicated several times with the 

general manager of the district.  Although pleasant and friendly conversations, 

the fact remains that we are not served by the district and we want out or a 

substantial break on fees we pay to the district.  We have and are contributing 

substantial sums into the district treasury, and the district is happy with that...but 

we are not.  Out of pure economic necessity, we will oppose any and all 

measures to raise additional taxes/bonds that serve to benefit the park district.   

And we know that is crazy, and only you can help us fix the inequity.  I have 

spoken with Ms. Texeira several times about removal from the district and, I must 

say, it is a staggering process and we desperately need your help to find a 

simple way to exit the district and/or stop paying additional bond/tax funds in 

perpetuity.   The exit process is simply too hard and too costly for us to navigate.  



It is much easier to defeat a ballot measure.  In fact, in the day of social media, it 

is very easy to defeat a tax measures that require two-thirds approval to 

pass…Measure K received a 45% “no” vote, of which I am sure we were a 

substantial portion. 

   

We thank you for your time, and we kindly ask for your help. 

 

Respectfully submitted on behalf of the 40 residents who signed the original 

attached documents, and thank you, 

 
Roger Chelemedos 
 



March 29, 2019 
 
 
Contra Costa Local Agency Formation 
    Commission 
651 Pine St, 6th Floor 
 
Attn: Ms. Lou Ann Texeira 
 
Dr. Commission Members and Staff 
 
On behalf  of the Lafayette residents of Reliez Valley, we kindly request a review of 
the district boundaries of the Pleasant Hill Parks and Recreation District a(“the 
District or PHPRD”) and ultimately the removal of all Lafayette residents (city and 
county) from the District. 
 
As you know, the District was established in 1951, before incorporation of the cities 
of Pleasant Hill and Lafayette.  Since then, much has changed.   Very importantly, 
with the incorporation of Lafayette, and the change in school district for Reliez 
Valley residents from the Pleasant Hill to Lafayette schools (~30 years ago), the 
Lafayette Reliez Valley residents find themselves in a predicament…paying huge 
sums to the Pleasant Hill Parks and Recreation District for services and facilities 
they barely, if ever, use.    This was significantly exacerbated by the passage of 
Measure E in 2009, which will cause many of Lafayette’s residents to pay in excess 
of $10,000 over the 30-year term of the Measure E bond, the proceeds of which 
were largely used to build Pleasant Hill’s Senior Center, Pleasant Hill’s Teen Center, 
the Pleasant Hill community center, significantly upgrade Pleasant Hill’s Pleasant 
Oaks Park, and upgrade bathroom facilities at various parks primarily serving 
Pleasant Hill citizens.  These facilities are lightly, if ever, used by Lafayette residents. 
 
PHPRD is awesome, and we admire the District and its leaders, but we are served by 
the Lafayette Parks and Recreation Department and Lafayette Moraga Youth 
Association and have been for many years.  It is simply unfair for our constituents to 
pay such large sums to PHPRD.  We estimate that our Lafayette neighbors pay 
between $50,000 and $100,000 annually for the facilities that we do not use.  And 
since we only represent a small fraction of the constituents of the district (~300 of 
16,000 households, <2%), we are totally disenfranchised and kindly need help to 
separate from the District.  It is our view, supported by activities and investments in 
the District, that the District’s  focus is squarely on central and eastern Pleasant Hill, 
as the use of the Measure E proceeds proves, and as further evidenced by the 
District’s recent agreement to purchase a $3 million , 5-acre parcel on Oak Park 
Boulevard, adjacent to Pleasant Hill Middle School, for future park development. 
 
 
Separately, our residents are submitting to have the sphere of influence for our area 
reviewed and changed from Pleasant Hill to  Lafayette.  We support this effort 



wholeheartedly, and also believe this is a change that should have been made many 
years ago, probably when the school district in this area was changed. 
 
We understand that there is a financial downside to removing our constituents from 
the District.  That said, there may be no better time than now to separate., and 
keeping us in the district just because provide money, but do not use the facilities, is 
fundamentally unfair.  We note that the District has operated at a significant surplus 
for 5 years in a row, ending the most recent year with a $400,000 surplus and an 
unheard of A+ credit rating from Standard Poor’s.  
 
We read the report by Burr Consulting from the last time a district review was 
undertaken.  We noted that the consultant called out “In areas where PHRPD 
boundaries overlap city boundaries there would appear to be a duplication of 
services, as both PHRPD and the cities of Lafayette and Walnut Creek provide park 
and recreation services” and that different boundary options were considered, 
including the exclusion of Lafayette residents from the district.  Based on the report, 
it appears that the primary reason for not separating Lafayette from the district is 
the adjacency of Brookwood Park to Lafayette.   More than once, the report indicates 
that “residents in this area visit the park frequently due to the proximity”.  While the 
adjacency is undeniable, very few residents use the park.  It is aging, with no 
investment made in over 15 years (with exception of the installation of 2 port-a-
potties from Brookwood Park’s portion of the Measure E funds), and, most 
importantly,  it is poorly located.  The park is at the corner of two very busy streets, 
Taylor Blvd and Withers Avenue.  There are very few sidewalks in proximity to the 
park, so getting to the park is treacherous.  From our observations over the past 
several years, the park is scantily utilized except for occasional dog walkers from the 
immediate (< 50 home) neighborhood.   There are many options here, but none of 
them should fairly ask the citizens of Lafayette to pay  $50,000 -$100,000 per year 
so a small number of dog walkers can use Brookwood Park.   If separated, we would 
hope to work with the District to find a more equitable funding solution for ongoing 
maintenance at Brookwood Park. 
 
Again, on behalf of the Lafayette city and county residents of Reliez Valley, we kindly 
and respectfully ask for separation from the Pleasant Hill Parks and Recreation 
District.  We are simply not connected to the District in vision, strategy, recreational 
facilities and services and do not share the view that District should be 
concentrically focused on Pleasant Hill with us as a part of the District.  While it 
might have made sense for our neighborhood to belong to the district in the past, 
that is simply not the case any longer, and has become, financially, heavily 
burdensome and fundamentally unfair. 
 
Thank you for you consideration. 
 
 
 
Respectfully, Lafayette City & County Residents and District Members, 



 

Electronically signed by: 
 
Shira Abel     Tom Barber   
 
Roger Chelemedos    Yumi Chelemedos 
 
Franca Del Ponte    Dave Dorian 
 
Rachel Dreyer    Tom Dreyer     
 
Brian Dunton    Shawna Dunton   
 
Chris Evans     Lindy Evans   
 
John Hemmenway    Kathy Hemmenway 
 
Leonora Holmes    Neil Holmes 
 
Hayes Hollar     Heidi Keely       
 
Rick Keely     Rosemary Kirbach  
 
Raj Krishna     Rupy Krishna     
 
Lynda Lurie     Cathy McCarthy     
 
Jack McCarthy    Maria Nelson     
 
Matt Nelson     Dan O’Toole      
 
Stephanie O’Toole    Erin Park     
   
April Raffel     Robert Raffel 
 
Ashley Stevens    Mike Stevens 
 
Pete Stevens     Penny Stevens 
 
Deborah Warren    Fred Warren 
 
Jocelyn Werner    Peter Werner 



brating 70 Years. of Play! 
By Michelle Lacy

eral Manager, Pleasant HUI Recreation & Park District

HIOIIYNewY�r! 

teaavto celebrate with us! On January 
Rec & Park District officially turns 

0 years old ahd·we have lots of plans in 
wnnK to celebrate this exciting anni"." 

milestone! Watch for fun virtual and 
n..nAttnn (when allowed) ·commemorative 

acovmes an year K>ng, kicking .off with a vir-

nn,uorsa,y Cake Bake-Off and other 

.N1rTtv1:au celebrations in.Janl�ary and 

�"""'�• ft'Mll'I•� trivia contests in February� Al 

�rtidpate! Visit our� 

sle.�illrec.com or fol 

U:lrK-�cebook, lnstagram 

70th anniversary 

About Pleasant�Hill Rec & Park District 
Established on January 19, 1951, Pleasant 
Hill Recreation & Park District was formed 
by the citizens who valued parl<s and recre
ational opportunities.for all people in their 

community. Rec & Park became a special 
d'-----' 

open Sl)a(e,.and recreation programs and 

events throughout� community.� 

the count: 

been 

manyof 

Aslon 
wewoi; 

for prod 

past·

seemtc 
new, 



April 14, 2021 (Agenda) 

Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission 
40 Muir Road, 1st Floor 
Martinez, CA 94553 

Proposed FY 2021-22 LAFCO Budget 

Dear Members of the Commission: 

The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (CKH Act) 
establishes a specific process for preparing and adopting LAFCO’s budget. Government Code 
§56381 provides that the Commission shall annually adopt a proposed budget by May 1 and final
budget by June 15, following noticed public hearings. This report presents the proposed budget
and work plan for FY 2021-22.

BUDGET SUMMARY: The proposed FY 2021-22 budget (attached) includes appropriations 
totaling $856,248 and reflects an overall decrease of approximately 14% as compared to the FY 
2020-21 budget. The decrease is primarily attributable to reduced employee benefit and retirement 
costs personnel costs, cost savings in several services & supplies accounts, and proposed 
reductions in Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) prefunding and the contingency reserve.  

Included in the total appropriations for FY 2021-22 are annual pre-funding contributions of 
$25,000 to fund LAFCO’s OPEB liability and $30,000 to fund LAFCO’s retirement liability 
(Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association – CCCERA), along with an $80,000 
contingency reserve fund.  It is recommended that the Commission retain the annual $30,000 
CCCERA funding, reduce the OPEB pre-funding from $40,000 to $25,000 as LAFCO is over 80% 
funded as reflected in the most recent actuarial valuation. It is also recommended that the 
Commission retain a 10% contingency reserve of 80,000 pursuant to Commission policy.  Details 
regarding expenditures and revenues are presented below. 

EXPENDITURES: The expenditure portion of the budget is divided into three main categories: 
Salaries & Benefits, Services & Supplies, and Contingency/Liability. A summary of expenditures 
and variances is provided below. 

Salaries & Benefits 
The FY 2021-22 staffing level includes one full-time Executive Officer (EO) and one half-time 
Executive Assistant/LAFCO Clerk (Clerk). As proposed, the FY 2021-22 budget retains the 
current staffing level.  LAFCO staff is supplemented with use of consultants and County services. 

April 14, 2021
Agenda Item 8



P a g e  | 2 
 

The proposed FY 2021-22 Salaries & Benefits account totals $380,045, reflecting a 1.8% as 
compared to the FY 2020-21 budget.    

Regarding the FY 2020-21 budget year-end estimates, we note that the year-end estimate for 
Salaries & Benefits is lower than the budgeted amount. This is due to anticipated savings in FICA, 
retirement, and employee group insurance.    

LAFCO is supported by private and public service providers on an as-needed basis. The County 
provides fiscal, drafting, mapping/GIS and legal services. Also, LAFCO contracts with private 
firms for website maintenance, financial auditing, environmental planning, and to assist with 
Municipal Service Reviews (MSRs) and special studies. The FY 2021-22 budget assumes the 
continuation of these contract services as reflected in the Services & Supplies accounts. 

Services & Supplies 
The Services & Supplies account includes funding for various services, programs and projects 
including administrative (e.g., office, insurance, rent, utilities, equipment/systems, training, 
memberships, etc.), contract services (assessor, auditing, GIS, legal, planning, website, etc.), and 
programs/projects (e.g., MSRs, special studies, etc.). 

The proposed FY 2021-22 Services & Supplies account totals $341,203 and reflects a decrease of 
22% as compared to the FY 2020-21 budget. LAFCO anticipate reductions in several accounts 
including communications/equipment, planning, legal, special studies, and data processing.  

Regarding the FY 2020-21 adopted budget compared to year-end estimates, we anticipate savings 
in several accounts (i.e., Office Expense, Minor Computer Equipment, Employee Travel, Legal, 
MSRs, Special Studies, Data Processing Services, and Commissioner Training). There were no 
significant cost overruns or unanticipated costs.  

Contingency Reserve Fund 
Each year, the Commission appropriates funds for unanticipated expenses (i.e., special studies, 
potential litigation, etc.). The Commission’s policy provides that “the annual budget shall include 
a contingency reserve (i.e., 10% of budget) as determined by the Commission.  Funds budgeted in 
the contingency reserve shall not be used or transferred to any other expense account without 
prior approval of the Commission.” No contingency funds have been used this fiscal year. The FY 
2021-22 budget, as proposed, includes an $80,000 contingency reserve fund in accordance with 
the Commission’s policy.   
 
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)  
Since FY 2011-12, LAFCO has included in its budget an annual expense to pre-fund its OPEB 
liability. The FY 2011-12 through FY 2014-15 budgets included an appropriation of $10,000 per 
year to fund this liability. Following LAFCO’s first actuarial valuation in 2014, the Commission 
increased its annual appropriation to $40,000. The most recent GASB report (measurement period 
7/1/19 to 6/30/20) shows LAFCO’s net OPEB liability is $67,463, and that LAFCO is over 80% 
funded.  In consultation with LAFCO’s actuarial and financial auditor, t is recommended that 
LAFCO reduce its annual OPEB pre-funding from $40,000 to $25,000. Also included in the FY 
2021-22 budget is funding for an actuarial valuation.  

Pre-funding Retirement Liability (CCCERA) 
In FY 2017-18, LAFCO begin prepaying a portion of its unfunded retirement liability to have a 
better contribution rate. As in prior years, the FY 2021-22 budget includes a $30,000 contribution 



P a g e  | 3 
 

to fund LAFCO’s unfunded retirement liability. The most recent CCCERA Contribution Rate 
Report (12/31/19 Valuation) indicates LAFCO’s Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) 
is $82,000. LAFCO should reevaluate its liability in the next CCCERA report and consider 
reducing its annual prepayment.  
 
LAFCO entered into an agreement with CCCERA and CCCERA’s actuary determines the liability 
and impact of pay down. The payments made to CCCERA are added to fiduciary plan assets and 
earn investment income like all other assets. CCCERA does not require a separate trust like an 
OPEB irrevocable trust because CCCERA, by definition, is a fiduciary trust fund. CCCERA’s 
actuary tracks payments made against the LAFCO liability, which will reduce the liability and 
annual contributions from employer and employees because the liability is decreasing. Every three 
years, an experience is performed to confirm if the valuation and assumptions used to determine 
the liability are on track and accurate. 

REVENUES 
Revenues consist primarily of apportionments received from the County, cities, and independent 
special districts with each group paying one-third of the net operating LAFCO budget. The city 
and district shares are prorated based on general revenues reported to the State Controller. Other 
revenues include application fees, available year-end fund balance, and miscellaneous revenue 
(e.g., interest earnings).  

Application Charges and Other Revenues 
The FY 2020-21 budget included an anticipated $25,000 in application fees based on a multi-year 
historical average. It is projected that LAFCO will receive approximately $16,000 in application 
fees in the current fiscal year, which less than anticipated as application activity has recently 
declined. The proposed FY 2021-22 budget includes $20,000 in anticipated application fees.   

Fund Balance 
Government Code §56381(c) provides: “If at the end of the fiscal year, the Commission has funds 
in excess of what it needs, the Commission may retain those funds and calculate them into the 
following fiscal year’s budget.” 

The FY 2020-21 fund balance is currently unknown and will be calculated at year end (typically 
by October). However, based on the beginning year fund balance, and projected FY 2020-21 
revenues and expenses, it is estimated that the available fund balance will be over $175,000.  

The LAFCO fund balance, or any portion thereof, can be used to offset the FY 2021-22 revenues, 
thereby reducing contributions from the funding agencies (County, cities, districts); or placed in a 
reserve account, separate from the contingency reserve that is appropriated each year. 

The proposed FY 2021-22 budget provides that, to the extent possible, a portion of fund balance 
be used to offset FY 2021-22 revenues. 

Revenues Received from the County, Cities, and Independent Special Districts 
After processing fees, available fund balance and other miscellaneous revenues, the balance of 
LAFCO’s financial support comes from local governmental agencies. Agency contributions 
represent the most significant LAFCO revenue source. 



P a g e  | 4 
 

The CKH Act requires that the net operational costs of LAFCO be apportioned one-third to the 
County, one-third to the cities, and one-third to the independent special districts. The CKH Act 
describes how the County Auditor is to make the apportionment and collect the revenues once 
LAFCO adopts a Final Budget (Gov. Code §56381). The city and district allocations are based on 
revenues reported to the State Controller and vary year to year.  

As indicated above, the overall budget is expected to decrease by approximately 14%. The 
proposed use of the available fund balance will offset agency contributions for FY 2021-22. The 
amount of revenue from other government agencies required to fund the FY 2020-21 budget was 
$794,882. As proposed, the total amount of revenue from other government agencies needed to 
fund the FY 2021-22 budget is $661,248, reflecting a  16.8% decrease.  

LAFCO RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOMPLISHMENTS & GOALS 
The FY 2021-22 budget schedule provides for public hearings and consideration of a Proposed 
Budget (April 14, 2021) and a Final Budget (June 9, 2021). The time between these Commission 
actions is to allow for review and comment by local agencies, the public other interested parties, 
as well as to update budget information.   

In accordance with the work plan and proposed budget, staff provides a summary of LAFCO 
responsibilities, accomplishments as follows. 

Major LAFCO Responsibilities  
LAFCO receives its authority and statutory responsibilities from the CKH Act. Included among 
LAFCO’s major responsibilities are: 

• Act on proposals for changes of organization and reorganizations (i.e., annexations/ detachments, 
out of agency service extensions, incorporations, consolidations/mergers, district formations/ 
dissolutions, etc.)  

• Establish, review and update spheres of influence (SOIs) for cities and special districts 
• Conduct MSRs prior to or in conjunction with establishing or updating SOIs 
• Perform special studies relating to services and make recommendations about consolidations, 

mergers, or other governmental changes to improve/enhance services and efficiencies  
• Serve as Responsible or Lead Agency for compliance with CEQA 
• Serve as the conducting authority to conduct protest hearings relating to changes of organization/ 

reorganizations 
• Provide public information about LAFCO and public noticing of pending LAFCO actions 
• Establish and maintain a website 
• Adopt and update written policies and procedures 
• Adopt an annual budget 

 
Highlights of FY 2020-21 
The following is a list of LAFCO’s major goals and accomplishments for FY 2020-21: 
 
Boundary Change and Related Applications 
a. Completed proceedings for five changes of organization/reorganizations and one SOI 

amendment; conducted corresponding public hearings 
b. Received four new applications including two annexations and two out of agency service 

requests 
c. Worked with San Joaquin LAFCO on transfer of jurisdiction  



P a g e  | 5 
 

 
MSRs/SOI Updates 
a. Initiated and released Public Review Draft 2nd round “Parks & Recreation Services” MSR/SOI 

updates covering all 19 cities, four community services districts, three park & recreation 
districts, one regional parks district, and eight county service areas  

b. Hired Planwest Partners, Inc. and initiated 2nd round Cemetery Services MSR/SOI updates 
 

Special Projects/Activities  
a. Issued a Request for Proposals and hired new environmental planning firm (Swale, Inc. and 

Baracco Associates) 
b. Participation in ongoing fire district consolidation study (Contra Costa County Fire Protection 

District, East Contra Costa Fire Protection District, Rodeo Hercules Fire Protection District) 
c. Pending Litigation (Los Medanos Community Health Care District vs. Contra Costa LAFCO) 

 
Administrative and Other Activities  
a. Appointed 2021 LAFCO Chair (Skaredoff) and Vice Chair (Schroder) 
b. Bid farewell to Commissioner Sean Wright  
c. Worked with the CC Mayors Conference on appointment of new city member Edi Birsan  
d. Completed FY 2018-19 financial audit 
e. Initiated update to LAFCO Directory of Local Agencies (underway)  
f. Ongoing website updates 
g. Quarterly budget reports 
h. Updated LAFCO Employee Salary Plan 
i. Completed employee performance review (LAFCO Clerk) 
j. Provided comments on local agency environmental documents 
k. Received updates (Chang Boundary Reorganization) 
l. Submitted position letters on various bills affecting LAFCOs 
m. Participated in and supported CALAFCO 

 
FY 2021-22 Work Plan 
The recommended work plan for FY 2021-22 includes the following activities: 
 
 Complete 2nd round Parks & Recreation Services MSR/SOI updates 
 Complete 2nd round Cemetery Services MSRs/SOI updates  
 Initiate 2nd round MSR/SOI updates covering either resource conservation, mosquito & vector 

control, county service area (CSAs), or other services as determined by the Commission 
 Policy updates (i.e., SOIs, disadvantaged communities, procedures for processing multi-county 

boundary changes, environmental guidelines) 
 Complete FY 2019-20 financial audit  
 Complete annual actuarial valuation  
 Continue to participate in and support CALAFCO 

 
In addition to the above, LAFCO staff will continue ongoing activities including processing 
applications; supporting Commission/Committee meetings; administering the budget; managing 
records, purchasing, and contracts; and performing other administrative activities. Staff will 
facilitate inter-agency communications; conduct education and outreach as needed; participate in 





PROPOSED BUDGET FY 2020-21

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 Year-end FY 2021-22

Approved (Estimated) Proposed

Salaries and Employee Benefits

Permanent Salaries– 1011 208,000$    208,000$    218,000$    

Deferred Comp Cty Contribution - 1015 1,615$    2,040$    2,040$    

FICA- 1042 18,000$    13,684$    15,000$    

Retirement expense- 1044 82,120$    69,278$    72,000$    

Employee Group Insurance- 1060 46,000$    36,869$    40,000$    

Retiree Health Insurance- 1061 30,000$    30,150$    31,700$    

Unemployment Insurance- 1063 150$    218$    230$    

Workers Comp Insurance- 1070 1,115$    1,075$    

Total Salaries and Benefits 387,000$    360,239$    380,045$    

Services and Supplies

Office Expense- 2100 4,000$    1,367$    4,000$    

Publications -2102 25$    144$    250$    

Postage -2103 1,800$    2,971$    1,800$    

Communications - 2110 2,842$    1,813$    2,200$    

Tele Exchange Services 2111 2,382$    1,618$    2,000$    

Minor Furniture/Equipment - 2131 -$     - -

Minor Comp Equipment - 2132 2,000$    1,500$    1,800$    

Pubs & Legal Notices 2190 3,800$    1,847$    2,100$    

Memberships - 2200 12,373$    12,344$    12,501$    

Rents & Leases - 2250 (copier) 5,600$    5,031$    5,600$    

Computer Software - 2251 1,000$    1,176$    1,000$    

Bldg Occupancy Costs - 2262 24,569$    22,488$    20,512$    

Bldg Life Cycle Costs - 2265 1,095$    1,113$    1,200$    

Bldg Maintennace - 2284 500$    1,019$    1,000$    

Auto Mileage Emp. – 2301 500$    - 500$    

Other Travel Employees – 2303 11,900$    7,200$    13,000$    

Prof & Spec Services – 2310 300,113$   137,245$   215,940$   

 Assessor 8,000$    7,971$    8,000$    

 Financial Audit 8,700$    5,233$    8,700$    

     GIS/Mapping 12,000$    8,194$    12,000$    

 Legal 60,000$    29,994$    40,000$    

 MSRs 150,000$    81,153$    130,000$    

 Planning 25,000$    3,000$    10,000$    

 Special Projects (document imaging) 3,673$    - 2,000$    

 Misc Investment Services/CCCERA Fees 240$    200$    240$    

 Special Studies/Workshop/Actuarial Valuation 32,500$    1,500$    5,000$    

Contracted Temp Help - 2314 (Web) 3,060$    3,060$    3,060$    

Data Processing Services - 2315 19,700$    6,179$    13,000$    

Data Processing Security - 2326 250$    - 250$    

Courier - 2331 1,000$    894$    1,000$    

Telcomm Rents, Leases, Labor - 2335 120$    110$    120$    

Other Inter-Dept Costs - 2340 599$    - 400$    

Liability/E&O Insurance - 2360 6,854$    6,854$    6,170$    

Commission Training/Registration/Stipends - 2467 31,000$    13,200$    31,000$    

NOD/NOE Filings - 2490 800$    550$    800$    

Total Services & Supplies 437,882$    229,723$    341,203$    

Total Expenditures 824,882$    589,962$    721,248$    

Contingency Reserve 100,000$    80,000$    

OPEB Trust 40,000$    40,000$    25,000$    

CCCERA Pre-Fund 30,000$    30,000$    30,000$    

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 994,882$    659,962$    856,248$    

TOTAL REVENUES 994,882$    985,576$    856,248$    

 Agency contributions - 9500 & 9800 794,882$    794,882$    661,248$    

 Application & other revenues 25,000$    15,694$    20,000$    

 Fund Balance 175,000$    175,000$    175,000$    

Attachment



April 14, 2021 

Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission 
40 Muir Road, 1st Floor 
Martinez, CA 94553 

Legislative Report - Update and Position Letter 

Dear Members of the Commission: 

This year marks the first year of a two-year legislative session in Sacramento. Due to COVID-19, 
the Legislature has largely been shut down since March 2020. The Legislature is currently in 
session and the public can participate via teleconference. 

The deadline to introduce new bills was February 19, 2021.  CALAFCO is currently tracking 33 
bills as shown on the attached report (Attachment 1). The 2021 Legislative calendar notes that the 
last day for each house to pass bills is September 10, 2021; and the last day for the Governor to 
sign/veto bills is October 10, 2021.  

CALAFCO is sponsoring its annual omnibus AB 1581 Assembly Local Government Committee 
(ALGC) which includes technical changes to the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government 
Reorganization Act of 2000. On March 18th, CALAFCO issued a call for legislative action 
requesting that each LAFCO send a letter of support for the AB 1581 by April 22, 2021 Attached 
please find the draft letter for the Commission’s consideration (Attachment 2).     

One of the bills CALAFCO is tracking is AB 903 (Frazier) Los Medanos Community Healthcare 
District (LMCHD). This bill would dissolve LMCHD and name Contra Costa County as the 
successor agency. As of this writing, CALAFCO and  California Special Districts Association 
have “watch” positions on this bill, and the Association of California Healthcare Districts has not 
yet taken a position. AB 903 was referred to the ALGC.  

Contra Costa County has taken a support position on AB 903.  Given the Commission’s prior 
action to dissolve LMCHD, LAFCO staff and the LAFCO Chair submitted a letter supporting AB 
903 (Attachment 3) due to time sensitivity.  The Assembly Local Government Committee will 
hold a hearing on AB 903 on April 14, 2021.    

April 14, 2021
Agenda Item 9





CALAFCO Daily Legislative Report
as of Wednesday, April 07, 2021

  1

  AB 339    (Lee D)   State and local government: open meetings. 
Current Text: Introduced: 1/28/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 1/28/2021
Status: 1/29/2021-From printer. May be heard in committee February 28.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:

 Current law requires all meetings, as defined, of a house of the Legislature or a committee thereof
to be open and public, and requires all persons to be permitted to attend the meetings, except as
specified. This bill would require all meetings, including gatherings using teleconference
technology, to include an opportunity for all persons to attend via a call-in option or an internet-
based service option that provides closed captioning services and requires both a call-in and an
internet-based service option to be provided to the public.
Attachments:
AB 339 Fact Sheet

Position:  Watch
Subject:  Other
CALAFCO Comments:  This bill allows for continued remote participant in local (and state)
hearings/meetings while adding requirements for both call-in and internet service based options for
all public meetings; requires providing closed caption services; and requires agencies to provide
language access services. 

The bill requires teleconferenced meetings to include an in-person public comment opportunity that
creates a place where members of the public can gather at a designated site to give public
comment (barring any in-person restrictions). Further, the bill requires the agenda and instructions
for accessing the meeting to be translated into all languages for which 5% of the population in the
area governed by the local agency is a speaker. 

The bill adds requirements for local agencies to employ a sufficient amount of qualified bilingual
people to provide translation services during the meeting in the language of the non-English
speaking person (consistent with all languages for which 5% of the population in the area governed
by the local agency speak). 

The bill adds similar requirements for any state legislative body. All of these new requirements are
unfunded mandates. 

This bill is sponsored by the Leadership Counsel for Justice and Accountability. A fact sheet is
posted in the tracking section of the bill.

  AB 361    (Rivas, Robert  D)   Open meetings: local agencies: teleconferences. 
Current Text: Amended: 4/6/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/1/2021
Last Amended: 4/6/2021
Status: 4/6/2021-From committee chair, with author's amendments: Amend, and re-refer to Com.
on L. GOV. Read second time and amended.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:

 Would authorize a local agency to use teleconferencing without complying with the
teleconferencing requirements imposed by the Ralph M. Brown Act when a legislative body of a
local agency holds a meeting for the purpose of declaring or ratifying a local emergency, during a
declared state of emergency or local emergency, as those terms are defined, when state or local
health officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing, and during a
declared local emergency provided the legislative body makes certain determinations by majority

Attachment 1

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=JnpieuTYqgCsRnXkzBd6b8e5%2bqNbEAW66U8wd6rA2u53%2bu79uLzmq04I741kFa%2fe
https://a25.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0301-0350/ab_339_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0301-0350/ab_339_99_I_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=v0USgZTz5Fn092PrDNnmCybFHKfncPaZmvi2WCanPdI%3d
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=vYrDgpBbSWLs56sSyyWdwofScFd%2f6E1lXWMmxtTzsSMA9NTG%2bl1KVwEfdNiPjVVF
https://a30.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0351-0400/ab_361_98_A_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0351-0400/ab_361_98_A_bill.pdf


vote. The bill would require legislative bodies that hold teleconferenced meetings under these
abbreviated teleconferencing procedures to give notice of the meeting and post agendas, as
described, to allow members of the public to access the meeting and address the legislative body,
to give notice of the means by which members of the public may access the meeting and offer
public comment.
Attachments:

 AB 361 Fact Sheet

Position:  Watch
Subject:  Brown Act
CALAFCO Comments:  Executive Order No. N-29-20 suspends the Ralph M. Brown Act's
requirements for teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic provided that certain
requirements are met (noticing, public access, etc.). This bill allows a local agency to conduct
meetings using teleconference methods without complying with certain teleconferencing
requirements if they are meeting for the purposes of declaring or ratifying a local emergency,
during a declared state or local emergency (as defined in statute), when state or local health
officials have imposed or recommended certain measures to promote social distancing, and during
a declared local emergency provided the legislative body makes certain determinations by majority
vote. 

The legislative body must give notice of the meeting and post agendas to allow members of the
public to access the meeting and address the legislative body, offer public comment, and protect
rights of the parties and public appearing before the legislative body. The bill also rescinds the
requirement that at least a quorum of the body must meet within the jurisdictional boundaries of
the agency under these circumstances when meeting via telecon. 

This bill is sponsored by the CA Special Districts Association (CSDA). According to CSDA,
amendments are pending that will: address concerns of access mentioned throughout the fact
sheet (e.g., call-in or internet-based access), language prohibiting local agencies from requiring
that public comments be submitted in advance, adding a 30-day sunset provision, and addressing
technological disruptions, limiting the applicability of the bill's provisions to local emergencies
proclaimed by counties (i.e., not cities) and technical language about the immediacy of the health
threats covered by the bill. The bill is not marked fiscal. A fact sheet is posted in the tracking
section of the bill.

  AB 703    (Rubio, Blanca D)   Open meetings: local agencies: teleconferences.  
Current Text: Introduced: 2/16/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/16/2021
Status: 2/25/2021-Referred to Com. on L. GOV.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:

 Current law, by Executive Order N-29-20, suspends the Ralph M. Brown Act’s requirements for
teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic, provided that notice requirements are met, the
ability of the public to observe and comment is preserved, as specified, and that a local agency
permitting teleconferencing have a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for
reasonable accommodation for individuals with disabilities, as specified. This bill would remove the
requirements of the act particular to teleconferencing and allow for teleconferencing subject to
existing provisions regarding the posting of notice of an agenda and the ability of the public to
observe the meeting and provide public comment. The bill would require that, in each instance in
which notice of the time of the teleconferenced meeting is otherwise given or the agenda for the
meeting is otherwise posted, the local agency also give notice of the means by which members of
the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment and that the legislative body have
and implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable
accommodation for individuals with disabilities, consistent with the federal Americans with
Disabilities Act, as provided.

Position:  Watch
Subject:  Brown Act
CALAFCO Comments:  As introduced, the bill removes the requirement to post agendas at all
teleconference meeting locations and having to identify all telecon locations in the notice and
agenda for the meeting. The bill explicitly requires a local agency to give notice to the public how
they can observe the meeting and offer public comment. It further required the local agency to
respond to requests for reasonable ADA accommodation requests. The bill also removes certain

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=v0USgZTz5Fn092PrDNnmC%2frtrdMiUsHalN93Ld%2fC3Ac%3d
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=%2fMAkZXC7KIxfJHd5dPWbFHk5bYVM4%2fQ90L6WwtBDcpYOPBk%2fc3kSFh08YB8ncCSU
https://a48.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0701-0750/ab_703_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0701-0750/ab_703_99_I_bill.pdf


provisions relating to the telecon meeting of a health authority. 

It is CALAFCO's understanding that the author is working with Assm. Rivas (AB 361) and the
Assembly Local Government Committee on amendments and possibly joining the two bills.
Amendments are not yet available so CALAFCO will keep a watch on the bill until those are
available. 

The bill is sponsored by Three Valleys Municipal Water Agency.

  AB 1581    (Committee on Local Government)   Local government: omnibus.  
Current Text: Introduced: 3/9/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 3/9/2021
Status: 3/11/2021-Referred to Com. on L. GOV.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:

 Current law requires a local agency formation commission to develop and determine the sphere of
influence of each city and each special district within the county and enact policies designed to
promote the logical and orderly development of areas within each sphere. Current law requires the
commission, in order to prepare and update spheres of influence in accordance with this
requirement, to conduct a service review of the municipal services provided in the county or other
appropriate area designated by the commission, as specified. Current law requires the commission
to adopt, amend, or revise spheres of influence after a public hearing called and held for that
purpose. This bill would revise and recast that provision to provide that the commission is required
to adopt, amend, or update spheres of influence after a public hearing called and held for that
purpose.
Attachments:
LAFCo Support letter template
CALAFCO Support letter

Position:  Sponsor
Subject:  CKH General Procedures
CALAFCO Comments:  This is the annual ALGC Omnibus bill which CALAFCO sponsors. Sections
amended are: 56133(a) and (f); 56325.1 (renumbered to 56331.4); 56427; and 56879(a). 

Several other non-substantive amendments to CKH are pending and the bill will be amended to
reflect those upon completion of the full stakeholder review process.

  SB 810    (Committee on Governance and Finance)   Validations.  
Current Text: Introduced: 2/23/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/23/2021
Status: 3/22/2021-Read third time. Urgency clause adopted. Passed. (Ayes 37. Noes 0.) Ordered
to the Assembly. In Assembly. Read first time. Held at Desk.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:
This bill would enact the First Validating Act of 2021, which would validate the organization,
boundaries, acts, proceedings, and bonds of the state and counties, cities, and specified districts,
agencies, and entities.
Attachments:

 CALAFCO Support Letter March 2021

Position:  Support
Subject:  Other
CALAFCO Comments:  These are the annual validating Acts.

  SB 811    (Committee on Governance and Finance)   Validations.  
Current Text: Introduced: 2/23/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/23/2021
Status: 3/22/2021-Read third time. Urgency clause adopted. Passed. (Ayes 37. Noes 0.) Ordered
to the Assembly. In Assembly. Read first time. Held at Desk.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=5mLCPlMWk5b37R5Tr9poGeQ6sajTNm5IXpgXKzEitcQpX0o2rFk%2blZRbwdvKDjGc
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_1551-1600/ab_1581_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_1551-1600/ab_1581_99_I_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=nu5iGh8xZRJk9XBxr%2b1N9naSwywiZ7qnSQIfwWAJfcY%3d
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=nu5iGh8xZRJk9XBxr%2b1N9l5oM1Jgb3UFfuK2L32L%2bhw%3d
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=7Vr8PeECzq5EiFHgH2QGwNbBWPFyG36t4icGTwuqvDsHoQp2uYwGhsLOv4NYxBqV
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0801-0850/sb_810_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0801-0850/sb_810_99_I_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=SBkGmcqJTxHNloZFpuxHVQDSYqljw74wPIzz7GpRIKk%3d
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=qBH%2bC6PBUHwS%2bTcFyiGqj8hxMiorfwaFp1G2lhQcOlC1rhDGkVZmqn5xdIVfRa0D
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0801-0850/sb_811_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0801-0850/sb_811_99_I_bill.pdf


Summary:
This bill would enact the Second Validating Act of 2021, which would validate the organization,
boundaries, acts, proceedings, and bonds of the state and counties, cities, and specified districts,
agencies, and entities.
Attachments:

 CALAFCO Support Letter March 2021

Position:  Support
Subject:  Other
CALAFCO Comments:  These are the annual validating Acts.

  SB 812    (Committee on Governance and Finance)   Validations.  
Current Text: Introduced: 2/23/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/23/2021
Status: 3/22/2021-Read third time. Passed. (Ayes 37. Noes 0.) Ordered to the Assembly. In
Assembly. Read first time. Held at Desk.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:

 This bill would enact the Third Validating Act of 2021, which would validate the organization,
boundaries, acts, proceedings, and bonds of the state and counties, cities, and specified districts,
agencies, and entities.
Attachments:
CALAFCO Support Letter March 2021

Position:  Support
Subject:  Other
CALAFCO Comments:  These are the annual validating Acts.

  2

  AB 1195    (Garcia, Cristina D)   Drinking water.  
Current Text: Amended: 4/6/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/18/2021
Last Amended: 4/6/2021
Status: 4/6/2021-From committee chair, with author's amendments: Amend, and re-refer to Com.
on L. GOV. Read second time and amended.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:

 Current law establishes the Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund in the State Treasury to help
water systems provide an adequate and affordable supply of safe drinking water in both the near
and long terms. Current law authorizes the state board to provide for the deposit into the fund of
certain moneys and continuously appropriates the moneys in the fund to the state board for
grants, loans, contracts, or services to assist eligible recipients. This bill would prohibit, once an
operator of a public water system exercises water rights for the benefit of the public water system,
those surface water rights or groundwater rights from being severed or otherwise separated from
the public water system.
Attachments:
AB 1195 Fact Sheet

Position:  Watch
Subject:  Water
CALAFCO Comments:  AB 1195 creates the Southern Los Angeles County Regional Water Agency,
intended to provide a framework for regional water collaboration that reduces conflict and provides
a public agency that can take over failing water systems. The bill does a number of things
including: Authorizes the Regional Agency to do the full range of activities related to water, from
operating wholesale and retail public water systems to reducing stormwater pollution and cleaning
up groundwater contamination; establishes a board of directors made up of locally elected council
members (including COG appointed representatives); and authorizes the Regional Agency to draw
revenues from the customers for the public water systems it operates and the services it provides,
which may include water rates, charges, fees, or parcel charges. The bill specifies the boundaries of

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=SBkGmcqJTxHNloZFpuxHVffFpNFvvFgaBWPIgqTH9Qs%3d
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=BB38K33UzoOJdxwbCZHHJ%2bO4aN9SKtD1i%2fU4Dls2bNE%2fwG0YjcBb3FgxMZAqaHl7
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0801-0850/sb_812_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0801-0850/sb_812_99_I_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=SBkGmcqJTxHNloZFpuxHVSjib5MHVVqzzEv%2bYAjrQoU%3d
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=cdgrfyiAv1NlxzZ1Z4aqGrjiLfPQVEWhcSXU8aqH0k4YQSnpkynTMl09%2buKUBBce
https://a58.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_1151-1200/ab_1195_98_A_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_1151-1200/ab_1195_98_A_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=v0USgZTz5Fn092PrDNnmC9Nol2T%2bM5oz06PajjD4%2fbc%3d


the new Agency, as well as the authority and powers, and governance structure. 

In it's current form, this is a special legislation Agency without LAFCo involvement in the formation.
CALAFCO and LA LAFCo are working to find out what local entities were involved in the discussions
of this legislation and what the intended and unintended impacts/consequences this bill will have. 

The bill is author-sponsored and we understand there is currently no funding source. A fact sheet is
posted in the tracking section of the bill. 

  AB 1250    (Calderon D)   Water and sewer system corporations: consolidation of service.  
Current Text: Introduced: 2/19/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/19/2021
Status: 3/4/2021-Referred to Coms. on E.S. & T.M. and U. & E.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Calendar:

 4/7/2021  9 a.m. - State Capitol, Room 4202  ASSEMBLY ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY AND TOXIC
MATERIALS, QUIRK, Chair

 Summary:
The California Safe Drinking Water Act, provides for the operation of public water systems and
imposes on the State Water Resources Control Board related regulatory responsibilities and duties.
Current law authorizes the state board to order consolidation of public water systems where a
public water system or state small water system serving a disadvantaged community consistently
fails to provide an adequate supply of safe drinking water, as provided. This bill, the Consolidation
for Safe Drinking Water Act of 2021, would authorize a water or sewer system corporation to file an
application and obtain approval from the commission through an order authorizing the water or
sewer system corporation to consolidate with a public water system or state small water system.
The bill would require the commission to approve or deny the application within 8 months, except
as provided.
Attachments:

 AB 1250 Fact Sheet 2021

Position:  Watch
Subject:  Municipal Services, Water
CALAFCO Comments:  The intent of the bill is to prescribe response timelines for the PUC in
terms of processing consolidations. This bill creates the Consolidation for Safe Drinking Water Act
of 2021. The bill allows a water or sewer corp to file an application with the Public Utilities
Commission (PUC) to approval to consolidate with a public or state small system. The bill requires
the PUC to act on the application within 8 months of receipt. If a consolidation is valued at $5
million or less, the water or sewer corp can file an advise letter and get the PUC approval via
resolution. In this instance, the PUC has 120 days to act on the request. The bill also give the PUC
authority to designate a different procedure to request consolidation for systems valued less than
$5M. 

The bill requires the PUC to prioritize consolidation requests based on compliance records and
requires the entity requesting consolidation to conduct a thorough public process. 

The bill is sponsored by the California Water Association and does not have an impact on LAFCos.
Nevertheless, CALAFCO will keep a watch on the bill. A fact sheet is posted in the tracking section
of the bill.

  AB 1295    (Muratsuchi D)   Residential development agreements: very high fire risk areas.  
Current Text: Introduced: 2/19/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/19/2021
Status: 3/4/2021-Referred to Coms. on L. GOV. and H. & C.D.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:

 Current law requires the Director of Forestry and Fire Protection to identify areas in the state as
very high fire hazard severity zones based on the severity of fire hazard that is expected to prevail
in those areas, as specified, and requires each local agency to designate, by ordinance, the very
high fire hazard severity zones in its jurisdiction. Current law additionally requires the director to
classify lands within state responsibility areas into fire hazard severity zones. This bill, beginning on
or after January 1, 2022, would prohibit the legislative body of a city or county from entering into a

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=koSxmaa2OwQd8dKN46TI88FWt9arU1UnggOlUs%2fbuU7LLZbGwrhbY3yrLE1TES9L
https://a57.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_1201-1250/ab_1250_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_1201-1250/ab_1250_99_I_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=T1bWUG3EMelADIIiGl9pZTJ%2bIdryBKV%2bcLEAzNKfwrI%3d
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=MfYqT%2ffCEIqiGE43ynabkhMY%2bbupDNJQTyJR7sfauzUzN5tjHBvRpqHv75XS5aFx
https://a66.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_1251-1300/ab_1295_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_1251-1300/ab_1295_99_I_bill.pdf


residential development agreement for property located in a very high fire risk area. The bill would
define “very high fire risk area” for these purposes to mean a very high fire hazard severity zone
designated by a local agency or a fire hazard severity zone classified by the director.
Attachments:

 AB 1295 Fact Sheet

Position:  Watch
Subject:  Growth Management, Planning
CALAFCO Comments:  This bill prohibits a city or county from entering into a residential
development agreement for property located within a very high fire risk area as of 1-1-2022. 

This bill appears similar to SB 55 (Stern) except: (1) This bill explicitly calls out residential
development, whereas SB 55 addresses new development (housing, commercial, retail or
industrial) in a very high fire hazard severity zone; and (2) SB 55 adds a state responsibility area. 

The bill is not marked fiscal. This is an author-sponsored bill and a fact sheet is posted in the
tracking section of the bill.

  SB 55    (Stern D)   Very high fire hazard severity zone: state responsibility area: development
prohibition: supplemental height and density bonuses.  

Current Text: Amended: 4/5/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 12/7/2020
Last Amended: 4/5/2021
Status: 4/5/2021-From committee with author's amendments. Read second time and amended.
Re-referred to Com. on GOV. & F.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:
Would, in furtherance of specified state housing production, sustainability communities strategies,
greenhouse gas reduction, and wildfire mitigation goals, prohibit the creation or approval of a new
development, as defined, in a very high fire hazard severity zone or a state responsibility area
unless there is substantial evidence that the local agency has adopted a comprehensive, necessary,
and appropriate wildfire prevention and community hardening strategy to mitigate significant risks
of loss, injury, or death, as specified. By imposing new duties on local governments with respect to
the approval of new developments in very high fire hazard severity zones and state responsibility
areas, this bill would impose a state-mandated local program.
Attachments:

 SB 55 Fact Sheet

Position:  Watch
Subject:  Growth Management, Planning
CALAFCO Comments:  This bill prohibits the creation or approval of a new development (housing,
commercial, retail or industrial) in a very high fire hazard severity zone or a state responsibility
area. The bill is author-sponsored and imposes unfunded mandates. A fact sheet is posted in the
tracking section of the bill. 

This bill appears similar to AB 1295 (Muratsuchi) except this bill appears to be broader in scope in
terms of the type of development prohibited and includes a state responsibility area, whereas AB
1295 only addresses residential development in a very high fire risk area. 

  SB 403    (Gonzalez D)   Drinking water: consolidation.  
Current Text: Introduced: 2/12/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/12/2021
Status: 3/16/2021-From committee: Do pass and re-refer to Com. on GOV. & F. (Ayes 5. Noes 1.)
(March 15). Re-referred to Com. on GOV. & F.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:

 The California Safe Drinking Water Act authorizes the State Water Resources Control Board to order
consolidation with a receiving water system where a public water system or a state small water
system, serving a disadvantaged community, consistently fails to provide an adequate supply of
safe drinking water or where a disadvantaged community is substantially reliant on domestic wells
that consistently fail to provide an adequate supply of safe drinking water. This bill would authorize

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=JvsP26GdAnKLjwCn8rjS0j6XYejjVulza0Al0Si0Fvs%3d
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=9C08dqurHiktyu2sUB%2foS%2bVYYwu0va0p2EBYKaF%2f7cIdmEIP1H52Mm0KKYg1G9aN
http://sd27.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0051-0100/sb_55_98_A_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0051-0100/sb_55_98_A_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=v0USgZTz5Fn092PrDNnmC%2fPDgV9nCJK9gbpZpNlmjyM%3d
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=nC9PDRdCI8a8092vw8%2bXo1EJUuXFUOxG%2fasBWMEXVtke7L5z%2b1b2v5sgmerhdjN%2f
https://sd33.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0401-0450/sb_403_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0401-0450/sb_403_99_I_bill.pdf


the state board to also order consolidation where a water system serving a disadvantaged
community is at risk of failing to provide an adequate supply of safe drinking water or where a
disadvantaged community is substantially reliant on domestic wells that are at risk of failing to
provide an adequate supply of safe drinking water.
Attachments:

 SB 403 Fact Sheet 2021

Position:  Oppose unless amended
Subject:  Disadvantaged Communities, Water
CALAFCO Comments:  Current law (Health & Safety Code Section 116682) authorizes the State
Water Resources Control Board (Board) to order consolidation (physical or operational) of a public
water system or state small water system serving a disadvantaged community that consistently
fails to provide an adequate supply of safe drinking water, or a disadvantaged community (in whole
or part) that is substantially reliant on domestic wells that consistently fail to provide an adequate
supply of safe drinking water. This bill would add to that a water system or domestic well(s) that
are at risk of failing to provide an adequate supply of safe drinking water, as determined by the
Board. The bill also requires the Board, before ordering consolidation, to conduct outreach to
ratepayers and residents served by the at-risk system and to consider any petition submitted by
members of a disadvantaged community being served by the at-risk system. 

There appears to be several problems with this bill: (1) The bill does not define "at risk" and there
is no definition of "at risk" currently in H&S Code Sec. 116681; (2) There is a lack of consultation
with GSAs by the State Board when considering ordering consolidation or extension of service; (3)
There is no requirement or even consideration for annexation upon extension of service; and (4)
there does not appear to be a limitation of the number of connections or the extent to which the
system can be extended. 

The bill is co-sponsored by the Leadership Counsel for Justice and Accountability, Clean Water
Action and Community Water Center. A fact sheet is posted in the tracking section of the bill. 

CALAFCO has reached out to the author's office for more information on the bill and to discuss
amendments.

  3

  AB 11    (Ward D)   Climate change: regional climate change authorities.  
Current Text: Amended: 1/21/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 12/7/2020
Last Amended: 1/21/2021
Status: 1/25/2021-Re-referred to Com. on NAT. RES.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:
Would require the Strategic Growth Council, by January 1, 2023, to establish up to 12 regional
climate change authorities to coordinate climate adaptation and mitigation activities in their
regions, and coordinate with other regional climate adaptation autorities, state agencies, and other
relevant stakeholders.
Attachments:

 AB 11 Fact Sheet

Position:  Watch
Subject:  Other
CALAFCO Comments:  As amended on 1/21/21, this bill authorizes/requires the Strategic Growth
Council (SGC) to establish up to 12 regional climate change authorities by January 1, 2023, to
include local agencies and regional stakeholders. The SGC is required to adopt guidelines that: (1)
Define the authority; (2) Include guidelines for establishing an authority via a stakeholder-driven
process; (3) Consult with OPR (and other state authorities) in development of the guidelines and
award annual grants to authorities. 

The bill outlines the regional climate change authorities in summary as: coordination, capacity-
building, and technical assistance activities within their boundaries, promote regional alignment
and assist local agencies in creating and implementing plans developed pursuant to Section 65302
of the Government Code, other federal or state mandates, and programs designed address climate

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=PYTEMlV4J9kR5JTufeh4TSJMVMwuuND2vi%2fx01u7MWI%3d
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=HDwpIPwQOfFYhdiUlIDlCRm3DBaaIAh3axjIEG9A0E%2b1GD5CB4W%2bHWkvhUZRondb
https://a78.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0001-0050/ab_11_98_A_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0001-0050/ab_11_98_A_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=v0USgZTz5Fn092PrDNnmC%2bhpbuM5UzR3UMls7cIr%2bZc%3d


change impacts and risks. The bill also requires the authority to submit annual reports to the SGC,
with the scope of the report outlined in the bill. 

This is an author-sponsored bill. There is no appropriation to fund the cost of the program. A fact
sheet is posted in the tracking section of the bill. 

UPDATE 3/17/21: CALAFCO learned from the author's office they do not intend to move the bill
forward, but instead work with Assm. Mullin on AB 897 and merge the two bills.

  AB 473    (Chau D)   California Public Records Act.  
Current Text: Introduced: 2/8/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/8/2021
Status: 4/5/2021-Re-referred to Com. on APPR. pursuant to Assembly Rule 97.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:

 The California Public Records Act requires state and local agencies to make their records available
for public inspection, unless an exemption from disclosure applies. This bill would recodify and
reorganize the provisions of the act. The bill would include provisions to govern the effect of
recodification and state that the bill is intended to be entirely nonsubstantive in effect. The bill
would contain related legislative findings and declarations. The bill would become operative on
January 1, 2023.

Position:  Watch
Subject:  Public Records Act
CALAFCO Comments:  This bill is a redo of AB 2138 from 2020 that did not move forward.
According to the author's office, this bill and AB 474 are part of recommendations from the
California Law Revision Commissions to reorganize and restructure the CPRA based on a request by
the legislature for them to do that. CALAFCO will keep watch on the bill to ensure there are no
substantive changes to the PRA.

  AB 474    (Chau D)   California Public Records Act: conforming revisions.  
Current Text: Introduced: 2/8/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/8/2021
Status: 4/5/2021-Re-referred to Com. on APPR. pursuant to Assembly Rule 97.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:

 Would enact various conforming and technical changes related to another bill that recodifies and
reorganizes the California Public Records Act. The bill would only become operative if the related
bill recodifying the act is enacted and becomes operative on January 1, 2023. The bill would also
specify that any other bill enacted by the Legislature during the 2021 calendar year that takes
effect on or before January 1, 2022, and that affects a provision of this bill shall prevail over this
act, except as specified.

Position:  Watch
Subject:  Public Records Act
CALAFCO Comments:  This bill is a redo of AB 2438 from 2020 that did not move forward.
According to the author's office, this bill and AB 473 are part of recommendations from the
California Law Revision Commissions to reorganize and restructure the CPRA based on a request by
the legislature for them to do that. CALAFCO will keep watch on the bill to ensure there are no
substantive changes to the PRA.

  AB 897    (Mullin D)   Office of Planning and Research: regional climate networks: climate adaptation
action plans.  

Current Text: Introduced: 2/17/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/17/2021
Status: 2/25/2021-Referred to Com. on NAT. RES.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Calendar:

 4/14/2021  9 a.m. - State Capitol, Room 4202  ASSEMBLY NATURAL RESOURCES, RIVAS, LUZ,
Chair

 

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=cICNk7SuFjjKZPzBeRexPpPR5do9qK9ewK6U5Zf0jl3BcRLjWvzyoii0iOfHhvDO
https://a49.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0451-0500/ab_473_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0451-0500/ab_473_99_I_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=y5U40xmbEg5l4AAiMCKIzAXyvR3gaKr7bayOViv2k6k86EsKPJdQa4YcMsHjWA37
https://a49.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0451-0500/ab_474_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0451-0500/ab_474_99_I_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=OT4o8Vcj7fgzYFZCPMv7BzZf4hLlukFoVGcTjMGnPnhBp3TIhQMp3aGWCn4sl%2bJn
https://a22.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0851-0900/ab_897_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0851-0900/ab_897_99_I_bill.pdf


Summary:
Current law requires, by July 1, 2017, and every 3 years thereafter, the Natural Resources Agency
to update, as prescribed, the state’s climate adaptation strategy, known as the Safeguarding
California Plan. Current law establishes the Office of Planning and Research in state government in
the Governor’s office. Current law establishes the Integrated Climate Adaptation and Resiliency
Program to be administered by the office to coordinate regional and local efforts with state climate
adaptation strategies to adapt to the impacts of climate change, as prescribed. This bill would
authorize eligible entities, as defined, to establish and participate in a regional climate network, as
defined. The bill would require the office to encourage the inclusion of agencies with land use
planning authority into regional climate networks.
Attachments:

 AB 897 Fact Sheet

Position:  Watch
Subject:  Climate Change
CALAFCO Comments:  As introduced, the bill builds on existing programs through OPR by
promoting regional collaboration in climate adaptation planning and providing guidance for regions
to identify and prioritize projects necessary to respond to the climate vulnerabilities of their region.

The bill requires OPR to develop guidelines (the scope of which are outlined in the bill) for Regional
Climate Adaptation Action Plans (RCAAPs) by 7-1-22 through their normal public process. Further
the bill requires OPR to make recommendations to the Legislature on potential sources of financial
assistance for the creation & implementation of RCAAPs, and ways the state can support the
creation and ongoing work of regional climate networks. The bill would allow LAFCos to be a part of
these regional climate networks. 

This is an author-sponsored bill. The bill necessitates additional resources from the state to carry
out the additional work required of OPR (there is no current budget appropriation). A fact sheet is
posted in the tracking section of the bill.

  AB 903    (Frazier D)   Los Medanos Community Healthcare District.  
Current Text: Amended: 4/5/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/17/2021
Last Amended: 4/5/2021
Status: 4/6/2021-Re-referred to Com. on L. GOV.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Calendar:
4/14/2021  1:30 p.m. - State Capitol, Room 4202  ASSEMBLY LOCAL GOVERNMENT, AGUIAR-
CURRY, Chair
Summary:

 Would require the dissolution of the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District, as specified. The
bill would require the County of Contra Costa to be successor of all rights and responsibilities of the
district, and require the county to complete a property tax transfer process to ensure the transfer
of the district’s health-related ad valorem property tax revenues to the county in order to operate
the Los Medanos Area Health Plan Grant Program. By requiring a higher level of service from the
County of Contra Costa as described above, the bill would impose a state-mandated local program.

Position:  Watch
CALAFCO Comments:  This bill mandates the dissolution of the Los Medanos Community
Healthcare District with the County as the successor agency, effective 2-1-22. The bill requires the
County to perform certain acts prior to the dissolution. The LAFCo is not involved in the dissolution
as the bill is written. Currently, the district is suing both the Contra Costa LAFCo and the County of
Contra Costa after the LAFCo approved the dissolution of the district upon application by the
County and the district failed to get enough signatures in the protest process to go to an election.

  AB 959    (Mullin D)   Park districts: regulations: nuisances: abatement.  
Current Text: Introduced: 2/17/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/17/2021
Status: 3/4/2021-Referred to Com. on L. GOV.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:
Current law prescribes procedures, including the election of a board of directors, for the formation

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=v0USgZTz5Fn092PrDNnmCws5EBaFKEpBWtvGX9y2OYs%3d
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=ajuygN7qRwO2gyk1SWEg85859T34RO0P55bayW%2bj3ma6oBB%2bBEWGjMEuMAZTTYN4
https://a11.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0901-0950/ab_903_98_A_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0901-0950/ab_903_98_A_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=xBZSGaqN9apYjLEbzR8mC82IrRfj9lCRUpdXI2oZInKyIen8P4dDheKtcDt4O7cg
https://a22.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0951-1000/ab_959_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0951-1000/ab_959_99_I_bill.pdf


of regional park districts, regional park and open-space districts, or regional open-space districts.
Current law authorizes 3 or more cities, together with any parcel or parcels of city or county
territory, whether in the same or different counties, to organize and incorporate, but requires that
all the territory in the proposed district be contiguous. Current law requires the board of directors
to superintend, control, and make available to all the inhabitants of the district all public recreation
lands and facilities, as provided. Existing law authorizes the board to adopt regulations. Current
law provides that a violation of an ordinance, rule, or regulation adopted by the board is a
misdemeanor punishable by a fine or imprisonment in the county jail, as provided. This bill would
authorize the board of directors to adopt regulations relating to nuisances and establish a
procedure for the abatement of the nuisances, including administrative abatement.
Attachments:

 AB 959 Fact Sheet

Position:  Watch
CALAFCO Comments:  As introduced, this bill gives authority to independent regional park &
open space districts governed by PRC 5500 to: (1) Declare by ordinance what constitutes a public
nuisance; (2) Abate those public nuisances by either administrative or civil actions; and (3) Ability
to recover costs incurred in abating the public nuisance, including attorneys' fees. There are 4 of
these independent special districts: (1) Midpeninsula Regional Open Space District; (2) East Bay
Regional Park District; (3) Monterey Peninsula Regional Park District; and (4) Napa County
Regional Park and Open Space District. A fact sheet is posted in the tracking section of the bill.

  AB 975    (Rivas, Luz D)   Political Reform Act of 1974: statement of economic interests and gifts.  
Current Text: Introduced: 2/18/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/18/2021
Status: 3/4/2021-Referred to Com. on ELECTIONS.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Calendar:
4/15/2021  10:30 a.m. - State Capitol, Room 437  ASSEMBLY ELECTIONS, BERMAN, Chair
Summary:

 The Political Reform Act of 1974 regulates conflicts of interests of public officials and requires that
public officials file, with specified filing officers, periodic statements of economic interests disclosing
certain information regarding income, investments, and other financial data. The Fair Political
Practices Commission is the filing officer for statewide elected officers and candidates and other
specified public officials. If the Commission is the filing officer, the public official generally files with
their agency or another person or entity, who then makes a copy and files the original with the
Commission. This bill would revise and recast these filing requirements to make various changes,
including requiring public officials and candidates for whom the Commission is the filing officer to
file their original statements of economic interests electronically with the Commission.

Position:  Watch
Subject:  FPPC
CALAFCO Comments:  As introduced, this bill makes two notable changes to the current
requirements of gift notification and reporting: (1) It increases the period for public officials to
reimburse, in full or part, the value of attending an invitation-only event, for purposes of the gift
rules, from 30 days from receipt to 30 days following the calendar quarter in which the gift was
received; and (2) It reduces the gift notification period for lobbyist employers from 30 days after
the end of the calendar quarter in which the gift was provided to 15 days after the calendar
quarter. Further it requires the FPPC to have an online filing system and to redact contact
information of filers before posting. 

  AB 1021    (Mayes I)   Imperial Irrigation District.  
Current Text: Amended: 3/18/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/18/2021
Last Amended: 3/18/2021
Status: 3/22/2021-Re-referred to Com. on L. GOV.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Calendar:
4/14/2021  1:30 p.m. - State Capitol, Room 4202  ASSEMBLY LOCAL GOVERNMENT, AGUIAR-
CURRY, Chair
Summary:

 Would require the commissions for the County of Imperial and the County of Riverside to conduct

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=4%2fHrG5SoCm789wRRfvWyIxEHz97NwxmN2n0HszyjDfo%3d
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=wtppJKVa29786ZcR43wqxHzSqdID7QYe%2fq955MqytJosRbnTbgbnQLwjJxPRVxr3
https://a39.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0951-1000/ab_975_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_0951-1000/ab_975_99_I_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=HgqHnBfoaDuwC9d1K8XLE%2f8%2fytLEJ0LaCTBILfkzOuN7UnExJzML25DVSbhJ3T1n
https://ad42.asmrc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_1001-1050/ab_1021_98_A_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_1001-1050/ab_1021_98_A_bill.pdf


and publish on their internet websites, by December 1, 2022, a joint study of voting rights, and
options for providing electricity, in the Imperial Irrigation District. The bill would require the joint
study to include a description of voting rights in the district and a determination of whether and
how the district can extend voting rights to its residents, as well as options for providing electricity
in the district’s jurisdiction and other affected service areas, in the circumstance that the district
desires to no longer provide electrical service in its jurisdiction.

Position:  Watch
Subject:  Special Districts Governance
CALAFCO Comments:  As amended on 3/18/21, the bill focuses on the Imperial Irrigation
District. The bill requires Imperial and Riverside LAFCos to conduct a special study of voting rights
and options for providing electricity in the district area should the district decide it no longer
desires to provide that serve, to be completed by December 31, 2022, as an unfunded mandate.
The bill also requires membership of the district board to increase from 5 to 8 members, with the
additional 3 members residing in Riverside County in the area being serviced by the district and
appointed by the County Supervisor of that County district. The three new members will be non-
voting members. 

CALAFCO met with the author's staff on March 18 to discuss concerns on the bill, with input from
Riverside and Imperial LAFCos (who will meet with the author's office as well). Concerns include:
(1) The unfunded mandate and timing of the study; (2) As representation in the Riverside County
service area is the issue, governance structure should also be a part of the study; (3) Section
21562.6 of the Water Code as added is far too vague. CALAFCO offered specific suggestions for
clarification in this section. 

 
This bill is similar to AB 854 (2019), which died in Appropriations. CALAFCO had a Watch position
on that bill as the two member LAFCos had opposing positions, and this is a local matter. However,
there is concern about requiring a study without funding (the last time the Legislature mandated a
special study on a district it required the study be funded by the district). 

The bill is author-sponsored and as of now there is no budget appropriation to cover cost. 
 

  AB 1053    (Gabriel D)   City selection committees: quorum: teleconferencing.  
Current Text: Amended: 3/18/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/18/2021
Last Amended: 3/18/2021
Status: 3/22/2021-Re-referred to Com. on L. GOV.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:

 Current law creates a city selection committee in each county that consists of 2 or more
incorporated cities for the purpose of appointing city representatives to boards, commissions, and
agencies. Under current law, a quorum for a city selection committee requires a majority of the
number of the incorporated cities within the county entitled to representation on the city selection
committee. Current law requires a city selection committee meeting to be postponed or adjourned
to a subsequent time and place whenever a quorum is not present at the meeting. This bill would
reduce the quorum requirement to 1/3 of all member cities within the county for a meeting that
was postponed to a subsequent time and place because a quorum was not present, as long as the
agenda is limited to items that appeared on the immediately preceding agenda where a quorum
was not established.
Attachments:
CALAFCO Oppose Unless Amended April 2021

Position:  Oppose unless amended
Subject:  Other
CALAFCO Comments:  As amended on 3/18/21, the bill reduces the quorum requirement for a
city selection committee to 1/3 of all member cities within the county for a meeting that was
postponed to a subsequent time and place because a quorum was not present, as long as the
agenda is limited to replicate the meeting for which a quorum was not established. The bill also
authorizes a city selection committee to conduct their meetings be teleconference and electronic
means. 

The bill is sponsored by the Las Virgenes-Malibu Council of Governments. 

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=zhuT5umvgZOxPdRzjSS5Bu6Yvku0pfnd%2fcG%2fNE2YeKZx9cBWwmlJmzm60OvTeR3e
https://a45.asmdc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_1051-1100/ab_1053_98_A_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_1051-1100/ab_1053_98_A_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=zmq1%2fMGeCIfbSWdaTw2omvi6KoDGyxf%2butT%2foLWf9%2fc%3d


CALAFCO's letter of Oppose Unless Amended is posted in the bill detail area.

  AB 1246    (Nguyen R)   Community services districts.  
Current Text: Introduced: 2/19/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/19/2021
Status: 2/22/2021-Read first time.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:

 Current law, the Community Services District Law, authorizes the formation of community services
districts for various specified purposes, including supplying water, treating sewage, disposing of
solid waste, and providing fire protection. The law specifies its relation and effect on certain
districts organized pursuant to former laws and to actions taken by them, among other things.This
bill would make nonsubstantive changes to those provisions.

Position:  Watch
CALAFCO Comments:  This is a spot bill.

  SB 10    (Wiener D)   Planning and zoning: housing development: density.  
Current Text: Amended: 3/22/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 12/7/2020
Last Amended: 3/22/2021
Status: 3/22/2021-Read second time and amended. Re-referred to Com. on GOV. & F.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:

 Would, notwithstanding any local restrictions on adopting zoning ordinances, authorize a local
government to pass an ordinance to zone any parcel for up to 10 units of residential density per
parcel, at a height specified in the ordinance, if the parcel is located in a transit-rich area, a jobs-
rich area, or an urban infill site, as those terms are defined. In this regard, the bill would require
the Department of Housing and Community Development, in consultation with the Office of
Planning and Research, to determine jobs-rich areas and publish a map of those areas every 5
years, commencing January 1, 2023, based on specified criteria. The bill would specify that an
ordinance adopted under these provisions, and any resolution adopted to amend the jurisdiction’s
General Plan to be consistent with that ordinance, is not a project for purposes of the California
Environmental Quality Act.

Position:  Watch
Subject:  Housing

  SB 13    (Dodd D)   Local agency services: contracts: Counties of Napa and San Bernardino.  
Current Text: Introduced: 12/7/2020   html   pdf

Introduced: 12/7/2020
Status: 1/28/2021-Referred to Com. on GOV. & F.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:
The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 establishes a pilot
program under which the commissions in the Counties of Napa and San Bernardino, upon making
specified determinations at a noticed public hearing, may authorize a city or district to provide new
or extended services outside its jurisdictional boundary and outside its sphere of influence to
support existing or planned uses involving public or private properties, as provided. Current law
requires the Napa and San Bernardino commissions to submit a report to the Legislature on their
participation in the pilot program, as specified, before January 1, 2020, and repeals the pilot
program as of January 1, 2021. This bill would reestablish the pilot program, which would remain
in effect until January 1, 2026. The bill would impose a January 1, 2025, deadline for the Napa and
San Bernardino commissions to report to the Legislature on the pilot program, and would require
the contents of that report to include how many requests for extension of services were received
under these provisions.

Position:  Watch
Subject:  CKH General Procedures

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=O8g5goGJHE9yw6PnQccq4tIkYCjJg0TwN%2bOJS0N9He9QDcWkEkmlNXSYbNDmPCZf
https://ad72.asmrc.org/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_1201-1250/ab_1246_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/asm/ab_1201-1250/ab_1246_99_I_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=mK6zBGJVs3gU%2bcMqIffkzCh1MJF5j5eYdOIBR6Vc7TuXsDYF9cvnyp8jO001Kgb0
http://sd11.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0001-0050/sb_10_97_A_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0001-0050/sb_10_97_A_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=sXcK1y5HbflYrRnD4ON0YAVMHsGA94xk01SOwDvxdNPyPzrUvbeSHd7fHqJmeUFy
http://sd03.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0001-0050/sb_13_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0001-0050/sb_13_99_I_bill.pdf


CALAFCO Comments:  This bill is the same as SB 799 from 2020 and seeks to re-establish and
continue the pilot program for five more years. The program ended as of January 1, 2021 but due
to the pandemic, SB 799 from 2020 to extend the sunset was not moved forward in the legislature.

There are amendments pending from the City of St. Helena that as proposed would drastically
change the intent of SB 13. CALAFCO is working with the author's office, Napa and San Bernardino
LAFCos and the City of St. Helena on those amendments and will carefully watch the bill.

  SB 96    (Dahle R)   Fallen Leaf Lake Community Services District Fire Department Protection Act of 2021:
elections.  

Current Text: Introduced: 12/21/2020   html   pdf

Introduced: 12/21/2020
Status: 1/28/2021-Referred to Coms. on GOV. & F. and E. & C.A.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:

 Would require the El Dorado County elections official, with the assistance of the Fallen Leaf Lake
Community Services District, to conduct district elections pursuant to the Uniform District Election
Law, except as otherwise provided in the bill. The bill, notwithstanding existing law, would provide
that voters who are resident registered voters of the district, and voters who are not residents but
either own a real property interest in the district or have been designated by the owner of a real
property interest to cast the vote for that property, may vote in a district election in the Fallen Leaf
Lake Community Services District, as specified. The bill would require the designations of voters
and authority of legal representatives to be filed with the El Dorado County elections official and
the secretary of the Fallen Leaf Lake Community Services District and maintained with the list of
qualified voters of the district.This bill contains other related provisions and other existing laws.

Position:  Watch
Subject:  Special Districts Governance
CALAFCO Comments:  This bill is the same as SB 1180 from 2020 which did not move through
the legislature. It is a local El Dorado County/district bill. This bill does several things. (1) Provides
that voters who are resident registered voters of the district, and voters who are not residents but
either own a real property interest in the district or have been designated by the owner of a real
property interest to cast the vote for that property, may vote in a district election in the Fallen Leaf
Lake Community Services. (2) The bill also would authorize a voter who is not a resident of the
district but owns a real property interest in the district to designate only one voter to vote on their
behalf, regardless of the number of parcels in the district owned by the nonresident voter. (3) This
bill would prohibit the Fallen Leaf Lake Community Services District from providing any services or
facilities except fire protection and medical services, including emergency response and services,
as well as parks and recreation services and facilities.

  SB 261    (Allen D)   Regional transportation plans: sustainable communities strategies.  
Current Text: Introduced: 1/27/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 1/27/2021
Status: 3/16/2021-From committee: Do pass and re-refer to Com. on TRANS. (Ayes 5. Noes 2.)
(March 15). Re-referred to Com. on TRANS.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:

 current law requires certain transportation planning agencies to prepare and adopt a regional
transportation plan directed at achieving a coordinated and balanced regional transportation
system. Certain of these agencies are designated under federal law as metropolitan planning
organizations. Existing law requires that each regional transportation plan include a sustainable
communities strategy developed to achieve greenhouse gas emission reduction targets for the
automobile and light truck sector for 2020 and 2035 established by the State Air Resources Board.
This bill would require that the sustainable communities strategy be developed to additionally
achieve greenhouse gas emission reduction targets for the automobile and light truck sector for
2045 and 2050 and vehicle miles traveled reduction targets for 2035, 2045, and 2050 established
by the board. The bill would make various conforming changes to integrate those additional targets
into regional transportation plans.

Position:  Watch
Subject:  Sustainable Community Plans
CALAFCO Comments:  CALAFCO is currently reviewing the bill.

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=m64ecszPpZOESc%2fECWdGCavlNzbWJoA8qzikQJMmCKFzZoTnHR0RZ1qozmifE5gP
https://dahle.cssrc.us/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0051-0100/sb_96_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0051-0100/sb_96_99_I_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=8Ocds6CdVdQVxMCc1U0q3%2bd%2bOI8Um8x1ptDdIIxy8I5Ubp55Qv8pkwnOvFXonbPa
http://sd26.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0251-0300/sb_261_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0251-0300/sb_261_99_I_bill.pdf


  SB 273    (Hertzberg D)   Water quality: municipal wastewater agencies.  
Current Text: Introduced: 1/29/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 1/29/2021
Status: 3/18/2021-Set for hearing April 12.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Calendar:
4/12/2021  9 a.m. - John L. Burton Hearing Room (4203)  SENATE ENVIRONMENTAL
QUALITY, ALLEN, Chair
Summary:

 Would authorize a municipal wastewater agency, as defined, to enter into agreements with entities
responsible for stormwater management for the purpose of managing stormwater and dry weather
runoff, to acquire, construct, expand, operate, maintain, and provide facilities for specified
purposes relating to managing stormwater and dry weather runoff, and to levy taxes, fees, and
charges consistent with the municipal wastewater agency’s existing authority in order to fund
projects undertaken pursuant to the bill. The bill would require the exercise of any new authority
granted under the bill to comply with the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government
Reorganization Act of 2000. To the extent this requirement would impose new duties on local
agency formation commissions, the bill would impose a state-mandated local program.
Attachments:
SB 273 Fact Sheet

Position:  Support
Subject:  Municipal Services
CALAFCO Comments:  This bill is a redo of SB 1052 from 2020 that was not moved forward
because of the pandemic. This bill adds authority to municipal wastewater agencies as outlined in
13911(a) and (b) relating to stormwater runoff and management. The bill authorizes this additional
authority while keeping the LAFCo process to activate these latent powers intact. 

 
CALAFCO is requesting an amendment to add a requirement that upon entering into the
agreement, the agency has 30 days to file a copy of that agreement or amended agreement with
the LAFCo. 

The bills is sponsored by the CA Assn of Sanitation Agencies. A fact sheet is posted in the tracking
section of the bill.

  SB 274    (Wieckowski D)   Local government meetings: agenda and documents.  
Current Text: Amended: 4/5/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 1/29/2021
Last Amended: 4/5/2021
Status: 4/5/2021-Read second time and amended. Re-referred to Com. on APPR.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Calendar:

 4/19/2021  9 a.m. - John L. Burton Hearing Room (4203) 
SENATE APPROPRIATIONS, PORTANTINO, Chair

 Summary:
The Ralph M. Brown Act requires meetings of the legislative body of a local agency to be open and
public and also requires regular and special meetings of the legislative body to be held within the
boundaries of the territory over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, with specified
exceptions. Current law authorizes a person to request that a copy of an agenda, or a copy of all
the documents constituting the agenda packet, of any meeting of a legislative body be mailed to
that person. This bill would require a local agency with an internet website, or its designee, to
email a copy of, or website link to, the agenda or a copy of all the documents constituting the
agenda packet if the person requests that the items be delivered by email. If a local agency
determines it to be technologically infeasible to send a copy of the documents or a link to a website
that contains the documents by email or by other electronic means, the bill would require the
legislative body or its designee to send by mail a copy of the agenda or a website link to the
agenda and to mail a copy of all other documents constituting the agenda packet, as specified.
Attachments:

 CALAFCO Support SB 274 (3-15-21)
 SB 274 Fact Sheet

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=JzeaaCBnS5ckJgTA6UTpb9XGQDHPAQoSqYUyqaWtZ2WfO6dRcLT%2bnovYQAFGg4Wm
https://sd18.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0251-0300/sb_273_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0251-0300/sb_273_99_I_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=4%2fHrG5SoCm789wRRfvWyIw1c1ONZCtchu8jOrOxfcjY%3d
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=RL9nRT47yuYGSgg%2fbTb2awWcLKwFO7A4ok6OC%2ftu%2bGcuG3AFXrutfG2hU9RKWQsD
http://sd10.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0251-0300/sb_274_98_A_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0251-0300/sb_274_98_A_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=8dzHiZESllqkxVmJigcG7LaoPEBFDzhohGQEpSerHxQ%3d
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=4%2fHrG5SoCm789wRRfvWyI7li4uMAFdvH8tqQiJINZdo%3d


Position:  Support
Subject:  Public Records Act
CALAFCO Comments:  This bill is a modified redo of SB 931 from 2020 that did not move forward
because of the pandemic. This bill updates the Government Code to require a public agency to
email the agenda or agenda items to anyone who requests it or the link to the website where the
documents can be accessed (current law requires the mailing of such documents upon request, this
bill adds the option to email if requested). A fact sheet is posted in the tracking section of the bill.

  SB 427    (Eggman D)   Water theft: enhanced penalties.  
Current Text: Amended: 3/25/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/12/2021
Last Amended: 3/25/2021
Status: 3/25/2021-From committee with author's amendments. Read second time and amended.
Re-referred to Com. on GOV. & F.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Calendar:
4/8/2021  Upon adjournment of Session - John L. Burton Hearing Room (4203) 
SENATE GOVERNANCE AND FINANCE, MCGUIRE, Chair
Summary:

 Existing law authorizes the legislative body of a city or a county to make, by ordinance, any
violation of an ordinance subject to an administrative fine or penalty and limits the maximum fine
or penalty amounts for infractions, to $100 for the first violation, $200 for a 2nd violation of the
same ordinance within one year of the first violation, and $500 for each additional violation of the
same ordinance within one year of the first violation. This bill would authorize the legislative body
of a city or a county that is authorized by the applicable local agency formation commission to
provide water service to adopt an ordinance that prohibits water theft, as defined, subject to an
administrative fine or penalty in excess of the limitations above, as specified. The bill would require
the local agency to adopt an ordinance that sets forth the administrative procedures that shall
govern the imposition, enforcement, collection, and administrative review by the local agency of
the administrative fines or penalties for water theft and to establish a process for granting a
hardship waiver to reduce the amount of the fine, as specified.

Position:  Watch
Subject:  Water

  SB 475    (Cortese D)   Transportation planning: sustainable communities strategies.  
Current Text: Amended: 3/10/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/17/2021
Last Amended: 3/10/2021
Status: 3/18/2021-Re-referred to Coms. on E.Q., TRANS., and HOUSING. Referral to Com. on
HOUSING rescinded because of the limitations placed on committee hearings due to ongoing health
and safety risks of the COVID-19 virus.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:

 Would require the State Air Resources Board, on or before June 30, 2023, and in coordination with
the California Transportation Commission and the Department of Housing and Community
Development, to issue new guidelines on sustainable communities strategies and require these
guidelines to be updated thereafter at least every 4 years. The bill would delete the provisions
related to the Regional Targets Advisory Committee and instead require the State Air Resources
Board to appoint, on or before January 31, 2022, the State-Regional Collaborative for Climate,
Equity, and Resilience, consisting of representatives of various entities. The bill would require the
State-Regional Collaborative for Climate, Equity, and Resilience to develop a quantitative tool for
metropolitan planning organizations to use to evaluate a transportation plan’s consistency with
long-range greenhouse gas emission reduction targets and recommend guidelines for metropolitan
planning organizations to use when crafting long-range strategies that integrate state goals related
to climate resilience and social equity.

Position:  Watch
Subject:  Sustainable Community Plans
CALAFCO Comments:  CALAFCO is currently reviewing the amendments dated March 10, 2021.

  SB 499    (Leyva D)   General plan: land use element: uses adversely impacting health outcomes.  

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=7mG2QBfuvBtIQFdwON0O46j56rUhOCfXNewpkKKJaHMMwr9Qo927CT4sbTk7Kbm%2f
http://sd05.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0401-0450/sb_427_98_A_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0401-0450/sb_427_98_A_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=o%2bk6Y7cm4evKi2Y2N0Er2gPveZ1UuszFg4Jy3jn5mnCX89TQ0KW2%2fI2TDJqsyxFP
http://sd15.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0451-0500/sb_475_98_A_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0451-0500/sb_475_98_A_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=qbEF2kpC35ovinVxMmZppGRUMHIrASRSWZH%2bqZ9DcoMD8ka6YdX8Vc8y9sftC%2fho
http://sd20.senate.ca.gov/


Current Text: Introduced: 2/17/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/17/2021
Status: 3/25/2021-April 8 set for first hearing canceled at the request of author.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:

 Would prohibit the land use element from designating land uses that have the potential to
significantly degrade local air, water, or soil quality or to adversely impact health outcomes in
disadvantaged communities to be located, or to materially expand, within or adjacent to a
disadvantaged community or a racially and ethnically concentrated area of poverty. By expanding
the duties of cities and counties in the administration of their land use planning duties, the bill
would impose a state-mandated local program.
Attachments:
SB 499 Fact Sheet

Position:  Watch
Subject:  Disadvantaged Communities
CALAFCO Comments:  As introduced, this bill would prohibit the land use element of a general
plan from designating or expanding land uses that have the potential to significantly degrade local
air, water, or soil quality or to adversely impact health outcomes within or adjacent to
disadvantaged communities (DACs) or a racially and ethnically concentrated area of poverty. 

 
The sponsor of this bill is the Leadership Counsel for Justice and Accountability. A fact sheet is
posted in the tracking section of the bill.

  SB 574    (Laird D)   Agricultural preserves: Williamson Act.  
Current Text: Amended: 3/4/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/18/2021
Last Amended: 3/4/2021
Status: 3/25/2021-Read third time. Passed. (Ayes 38. Noes 0.) Ordered to the Assembly. In
Assembly. Read first time. Held at Desk.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
 Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:

 Under the California Land Conservation Act of 1965, the board of supervisors or city council may
grant tentative approval for a cancellation by petition of a landowner as to all or any part of land
subject to a contract, as specified. Prior to any action by the board or council giving tentative
approval to the cancellation of any contract, the county assessor is required to determine the
current fair market value of the land as though it were free of the contractual restriction, and
requires the assessor to send the fair market value to the Department of Conservation, hereafter
department, at the same time the assessor sends the value to the landowner. Current law provides
for a certificate of tentative cancellation upon tentative approval of a petition by a landowner
accompanied by a proposal for a specified alternative use of the land, as provided. Current law
requires the board of supervisors or city council to provide notice to the department related to
cancellation of the contract as well as in other specified instances. This bill would revise and recast
these provisions to no longer require the assessor to provide notice to the department and to
require the board of supervisors or city council to provide notice to the department if the certificate
of tentative cancellation is withdrawn, as specified.

Position:  Watch
CALAFCO Comments:  This bill narrows the role of Department of Conservation (DOC) in
administering the Williamson Act. It does not change other provisions in the Act except for
lessening reporting requirements by local governments to the DOC. The bill repeals the ability of
the DOC to agree on a cancellation value for contracted land with a landowner, along with the
requirement that the department provide a preliminary valuation to the applicable assessor, and
repeals the requirement that the DOC approve cancellation of a farmland security contract. The bill
also repeals and narrows reporting requirements by requiring the DOC to post all local government
reports on Williamson Act lands/contracts on its website rather than create a report and submit to
the Legislature. The bill also repeals certain reporting requirements by local governments (cities
and counties) to the DOC regarding Williamson Act contracts. 

CALAFCO will continue to watch this bill to ensure no detrimental changes are made to the Act
through future amendments.

http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0451-0500/sb_499_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0451-0500/sb_499_99_I_bill.pdf
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishviewdoc.ashx?di=4%2fHrG5SoCm789wRRfvWyIx0YVH4JIk0JTt5RyA1I934%3d
https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=GtJpK4Z7SxskiJxziUm5n0dIbYPzADdtAWFCeqv4GlCn2xiGSGR7B4pC0%2bnmR47l
http://sd17.senate.ca.gov/
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0551-0600/sb_574_98_A_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0551-0600/sb_574_98_A_bill.pdf


  SB 813    (Committee on Governance and Finance)   Controller: local government financial reports.  
Current Text: Introduced: 2/23/2021   html   pdf

Introduced: 2/23/2021
Status: 3/3/2021-Referred to Com. on GOV. & F.

Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Desk Policy Fiscal Floor Conf.
Conc. Enrolled Vetoed Chaptered

1st House 2nd House
Summary:
Current law requires the Controller to compile, publish, and make publicly available on the
Controller’s website reports of the financial transactions and information on annual compensation
of each county, city, and special district within this state. This bill would specify that the reports
shall be furnished at the time prescribed by the Controller and would revise the amount of time in
which the report is required to be furnished to either 7 months or within the time prescribed by the
Controller, whichever is later.

Position:  Watch
CALAFCO Comments:  This is the annual Senate Governance & Finance Committee Omnibus bill.

Total Measures: 33
Total Tracking Forms: 33

4/7/2021 12:03:26 PM

https://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/public/publishbillinfo.aspx?bi=n7DGvlcMzIOZr1AfKNlgSviy1iU2oa8MQDaPSFezlzEWM6X23pZBQWOQ4YL6YCYk
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0801-0850/sb_813_99_I_bill.htm
http://ctweb.capitoltrack.com/Bills/21Bills/sen/sb_0801-0850/sb_813_99_I_bill.pdf


    April 14, 2021 

Attachment 2 

Honorable Cecilia Aguiar-Curry, Chair 

Assembly Local Government Committee 

California State Assembly 

State Capitol, Room 5144 

Sacramento, CA  95814 

RE:  SUPPORT of AB 1581: Local Government Committee Omnibus Bill 

Dear Chair Aguiar-Curry: 

The Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) is pleased to support the Assembly 

Local Government Committee bill AB 1581, sponsored by the California Association of Local Agency 

Formation Commissions (CALAFCO). AB 1581 makes technical, non-substantive changes to the 

Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (the Act).  

This annual omnibus bill includes technical changes to the Act which governs the work of LAFCos. 

These changes are necessary as LAFCos implement the Act and small inconsistencies are found or 

clarifications are needed to make the law as unambiguous as possible. AB 1581 currently makes minor 

technical corrections to language used in the Act.   

Contra Costa LAFCo is grateful to your Committee, staff and CALAFCO, all of whom worked 

diligently on this language to ensure there are no substantive changes while creating a significant 

increase in the clarity of the Act for all stakeholders.   

This legislation helps insure the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act remains a vital and practical law that is 

consistently applied around the state. We appreciate your Committee’s authorship and support of this 

bill, and your support of the mission of LAFCos.  

Sincerely, 

Igor Skaredoff, Chair 

Contra Costa LAFCo 

c: Members, Assembly Local Government Committee 

Jimmy MacDonald, Consultant, Assembly Local Government Committee 

William Weber, Consultant, Assembly Republican Caucus 

Pamela Miller, Executive Director, CALAFCO 

Attachment 3



CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

40 Muir Road, 1st Floor • Martinez, CA 94553 

e-mail: Lou Ann.Texeira@lafco.cccounty.us

(925) 313-7133

MEMBERS 

Lou Ann Texeira 
Executive Officer 

Candace Andersen 
County Member 

Donald A. Blubaugh 
Public Member 

Tom Butt 
City Member 

Federal Glover 
County Member 

Michael R. McGill 
Special District Member 

Rob Schroder 
City Member 

Igor Skaredoff 
Special District Member 

April6,2021 

The Honorable Cecilia M. Aguiar-Curry 
Chair, Assembly Local Government Committee 
State Capitol Room 157 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

Subject: SUPPORT of AB 903 

Dear Chair Aguiar-Curry: 

ALTERNATE MEMBERS 

Diane Burgis 
County Memb�r 

Stanley Caldwell 
Special District Member 

Charles R. Lewis, IV 
Public Member 

Edi Birsan 
City Member 

Attachment 3 

The Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) respectfully requests your support 
of Assembly Bill 903 which would dissolve the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District 
("LMCHD") and require Contra Costa County ("the County") to be the successor agency. 

In November 2017, the County filed an application with LAFCo to dissolve LMCHD. Following an 
extensive review of the County's application, LAFCo 's 2018 Municipal Services Review - Healthcare 
Services, and the District's history, in September 2018, LAFCo approved dissolution of LMCHD. 
LAFCo' s approval included conditions concerning allocation of assets and property tax to the County 
to support needed healthcare programs and services to serve the LMCHD community, which is largely 
disadvantaged. Other LAFCo conditions included creation of a health advisory committee to make 
recommendations on grant funding and priorities to address major health disparities in the community. 

Contra Costa LAFCo supports AB 903 as it will result in reduced administrative costs, enhanced 
community accountability, and increased funding for much needed community health programs. For 
these reasons, we respectfully request your support of AB 903. 

We are happy to any answer questions regarding our position and provide additional information. 

Sill=ely,J �� 
Igor Skarj'�air � 
Contra Costa LAFCo 

c: Contra Costa LAFCO Commissioners 
·Members, Assembly Local Government Committee
Jimmy MacDonald, Consultant, Assembly Local Government Committee
·William Weber,Consultant,Assembly Republican Caucus





Special District Risk Management AuthorityA Property/Liability, Workers’ Compensation and Health Benefits Program  

2021 Nomination Packet Checklist 
 

SDRMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
NOMINATION AND ELECTION GUIDELINES 

January 20, 2021, marks the official commencement of the election process for the SDRMA Board of Directors. 
Four seats on the Board of Directors are up for election in 2021. 

For your convenience we have enclosed the necessary nomination documents and election process schedule. 
Please note that some items have important deadlines. All documents contained in this packet, as well as 
additional information regarding SDRMA Board elections, are available on our website www.sdrma.org and/or by 
calling SDRMA Member Services at 800.537.7790.  

____ Attachment One: SDRMA Board of Directors Fact Sheet: This document reviews the Board of Directors’ 
Roles and Responsibilities along with other important information. 

____ Attachment Two: SDRMA Board of Directors 2021 Nomination/Election Schedule: Please review this 
document for important deadlines. 

____ Attachment Three: SDRMA Election Policy No. 2021-02: A Policy of the Board of Directors of the Special 
District Risk Management Authority establishing guidelines for Director elections. 

____ Attachment Four:     Sample Resolution for Candidate Nomination: A resolution of the Governing Body of 
the Agency nominating a candidate for the Special District Risk Management Authority 
Board of Directors.  

____ Attachment Five:      Candidate’s Statement of Qualifications: Please be advised that no candidate 
statements are endorsed by SDRMA. Candidate’s Statements of Qualification will be 
distributed to the membership with the SDRMA election ballot, “exactly as submitted” 
by the candidate.  

Please complete and return all required nomination and election documents to: 

SDRMA Election Committee 
C/O Paul Frydendal, COO 
Special District Risk Management Authority 
1112 “I” Street, Suite 300 
Sacramento, California 95814 

Attachment



Special District Risk Management Authority   A Property/Liability, Workers’ Compensation and Health Benefits Program  

Attachment One 
  

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

SDRMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FACT SHEET 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Special District Risk Management AuthorityA Property/Liability, Workers’ Compensation and Health Benefits Program  

Fact Sheet 
 

Responsibilities
  

Reimbursement 

SDRMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) is a public entity Joint Powers Authority established to provide cost-
effective property/liability, worker’s compensation, health benefit coverages and comprehensive risk management 
programs for special districts and other public agencies throughout California. SDRMA is governed by a Board of 
Directors elected from the membership by the programs’ members. 

Number of Board Members SDRMA Board of Directors consists of seven Board Members, who are elected at-
large from members participating in either program. 

Board of Directors’ Role SDRMA Board of Directors provide effective governance by supporting a unified 
vision, ensuring accountability, and setting direction based on SDRMA’s mission and 
purpose, as well as establishing and approving policy to ensure SDRMA meets its 
obligations and commitment to its members. 

Board of Directors’ Board Member responsibilities include a commitment to: serve as a part of a 
unified governance body; govern within Board of Directors’ policies, standards 
and ethics; commit the time and energy to be effective; represent and make policy 
decisions for the benefit, and in the best interest, of all SDRMA members; support 
collective decisions; communicate as a cohesive Board of Directors with a common 
vision and voice; and, operate with the highest standards of integrity and trust.  

Four Seats For 
this Election 

Elections for Directors are staggered and held every two years, four seats during 
one election and three seats in the following election. Four seats are up for 
election this year. 

Term of Directors Directors are elected for four-year terms. Terms for directors elected this election 
begin January 1, 2022 and end on December 31, 2025.  

Board Member Travel Board Members are reimbursed for reasonable travel and lodging in accordance 
with SDRMA Board Ordinance No. 2020-01 and applicable laws and are allowed to 
claim a stipend of $220 per meeting day or for each day’s service rendered as a 
Member of the Board. 

Number of Meetings per Year The Board meets from seven to ten times annually with an average of eight board 
meetings per year. Generally, the Board does not meet more than one meeting per 
month. 

Meeting Location  SDRMA office in Sacramento, CA and at two conference locations. 

Meeting Dates Typically the first Wednesday and Thursday of the month. 

Meeting Starting Times Meetings are typically held 1:00 to 5:30 p.m. Wednesday and 8:00 to 10:00 a.m. 
Thursday. 

Meeting Length  Meetings are four to six hours on average. 

Average Time Commitment  Commitment per month ranges from 15 to 20 hours. 

“The mission of Special District Risk Management Authority is to provide risk financing and risk management services 
through a financially sound pool to California public agencies, delivered in a timely and responsive cost-efficient manner.” 



Special District Risk Management Authority   A Property/Liability, Workers’ Compensation and Health Benefits Program  

Attachment Two 

SDRMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
2021 NOMINATION/ELECTION SCHEDULE 



S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 1/6  Board approves Election Schedule
     1 2  1 2 3 4 5 6  1 2 3 4 5 6

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 1/20  Email Notification of Election and 
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 21 22 23 24 25 26 27     Nomination Procedure to Members in January at
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28       28 29 30 31        least 90 days prior to mailing Ballots (117 actual days)
31                     

 

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

    1 2 3       1   1 2 3 4 5

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

25 26 27 28 29 30  23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30    

       30 31             

8/16  Deadline to Receive Ballots
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

    1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7    1 2 3 4

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18              Upcoming Board Meeting Schedule
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25              
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31     26 27 28 29 30    
                       

           

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 11/3-4  Directors' Elect Invited to SDRMA  
     1 2  1 2 3 4 5 6    1 2 3 4                 Board Meeting

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 1/2022  Newly Elected Directors Seated and 
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30     26 27 28 29 30 31                 Election of SDRMA Board Officers
31                     

2021 Nomination/Election Schedule

TASK TIMELINEJANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH

 
 

APRIL MAY JUNE  

8/19  Election Committee Notifies Successful

5/3  Deadline to return Nominations
5/5 Tentative Election Comm. Reviews Nominations
5/18  Ballots available in MemberPlus at least 60 days
               prior to ballot receipt deadline (89 actual days)
           
 

            Candidates and Provides Them With 

OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER

8/18 Tentative Election Comm. Counts Ballots

Rev. 12/9/2020



Special District Risk Management Authority   A Property/Liability, Workers’ Compensation and Health Benefits Program  

Attachment Three 
  

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

SDRMA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
ELECTION POLICY NO. 2021-02  

 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





















Special District Risk Management Authority   A Property/Liability, Workers’ Compensation and Health Benefits Program  

Attachment Four 

SAMPLE 
RESOLUTION FOR 

CANDIDATE NOMINATION 

Downloadable Resolution (MS Word Version) is provided in the 
"2021 Election Information" link on the SDRMA Website



[AGENCY NAME]  
RESOLUTION NO.  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE [AGENCY NAME] NOMINATING [CANDIDATE’S NAME] 

AS A 
CANDIDATE FOR ELECTION TO THE SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS 
 

WHEREAS, the Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) is a Joint Powers Authority 
formed under California Government Code, Section 6500 et.seq., for the purpose of providing risk 
management and risk financing for California Special Districts and other local government agencies; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) and Bylaws of SDRMA set forth director 
qualifications, terms of office and election requirements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of SDRMA established procedures and guidelines for the 

Director Election process; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of SDRMA established a policy requiring candidates seeking 

election to the SDRMA Board of Directors to be: 1) a member of the agency’s governing body or 
management employee per SDRMA Election Policy 2021-02, Section 4.1 and be an active member agency 
of both SDRMA’s Property/Liability and Workers’ Compensation Programs, and 2) be nominated by 
Resolution of their member agency’s governing body, and 3) each nominated candidate must submit a 
completed and signed “Candidate’s Statement of Qualifications” on or before the May 3, 2021 filing 
deadline in order for the candidate’s name to be placed on the official ballot. 

   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
1. The governing body of [AGENCY NAME] nominates [CANDIDATE’S NAME], its [POSITION TITLE], 

as a candidate for the Board of Directors of the Special District Risk Management Authority. 
2. [ONLY IF CANDIDATE IS NOT A MEMBER OF THE AGENCY’S GOVERNING BODY:  The governing 

body of [AGENCY NAME] has determined that [CANDIDATE’S NAME] is a management employee for 
purposes of SDRMA Election Policy 2021-02, Section 4.1]. 

3. The governing body of [AGENCY NAME] further directs that a copy of this Resolution be 
delivered to SDRMA on or before the May 3, 2021 filing deadline. 
 
ADOPTED this [DATE] of [MONTH/YEAR] by the Governing Body of [AGENCY NAME] by the following roll 
call votes: 
 

AYES:  [LIST NAMES of GOVERNING BOARD VOTES]  
NAYES:   “ 
ABSTAIN:  “ 
ABSENT:   “ 
 

APPROVED:      ATTEST: 

 

____________________________    ______________________________ 
President – Governing Body    Secretary 
 



Special District Risk Management Authority   A Property/Liability, Workers’ Compensation and Health Benefits Program  

Attachment Five 

CANDIDATE’S STATEMENT 
OF 

QUALIFICATIONS 

Provided are 2 sets of the Candidate's Statement of Qualifications 
Form and can be completed one of two ways as follows:

      1 set is downloadable to be completed by hand, or
      1 set is an online fillable PDF Form.



 Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 

This information will be distributed to the membership with the ballot, “exactly as submitted” by the candidates 
– no attachments will be accepted.  No statements are endorsed by SDRMA.

Candidate*        ________________________________________________________________________________ 
District/Agency ________________________________________________________________________________ 
Work Address ________________________________________________________________________________ 
Work Phone _________________________________ Cell Phone______________________________________ 
*The name or nickname and any designations (i.e. CPA, SDA, etc.) you enter here will be printed on the official ballot, exactly as submitted.

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Special District Risk Management Authority 
Board of Directors 

Candidate’s Statement of Qualifications

Why do you want to serve on the SDRMA Board of Directors? (Response Required) 

What Board or committee experience do you have that would help you to be an effective Board Member?  
(SDRMA or any other organization) (Response Required) 
 

CANDIDATE'S STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS - Download Form and Complete



 Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
I certify that I meet the candidate qualifications as outlined in the SDRMA election policy. I further certify that I 
am willing to serve as a director on SDRMA’s Board of Directors. I will commit the time and effort necessary to 
serve. Please consider my application for nomination/candidacy to the Board of Directors. 

Candidate Signature _______________________________________________Date_________________________ 

Special District Risk Management Authority 
Board of Directors 

Candidate’s Statement of Qualifications

 What is your overall vision for SDRMA? (Response Required) 

What special skills, talents, or experience (including volunteer experience) do you have? (Response 
Required) 

CANDIDATE'S STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS - Download Form and Complete



 
 
 
 

This information will be distributed to the membership with the ballot, “exactly as submitted” by 
the candidates – no attachments will be accepted.  No statements are endorsed by SDRMA. 

Candidate*
District/Agency 
Work Address  
Work Phone   Home Phone 

Special District Risk Management Authority 
Board of Directors 

Candidate’s Statement of Qualifications

Why do you want to serve on the SDRMA Board of Directors? (Response Required) 

What Board or committee experience do you have that would help you to be an effective Board 
Member?  (SDRMA or any other organization) (Response Required) 
 

  Page 1 of 2 

*The name or nickname and any designations (i.e. CPA, SDA, etc.) you enter here will be printed on the official ballot, exactly as submitted.

CANDIDATE'S STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS - Fillable PDF



 
 
 

 

I certify that I meet the candidate qualifications as outlined in the SDRMA election policy. I further 
certify that I am willing to serve as a director on SDRMA’s Board of Directors.  I will commit the 
time and effort necessary to serve. Please consider my application for nomination/candidacy to 
the Board of Directors. 

Candidate Signature ______________________________________Date_________________________ 

Special District Risk Management Authority 
Board of Directors 

Candidate’s Statement of Qualifications

 What is your overall vision for SDRMA? (Response Required) 

What special skills, talents, or experience (including volunteer experience) do you have? 
(Response Required) 

  Page 2 of 2 

CANDIDATE'S STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS - Fillable PDF



April 14, 2021 

Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission 

40 Muir Road, 1st Floor 

Martinez, CA 94553 

Third Quarter Budget Report - Fiscal Year 2020-21 

Dear Members of the Commission: 

This is the third quarter budget report for FY 2020-21, which compares adopted and actual expenses and 

revenues for the period July 1, 2020 through March 31, 2021. 

The LAFCO operating budget includes the following components: salaries/benefits, services/supplies, a 

contingency/reserve fund, Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Trust and retirement pre-funding 

account. The budget is based on the “bottom line,” which allows for variation within line-item accounts if 

the overall balance remains positive. Funds may not be drawn from the contingency/reserve without 

Commission approval. 

LAFCO’s budget is funded primarily by the County, cities, and independent special districts, with each 

group paying one-third of the LAFCO budget. The city and district shares are prorated based on general 

revenues reported to the State Controller’s Office. LAFCO also receives revenue through application fees 

and interest earnings.   

DISCUSSION 

On June 12, 2020, LAFCO adopted its final FY 2020-21 budget with total appropriations of $994,882, 

which includes an $100,000 contingency/reserve fund, a contribution of $40,000 to fund the OPEB liability, 

and a contribution of $30,000 to pre-fund LAFCO’s retirement account with the Contra Costa County 

Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA). The Commission adopted a reduced budget for FY 2020-

21 in response to the pandemic (COVID), thereby reducing County, city, and independent special district 

LAFCO apportionments by 11%.   

With 75% of the fiscal year elapsed, the Commission’s third quarter expenditures are $450,548 or 45.2% 

of total appropriations. The Commission budgeted $387,000 in salaries/benefits for FY 2020-21; at the end 

of the third quarter, actual expenses total $243,424, or 69.7% of the budgeted amount. The Commission 

budgeted $437,882 in services/supplies; at the end of the third quarter expenses total $181,828 or 41.5%. 

April 14, 2021
Agenda Item 11





April 14, 2021 (Agenda) 

Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission 
40 Muir Road, 1st Floor 
Martinez, CA 94553 

Actuarial Evaluation – Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan 
GASB 75 Supplemental Schedules – Measurement Period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 

Dear Members of the Commission: 

Contra Costa LAFCO provides post-employment healthcare benefits for its retired employees and 
their dependents. LAFCO currently funds the employer’s share of these benefits for its retirees.  

In FY 2011-12, the Commission initiated a plan to fund future benefit costs and minimize future 
liabilities to LAFCO. The plan includes prefunding the post-employment healthcare liability. In 
FY 2011-12, the Commission began funding this liability initially at $10,000 per year as part of 
the LAFCO budget.  

LAFCO’s plan also includes participation in a trust to hold these funds. In 2014, LAFCO entered 
into an agreement with Contra Costa County and the Public Agencies Post-Retirement Health Care 
Plan Trust (“Trust”) administered by Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS).   

To participate in the PARS trust and comply with federal accounting rules Government 
Accounting Standard Board Statement 45 (GASB 45) which require LAFCO to disclose any 
unfunded post-employment benefits in its annual audits, LAFCO must conduct actuarial 
evaluations. These evaluations calculate the future liability for retiree healthcare and other post-
employment benefits and the employer’s annual contribution rate. 

In 2014, LAFCO entered into an agreement with the California School Boards Association 
(CSBA) and the actuarial firm of Demsey, Filliger & Associates LLC to prepare actuarial 
evaluations. If an employer has less than 100 “plan members” it is eligible to prepare an alternative 
measurement method (AMM) report in lieu of a full actuarial evaluation. In response to recent 
statutory changes, LAFCO is required to prepare these evaluations at least every other year. The 
information contained in the AMM is also used in preparing LAFCO’s annual audits and budgets. 

Since March 2014, LAFCO has completed seven actuarial evaluations/supplemental schedules. In 
FY 2015-16, following completion of its first actuarial evaluation, the Commission increased its 
annual funding for Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) from $10,000 to $40,000 per year.  

April 14, 2021
Agenda Item 12





GASB Statement No. 75 

Supplemental Schedules  
for Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission 

Reporting Period:  July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021 
Measurement Period:  July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Valuation Date:  July 1, 2019 

March 12, 2021 

Attachment



Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission 
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan 

 
GASB 75 Disclosure Information 

 
 

 1 3/12/2021 

Note to Auditors 

DFA, LLC (DFA) has prepared the following supplemental schedules to accompany the Agency’s 
actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019 to (1) facilitate preparation of GASB 75 reporting and (2) provide 
information that (if applicable) was not determinable as of the valuation date. We have prepared this 
supplement based on the results of our actuarial valuation and (if applicable) subsequent projections. We 
are available to discuss any differences between our calculations and your records. 

Our actuarial valuation report is intended to comply with GASB 75’s valuation requirements (at least one 
every two years); the following schedules are intended to provide the reporting information specific to the 
applicable reporting period (July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021),  with updates to the measurement date (June 
30, 2020). 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Plan Description 

Plan administration. The Agency administers a single employer defined benefit healthcare plan. The 
Agency currently provides retiree health benefits to retirees and their dependents through Contra Costa 
County. All retired employees are eligible to receive health and dental benefits for life, with costs shared 
by the Agency and the retirees. 
 
Benefits provided. Employees who attain age 55 and complete 10 years of service are eligible to receive 
an Agency paid benefit. The Agency pays a portion of the retiree’s medical and dental benefits for the 
lifetime of the retiree and their dependents. 
  
Plan membership. At July 1, 2019, membership consisted of the following: 
 

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 3 
Active plan members 2 

 
Contributions. The contribution requirements of Plan members and the Agency are established and 
amended by the Agency. The Agency has an irrevocable trust account with Public Agency Retirement 
Services (PARS). 
  
  



Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission 
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan 

 
GASB 75 Disclosure Information 

 
 

 2 3/12/2021 

Net OPEB Liability 

The Agency’s Net OPEB Liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 and the Total OPEB Liability used to 
calculate the Net OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019. Standard 
actuarial update procedures were used to project/discount from valuation to measurement dates. 

Actuarial assumptions. The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, 
applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:  

Actuarial cost method Entry Age, Level Percent of Pay 
Recognition of deferred inflows 
and outflows of resources 

Closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service 
lives of all employees provided with OPEB 

Salary increases 3.00 percent 
Inflation rate 3.00 percent 
Investment rate of return 4.00 percent, net of OPEB plan investment expense 
Healthcare cost trend rate 5.90 percent for 2020; 5.80 percent for 2021; 5.70 percent for 2022; and 

decreasing 0.10 percent per year to an ultimate rate of 5.00 percent for 
2029 and later years 

 
Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table for Males or 
Females, as appropriate, without projection. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 
Health Annuitant Mortality Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, without projection. 
 
Actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on a review of plan experience 
during the period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2019. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The calculated investment rate of return was set 
equal to the expected ten-year compound (geometric) real return plus inflation (rounded to the nearest 25 
basis points, where appropriate). The table below provides the long-term expected real rates of return by 
asset class (based on published capital market assumptions). 

Asset Class Assumed Asset Allocation Real Rate of Return 
Broad U.S. Equity 60% 4.4% 
U.S. Fixed 40% 1.5% 

 
Discount rate. GASB 75 requires a discount rate that reflects the following: 

a) The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments – to the extent that the OPEB 
plan’s fiduciary net position (if any) is projected to be enough to make projected benefit payments 
and assets are expected to be invested using a strategy to achieve that return; 

b) A yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average 
rating of AA/Aa or higher – to the extent that the conditions in (a) are not met. 
 

To determine a resulting single (blended) rate, the amount of the plan’s projected fiduciary net position (if 
any) and the amount of projected benefit payments is compared in each period of projected benefit 
payments.  The discount rate used to measure the Agency’s Total OPEB liability is based on these 
requirements and the following information: 

Reporting Date Measurement Date 

Long-Term 
Expected Return of 
Plan Investments  

(if any) 

Fidelity GO AA  
20 Years 

Municipal Index Discount Rate 
June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 4.00% 3.13% 4.00% 
June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 4.00% 2.45% 4.00% 

  



Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission 
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan 

 
GASB 75 Disclosure Information 

 
 

 3 3/12/2021 

The components of the net OPEB liability were as follows: 
 

Total OPEB liability 351,331 
Plan fiduciary net position 283,868 
Net OPEB liability $67,463 

 
Measurement date June 30, 2020 
Reporting date June 30, 2021 

 
Covered payroll $208,785 
Net OPEB liability (asset) as a percentage of covered payroll 32.31% 
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 80.80% 

 
 
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability (June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020) 
 

Total OPEB Liability  
Service Cost 20,689  
Interest 14,067  
Changes of benefit terms 0 
Difference between expected and actual experience 0 
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 0 
Benefit payments1 (28,546) 
Net change in total OPEB liability 6,210 
Total OPEB liability – June 30, 2019 (a) $345,121  
Total OPEB liability – June 30, 2020 (b) $351,331  
  
Plan fiduciary net position  
Contributions – employer1 68,546 
Net investment income 9,609 
Benefit payments1 (28,546) 
Trustee fees (161) 
Administrative expense 0 
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 49,448 
Plan fiduciary net position – June 30, 2019 (c) $234,420 
Plan fiduciary net position – June 30, 2020 (d) $283,868 
  
Net OPEB liability – June 30, 2019 (c) – (a)  $110,701 
Net OPEB liability – June 30, 2020 (d) – (b)  $67,463 

 

1 Amount includes any implicit subsidy associated with benefits paid (see Page 5). 

 
  



Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission 
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan 

 
GASB 75 Disclosure Information 

 
 

 4 3/12/2021 

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net OPEB 
liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate: 
 

 1% Decrease 
(3.00%) 

Discount Rate  
(4.00%) 

1% Increase 
(5.00%) 

Net OPEB liability (asset) 100,476 67,463 39,302 
 
Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents 
the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using 
healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the 
current healthcare cost trend rates: 
 

 1% Decrease 
(4.90% for 2020, 
4.00% ultimate) 

Trend Rate  
(5.90% for 2020,    
5.00% ultimate) 

1% Increase 
(6.90% for 2020 
6.00% ultimate) 

Net OPEB liability (asset) 36,176 67,463 103,682 
 
 

  



Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission 
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan 

 
GASB 75 Disclosure Information 

 
 

 5 3/12/2021 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

 
Measurement date June 30, 2020 
Reporting date June 30, 2021 

 
 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 

2 Includes an implicit subsidy credit as follows: 

 Trust Non-Trust Total 
Employer contribution $40,000 $27,839 $67,839 
Implicit subsidy credit 0 707 707 
Total employer contributions $40,000 $28,546 $68,546 
    
Benefit payments $0 $27,839 $27,839 
Implicit subsidy credit 0 707 707 
Total benefit payments $0 $28,546 $28,546 

 
  

Assets  
Cash, deposits, and cash equivalents 0  
Receivables:  

Accrued Income 0 
Total receivables 0 

Investments:  
Managed account 283,868  

Total Investments 283,868  
Total Assets 283,868  

  
Liabilities  

Payables 0 
Total Liabilities 0 

  
Net position restricted for postemployment benefits other than pensions $283,868 

Additions  
Employer contributions2 68,546 
Investment income:  

Net increase in fair value of investments 9,609 
Total additions 78,155 

  
Deductions  

Trustee fees 161 
Administrative expense 0 
Benefit payments2 28,546 

Total deductions 28,707 
Net increase in net position 49,448 

  
Net position restricted for postemployment benefits other than pensions  

Beginning of year – June 30, 2019 $234,420 
End of year – June 30, 2020 $283,868 



Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission 
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan 

 
GASB 75 Disclosure Information 

 
 

 6 3/12/2021 

Investments 
 
Investment policy. The Agency’s policy regarding the allocation of the plan’s invested assets is 
established and may be amended by Agency management. The primary objective is to maximize total 
Plan return, subject to the risk and quality constraints set forth in the investment guidelines. The Agency’s 
assets are invested through PARS. The asset allocation ranges for this objective are listed below: 
 

Strategic Asset Allocation Ranges 
 Cash Fixed Income Equity 

Stated Range 0-20% 40%-60% 40%-60% 
 
Market conditions may cause the account’s asset allocation to vary from the stated range from time to 
time. The investment manager (assisting the Agency) will rebalance the portfolio no less than quarterly 
and/or when the actual weighting differs substantially from the strategic range, if appropriate and 
consistent with the objectives. 
 
Rate of return. For the year ended on the measurement date, the annual money-weighted rate of return 
on investments, net of investment expense, was 3.59 percent. The money-weighted rate of return 
expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts 
invested. 

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expense 3.59% 
  



Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission 
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan 

 
GASB 75 Disclosure Information 

 
 

 7 3/12/2021 

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

At June 30, 2021, the Agency’s deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources to OPEB 
from the following sources are: 
 

 
Deferred Outflows 

of Resources 
Deferred Inflows 

of Resources 
Difference between expected and actual experience3,4 0 0 

Changes in assumptions or other inputs3,4 0 0 

Differences between projected and actual return 
investments3,4 

1,787 3,847 

    Total $1,7875 $3,847 

 
3 Measured at June 30, 2020. 
4 See Schedule of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources for additional information. 
5 Does not include Agency contributions (plus associated implicit subsidy) made after the measurement, 
which will be recognized as a reduction of the Net OPEB Liability in the year ending June 30, 2021. 

 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in OPEB 
expense as follows: 

Fiscal Year  
ending June 30: Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

2022 1,149 (1,411) 
2023 212 (1,410) 
2024 212 (1,026) 
2025 214 0 
2026 0 0 
2027 0 0 
2028 0 0 
2029 0 0 
2030 0 0 
2031 0 0 



Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission 
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan 

 
GASB 75 Disclosure Information 

 
 

 8 3/12/2021 

Schedule of Deferred Outflows of Resources  

Year Type Category Initial Base 
Amortization 

Period 
Annual 

Recognition 
Current 
Balance 

2018 Deferred Outflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 0.0 0 0  
2018 Deferred Outflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 0 0.0 0 0  
2018 Deferred Outflow Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 4,693 5.0 939 937  
2019 Deferred Outflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 0.0 0 0  
2019 Deferred Outflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 0 0.0 0 0  
2019 Deferred Outflow Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 0 0.0 0 0  
2020 Deferred Outflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 0.0 0 0  
2020 Deferred Outflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 0 0.0 0 0  
2020 Deferred Outflow Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 0 0.0 0 0  
2021 Deferred Outflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 1.0 0 0 
2021 Deferred Outflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 0 1.0 0 0 
2021 Deferred Outflow Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 1,062 5.0 212 850 

Total 1,787 

 

Schedule of Deferred Inflows of Resources  

Year Type Category Initial Base 
Amortization 

Period 
Annual 

Recognition 
Current 
Balance 

2018 Deferred Inflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 0.0 0 0  

2018 Deferred Inflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 0 0.0 0 0  

2018 Deferred Inflow Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 0 0.0 0 0  

2019 Deferred Inflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 0.0 0 0  

2019 Deferred Inflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 0 0.0 0 0  

2019 Deferred Inflow Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 1,934 5.0 387 773  

2020 Deferred Inflow Difference between expected and actual experience 194,009 1.0 0 0  

2020 Deferred Inflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 27,855 1.0 0 0  

2020 Deferred Inflow Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 5,122 5.0 1,024 3,074  

2021 Deferred Inflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 1.0 0 0 

2021 Deferred Inflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 0 1.0 0 0 

2021 Deferred Inflow Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 0 5.0 0 0 

Total  3,847 

 



Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission 
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan 

 
GASB 75 Disclosure Information 

 
 

 9 3/12/2021 

Net OPEB Expense 

The Agency’s Net OPEB expense was $(197,878). 
 

Net OPEB Liability – beginning (a) $110,701 

Net OPEB Liability – ending (b) $67,463 

Change in Net OPEB Liability [(b)-(a)] (43,238) 

Change in Deferred Outflows 89 

Change in Deferred Inflows (223,275)  

Employer Contributions 68,546  

Net OPEB Expense – June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020 $(197,878)  

 
 

Service Cost 20,689  
Interest Cost 14,067  
Expected Return on Assets (10,510) 
Changes of benefit terms 0 
Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Inflows  

Differences between expected and actual experience (194,009) 
Changes of assumptions (27,855) 
Differences between projected and actual investments (260) 

     Total (222,124) 
Net OPEB Expense – June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020 $(197,878)  

 

Actuarially Determined Contribution 

The actuarially determined contributions from the most recent actuarial valuation are: 

Actuarially Determined Contribution for year ending June 30, 20206 $25,916  
Actuarially Determined Contribution for year ending June 30, 20216 26,694 

 

Valuation Date July 1, 2019  
Discount Rate (Expected Long-term Return on Assets) 4.00% 
Salary Increases 3.00% 

 

6 For purposes of reporting the comparison between actual employer OPEB contributions and the actuarially 
determined contribution, we recommend multiplying the actual Agency-paid contributions to trust and Agency-paid 
premiums on behalf of retirees by a factor of 1.0254 to adjust for the implicit subsidy.   



Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission 
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan 

 
GASB 75 Disclosure Information 

 
 

 10 3/12/2021 

Actuarial Certification 

The results set forth in this supplement are based on our actuarial valuation of the health and welfare 
benefit plans of the Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission as of July 1, 2019. 
 
The valuation was performed in accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles and practices.  
We relied on census data for active employees and retirees provided to us by the Agency.  We also made 
use of claims, premium, expense, and enrollment data, and copies of relevant sections of healthcare 
documents provided to us by the Agency, and (when applicable) trust statements prepared by the trustee 
and provided to us by the Agency. 
 
The assumptions used in performing the valuation, as summarized in this report, and the results based 
thereupon, represent our best estimate of the actuarial costs of the program under GASB 74 and GASB 
75, and the existing and proposed Actuarial Standards of Practice for measuring post-retirement 
healthcare benefits. 
 
Each undersigned actuary meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to 
render the actuarial opinion contained in this report. 
 
Certified by: 
 
 
 

 
Molly McGee, ASA, EA, MAAA 
Actuary 

Carlos Diaz, ASA, EA, MAAA 
Actuary 

 



 

 

Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission 
c/o California School Boards Association 



 

April 14, 2021 

Agenda Item 13 

 

April 14, 2021 (Agenda) 
 
Contra Costa Local Agency Formation Commission  
40 Muir Road, 1st Floor 
Martinez, CA 94553 
 
 

Chang Property Boundary Reorganization - Update 
 
 
Dear Members of the Commission:  
 

On August 8, 2018, the Commission approved the Chang Property Reorganization – Annexations 

to the City of San Ramon, Central Contra Costa Sanitary District (CCCSD) and East Bay 

Municipal Utility District (EBMUD) and Corresponding Detachment from County Service Area 

(CSA) P-6. The proposal includes annexation of 63.5+ acres to the City of San Ramon, CCCSD 

and EBMUD and corresponding detachment from CSA P-6. The area is located at the intersection 

of Bollinger Canyon Road and Crow Canyon Road in unincorporated San Ramon. The proposal 

will extend city, wastewater, and water services to facilitate the development of 43 single-family 

large lot homes, 18 accessory dwelling units, and related facilities on the Chang property. 

 

One of LAFCO’s conditions of approval is that the property owner provide LAFCO with a certified 

copy of a recorded grant of open space easement from the Chang property owner(s) to the City of 

San Ramon and/or other public agency or land trust that prohibits urban development and 

permanently preserves the existing open space and agricultural uses on 134+ acres that are 

outside of the urban growth boundary and designated for open space and agricultural uses. 

Further, that the easement remains in effect in perpetuity, and that it is consistent with the 

conditions of approval in accordance with the Vesting Tentative Map 9485.  

 

In accordance with Government Code §57001, if a Certificate of Completion is not filed within 

one year after the Commission approves a proposal, the proceeding shall be deemed abandoned 

unless prior to the expiration of that year the Commission authorizes an extension of time to 

complete the proceedings.  

 

The landowners experienced delays in coordinating the timing of the open space easement with 

the City of San Ramon and the resource agencies due to COVID and other challenges. In response  

 







 
The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

AGENDA 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING

REGULAR MEETING 
January 13, 2021, 9:00 a.m. 

The Board of Retirement meeting will be accessible telephonically at +1 (408) 650-3123, access 

code 306-520-693 due to the Contra Costa County and State of California Coronavirus (COVID-19) 

Shelter In Place Orders, and as permitted by Executive Order N-29-20 issued on March 17, 2020. 

Persons who wish to make public comment may submit their comment to 
publiccomment@cccera.org on the day of the meeting, either before or during the meeting. 
Public comments are limited to any item of interest to the public that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board of Retirement.  (Gov’t Code Section 54954.3(a).)  All comments 
submitted will be included in the record of the meeting. The comments will be read into the 
record at the meeting, subject to a three-minute time limit per comment.  

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 

1. Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Roll Call.

3. Accept comments from the public.

4. Approve minutes from the November 18, 2020 and December 9, 2020 meetings.

5. Routine items for January 13, 2021.

a. Approve certifications of membership.
b. Approve service and disability allowances.
c. Accept disability applications and authorize subpoenas as required.
d. Approve death benefits.
e. Accept asset allocation report.
f. Accept liquidity report.

April 14, 2021
Agenda Item 14

mailto:publiccomment@cccera.org


 

 

   

   

. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

6.  The Board will go in to closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957 to 
consider recommendations from the medical advisor and/or staff regarding the 
following disability retirement applications: 

 

Member Type Sought Recommendation 
a.  Mark Emery Service Connected Non-Service Connected 
   

 

7.  The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957 to 
consider the Hearing Officer’s recommendation regarding the disability application 
for Rhonda Barksdale. 
 

8.  The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957 to 
consider the Hearing Officer’s recommendation regarding the disability application 
for Sandra Eschliman. 
 

9.  The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957 to 
consider the Hearing Officer’s recommendation regarding the disability application 
for Theresa Nino. 
 

10.  The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957 to 
consider the Hearing Officer’s recommendation regarding the disability application 
for Tavane Payne. 
 

OPEN SESSION 

 

11.  Consider and take possible action to authorize the CEO to execute an agreement 
with Contra Costa Superior Court for contribution and reporting deadlines. 
 

12.  Presentation of the Contra Costa County Assessor’s Office employer audit report. 
 

13.  Consider authorizing the attendance of Board: 
a. 9th Annual Risk & Liquidity Forum, Institutional Investor Forums, January 26-

28, 2021, Virtual. (Note: Conflict with meeting) 
b. 39th Annual Sit Investment Client Workshop, February 11-12, 2021, Virtual. 
c. NASRA Winter Meeting & Joint Legislative Conference, February 22-24, 

2021, Virtual. (Note: Conflict with meeting) 
d. CALAPRS General Assembly, March 8-9, 2021, Virtual. 

 
14.  Miscellaneous 

a. Staff Report     
b. Outside Professionals’ Report  
c. Trustees’ comments 

 



 

   

 
The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

 

AGENDA  
 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING  
 

REGULAR MEETING 
January 27, 2021, 9:00 a.m. 

 

The Board of Retirement meeting will be accessible telephonically at +1 (872) 240-3212, access 

code 454-753-685 due to the Contra Costa County and State of California Coronavirus (COVID-19) 

Shelter In Place Orders, and as permitted by Executive Order N-29-20 issued on March 17, 2020. 

 
Persons who wish to make public comment may submit their comment to 
publiccomment@cccera.org on the day of the meeting, either before or during the meeting.  
Public comments are limited to any item of interest to the public that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board of Retirement.  (Gov’t Code Section 54954.3(a).)  All comments 
submitted will be included in the record of the meeting. The comments will be read into the 
record at the meeting, subject to a three-minute time limit per comment.   

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 
 

1.  Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2.  Roll Call. 
 

3.  Accept comments from the public. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

4.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS  
(Government Code Section 54957.6)  
 
Agency designated representative:  
Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer  
 
Unrepresented Employees: All CCCERA unrepresented positions 
 
 

mailto:publiccomment@cccera.org


 

 
The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

5.  The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957 to 
evaluate the performance of the following public employee:  
 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 
 

6.  The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 
54956.9(d)(1) to confer with legal counsel regarding pending litigation: 
 

a. Contra Costa County Deputy Sheriffs Association, et al., v. Board of 
Retirement of CCCERA, et al., Contra Costa County Superior Court, Case No. 
MSN12-1870 
 

OPEN SESSION 
 

7.  Educational presentation on fiduciary duties presented by fiduciary counsel. 

8.  Educational presentation on Ralph M. Brown Act open meetings laws. 

9.  Consider and take possible action to adopt a cost-of-living increase for retirees as of 
April 1, 2021. 
 

10.  Presentation of asset allocation implementation timeline. 

11.  Miscellaneous 
a. Staff Report     
b. Outside Professionals’ Report  
c. Trustees’ comments 

 



 
 

  
The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

AGENDA  
 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING  
 

REGULAR MEETING 
February 10, 2021, 9:00 a.m. 

 

Due to the Contra Costa County and State of California Coronavirus (COVID-19) Shelter In Place 

Orders, and as permitted by Executive Order N-29-20 issued on March 17, 2020, the Board of 

Retirement shall hold its meeting via teleconferencing. The meeting is accessible telephonically at 

(669) 900-6833, Webinar ID: 979 5776 9876, Passcode: 276941, or via the web at 

https://zoom.us/j/97957769876?pwd=NkpuZ2xxS2pwZkJMYUxqdjl1V2lzQT09 Passcode: 276941 
 

Persons who wish to make public comment may submit their comment to: 
publiccomment@cccera.org on the day of the meeting, either before or during the meeting.  
Public comments are limited to any item of interest to the public that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board of Retirement.  (Gov’t Code Section 54954.3(a).)  All comments 
submitted will be included in the record of the meeting. The comments will be read into the 
record at the meeting, subject to a three-minute time limit per comment.   

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 

1.  Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2.  Roll Call. 
 

3.  Accept comments from the public. 
 

4.  Approve minutes from the January 13, 2021 meeting. 
 

5.  Routine items for February 10, 2021. 
 

a. Approve certifications of membership. 
b. Approve service and disability allowances. 
c. Accept disability applications and authorize subpoenas as required. 
d. Approve death benefits. 
e. Accept travel report. 
f. Accept asset allocation report. 
g. Accept liquidity report. 

 

https://zoom.us/j/97957769876?pwd=NkpuZ2xxS2pwZkJMYUxqdjl1V2lzQT09
mailto:publiccomment@cccera.org


 

 

   

   

. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

6.  Consider and take possible action regarding the following disability retirement 
application and related medical advisor/staff recommendation: 
 
Member Type Sought Recommendation 
Walter Wong Service Connected Service Connected 
   

 

7.  Presentation from PARS (Public Agency Retirement Services) regarding the I.R.C. 
Section 115 Trust for Other Post-Employment Benefits for CCCERA Employees.  
 

8.  CCCERA Operations Update. 

9.  Consider and take possible action to:  
a. adopt Board of Retirement Resolution 2021-1 to increase the salary ranges 

by 3% for all unrepresented classifications effective April 1, 2021, with the 
exception of the Chief Executive Officer.  

b.   adopt the CCCERA Position Pay Schedule for unrepresented classifications 
effective April 1, 2021 which reflects the salary range changes in Board of 
Retirement Resolution 2021-1. 

 
10.  Miscellaneous 

a. Staff Report     
b. Outside Professionals’ Report  
c. Trustees’ comments 

 



 

   

 
The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

 

AGENDA  
 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING  
 

REGULAR MEETING 
February 24, 2021, 9:00 a.m. 

 

Due to the Contra Costa County and State of California Coronavirus (COVID-19) Shelter In Place 
Orders, and as permitted by Executive Order N-29-20 issued on March 17, 2020, the Board of 
Retirement shall hold its meeting via teleconferencing. The meeting is accessible telephonically at 
(669) 900-6833, Webinar ID: 979 6853 0188, Passcode: 906699, or via the web at 
https://zoom.us/j/97968530188?pwd=b3FzTWswKzBqcEt0ZUYzdDd3U2d6QT09 Passcode:906699 
 

Persons who wish to make public comment may submit their comment to: 
publiccomment@cccera.org on the day of the meeting, either before or during the meeting.  
Public comments are limited to any item of interest to the public that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board of Retirement.  (Gov’t Code Section 54954.3(a).)  All comments 
submitted will be included in the record of the meeting. The comments will be read into the 
record at the meeting, subject to a three-minute time limit per comment.   

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 
 

1.  Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2.  Roll Call. 
 

3.  Accept comments from the public. 
 

4.  Approve minutes from the January 27, 2021 meeting. 
 

5.  Presentation from staff and Sit Investment Advisors regarding a potential allocation 
to Sit LLCAR strategy. 
 

6.  Consider and take possible action to approve an investment in Sit LLCAR strategy. 

7.  Consider and take possible action to authorize the CEO to execute a contract with    
Milliman for Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Trust Actuarial Services. 
 
 

https://zoom.us/j/97968530188?pwd=b3FzTWswKzBqcEt0ZUYzdDd3U2d6QT09
mailto:publiccomment@cccera.org


 

 
The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

8.  Review of total portfolio performance for period ending December 31, 2020.  
a. Presentation from Verus 
b. Presentation from staff 

 
9.  Investment benchmark recommendations. 

10.  Annual statement of compliance with Board resolutions. 

11.  Consider authorizing the attendance of Board: 
a. Siguler Guff’s 2021 Annual Conference, April 28-29, 2021, Virtual.             

(Note: Conflict with meeting) 
 

12.  Miscellaneous 
a. Staff Report     
b. Outside Professionals’ Report  
c. Trustees’ comments 

 



 
 

  
The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

AGENDA  
 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING  
 

REGULAR MEETING 
March 10, 2021, 9:00 a.m. 

 

Due to the Contra Costa County and State of California Coronavirus (COVID-19) Shelter In Place 
Orders, and as permitted by Executive Order N-29-20 issued on March 17, 2020, the Board of 
Retirement shall hold its meeting via teleconferencing. The meeting is accessible telephonically at 
669-900-6833, Webinar ID: 948 5981 5106, Passcode: 704217, or via the web at: 
https://zoom.us/j/94859815106?pwd=MXd1cVpYdXRnNDlVd1d4MDFZQlh0QT09 Passcode: 704217 
 

Persons who wish to make public comment may submit their comment to: 
publiccomment@cccera.org on the day of the meeting, either before or during the meeting.      
Public comments are limited to any item of interest to the public that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board of Retirement.  (Gov’t Code Section 54954.3(a).)  All comments submitted 
will be included in the record of the meeting. The comments will be read into the record at the 
meeting, subject to a three-minute time limit per comment.   

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 

1.  Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2.  Recognition of Lori Epstein for 10 years of service. 
 

3.  Roll Call. 
 

4.  Accept comments from the public. 
 

5.  Approve minutes from the February 10, 2021 meeting. 
 

6.  Routine items for March 10, 2021. 
 

a. Approve certifications of membership. 
b. Approve service and disability allowances. 
c. Accept disability applications and authorize subpoenas as required. 
d. Approve death benefits. 
e. Accept asset allocation report. 
f. Accept liquidity report. 

https://zoom.us/j/94859815106?pwd=MXd1cVpYdXRnNDlVd1d4MDFZQlh0QT09
mailto:publiccomment@cccera.org


 

 

   

   

. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

7.  The Board will go in to closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957 to 
consider recommendations from the medical advisor and/or staff regarding the 
following disability retirement applications: 

 

Member Type Sought Recommendation 
a. Graciela Corbett Non-Service Connected Non-Service Connected 
   

 

8.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 
(Government Code Section 54957.6) 
 
Agency designated representative: 
Joe Wiley, CCCERA’s Chief Negotiator 
 
Unrepresented Employee: Chief Executive Officer 
 

9.  The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 
54956.9(d)(1) to confer with legal counsel regarding pending litigation: 
 

a. CCCERA, et al. v. Valeant Pharms. Int’l, Inc., et al., United States District Court, 
New Jersey (3:17-cv-12088) 

 
10.  The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 

54956.9(d)(2) to confer with legal counsel regarding potential litigation (one case). 
 

OPEN SESSION 
 

11.  Presentation of Semi-Annual Disability Retirement Report. 
 

12.  Disability retirement process.  

13.  Presentation of the Contra Costa County Library employer audit report. 
 

14.  Presentation of the Contra Costa Employment and Human Services Department 
employer audit report. 
 

15.  Presentation of the Rodeo Sanitary District employer audit report. 
 

16.  Consider and take possible action to authorize the CEO to acquire additional support 
hours from CPAS Systems, Inc. 
 

17.  Consider and take possible action on SACRS voting proxy form. 



 

 

   

   

. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

18.  Report out from Audit Committee Chair on February 24, 2021 Audit Committee 
meeting. 
 

19.  Consider authorizing the attendance of Board: 
a. Pension Bridge Annual Conference, May 4-7, 2021, Virtual.                           

(Note: Conflict with meeting) 
b. SACRS Annual Spring Conference, May 11-14, 2021, Virtual. 

 
20.  Miscellaneous 

a. Staff Report     
b. Outside Professionals’ Report  
c. Trustees’ comments 

 



The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

AGENDA 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING 

REGULAR MEETING 
March 24, 2021, 9:00 a.m. 

Due to the Contra Costa County and State of California Coronavirus (COVID-19) Shelter In Place 
Orders, and as permitted by Executive Order N-29-20 issued on March 17, 2020, the Board of 
Retirement shall hold its meeting via teleconferencing. The meeting is accessible telephonically at 
(669) 900-6833, Webinar ID: 951 7715 8205, Passcode: 801649, or via the web at 
https://zoom.us/j/95177158205?pwd=ZkdkQVVpdFJPUHJjSEY2S1pkc0VqQT09 Passcode: 801649 

Persons who wish to make public comment may submit their comment to: 
publiccomment@cccera.org on the day of the meeting, either before or during the meeting.  
Public comments are limited to any item of interest to the public that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board of Retirement.  (Gov’t Code Section 54954.3(a).)  All comments 
submitted will be included in the record of the meeting. The comments will be read into the 
record at the meeting, subject to a three-minute time limit per comment.   

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 

1. Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Roll Call. 

3. Accept comments from the public. 

4. Approve minutes from the February 24, 2021 meeting. 

CLOSED SESSION 

5. The Board will go into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) 
to confer with legal counsel regarding pending litigation: 

a. Wilmot v. CCCERA, et al., Court of Appeal, First Appellate District, Division
Two, Case No. A152100



 

 
The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

OPEN SESSION 
 

6.  Consider and take possible action to amend the Investment Policy Statement. 
 

7.  Consider and take possible action to execute agreement with StoneX Futures 
Commission Merchant (FCM) for Sit LLCAR Strategy. 
 

8.  Consider and take possible action to adopt Board of Retirement Resolution 2021-2 
to increase the salary of the Chief Executive Officer by 6.5% and provide a one-time 
lump sum payment of $5,000 effective April 1, 2021. 
 

9.  Consider and take possible action to adopt Board of Retirement Resolution 2021-3 
providing for salary and benefits for unrepresented employees of CCCERA to reflect 
the new CEO monthly base salary effective April 1, 2021. 
 

10.  Consider authorizing the attendance of Board: 
a. CALAPRS Trustees Roundtable, May 10, 2021, Virtual Program.  
b. CALAPRS Advanced Principles of Pension Governance for Trustees, June 7, 9 

& 11, 2021, Virtual Program. (Note: Conflict with meeting) 
 

11.  Miscellaneous 
a. Staff Report     
b. Outside Professionals’ Report  
c. Trustees’ comments 

 



RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 
February 24, 2021 

9:00 a.m. 

The Board of Retirement meeting was accessible telephonically at (669) 900-6833, Webinar ID 
979-6853-0188, Passcode 906699 due to the Contra Costa County and State of California 
Coronavirus (COVID-19) Shelter In Place Orders, and as permitted by Executive Order N-29-20 
issued on March 17, 2020. 

1. Pledge of Allegiance

The Board and staff joined in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Roll Call

Present: Candace Andersen, Donald Finley, Scott Gordon, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll,
Jay Kwon, David MacDonald, John Phillips, Reggie Powell, Mike Sloan, Todd 
Smithey and Belinda Zhu (Deputy Treasurer, present and voting in Treasurer 
Russell Watts’ absence) 

Absent: None 

Staff: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer; Christina Dunn, Deputy Chief Executive 
Officer; Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer; Karen Levy, General Counsel; 
Wrally Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer; Anne Sommers, Administrative/HR 
Manager; Henry Gudino, Accounting Manager; Tim Hoppe, Retirement Services 
Manager; and Jasmine Lee, Member Services Manager 

Outside Professional Support: Representing: 

Bryce Doty Sit Investment Advisors 
John Gibas Sit Investment Advisors 
Mark Book Sit Investment Advisors 
Chris Rasmussen Sit Investment Advisors 
Scott Whalen Verus Consulting 
John R. Botsford Milliman, Inc.  

Meeting Date 
03/24/2021 
Agenda Item 

#4 



Page 2 
February 24, 2021 

 

 

 
3. Accept comments from the public 

No member of the public offered comment. 

4. Approval of Minutes 

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes from the January 27, 2021 Board meeting.  (Yes: 
Andersen, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Zhu) 

5. Presentation from staff and Sit Investment Advisors regarding a potential allocation to 
Sit LLCAR strategy 

Price provided an overview of the goals of the risk diversifying sub-portfolio. Taylor 
reviewed the research process and presented the recommendation. 

Gibas provided an overview of the firm. Doty presented the Risk-Diversifying Strategy and 
Book reviewed the Taxable Municipal Strategy. Rasmussen reviewed the Closed-End 
Mutual Funds and Doty presented the investment process. 

6. Consider and take possible action to approve an investment in Sit LLCAR strategy 

It was M/S/C to approve an investment in the Sit Investment Associates Liquid Low 
Correlation Absolute Return Strategy. (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, 
MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Zhu) 
  

7. Consider and take possible action to authorize the CEO to execute a contract with 
Milliman for Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Trust Actuarial Services 

It was M/S/C to authorize the CEO to execute a contract with Milliman, Inc. for OPEB 
Trust Actuarial Services for the six fiscal years 2020-2025. (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Gordon, 
Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Zhu) 

It was the consensus of the Board to move to Item 10. 

10. Annual Statement of Compliance with Board Resolutions 

Price presented the Annual Statement of Compliance with Board Resolutions.  

8. Review of total portfolio performance for period ending December 31, 2020 

a. Presentation from Verus  

Whalen reviewed the economic climate for the fourth quarter of 2020 and 
CCCERA’s investment fund performance for the period ending December 31, 2020. 

b. Presentation from staff 

Price reviewed CCCERA’s sub-portfolios.    



Page 3 
February 24, 2021 

 

 

9. Investment benchmark recommendations 

Whalen reviewed the framework on evaluating benchmarks and CCCERA’s investment 
policy index, including recommended changes to the benchmarks shown quarterly in the 
Verus report 

11. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board: 

a. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 3 Board members at the Siguler Guff’s 
2021 Annual Conference, April 28-29, 2021, Virtual. (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Gordon, 
Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Zhu) 

 
12. Miscellaneous 

(a)   Staff Report – 
 
Strohl reported CCCERA will be having two Virtual Pre-Retirement Workshops for 
members in March. 

 
(b) Outside Professionals’ Report - 

 
None 
 

(c)   Trustees’ comments – 
 
Phillips reported he attended the Sit Investment Client Conference.  
 

 
 
It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting. (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, 
MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Zhu) 
 
 
 
 
             
Todd Smithey, Chairman    David MacDonald, Secretary 



1 

Memorandum 

To: Board of Trustees, Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association 

From: Scott J. Whalen, CFA, CAIA, Executive Managing Director|Senior Consultant 

Date: March 24, 2021 

Re: Amendments to Investment Policy Statement 

Introduction 

Updating the Investment Policy Statement (“IPS”) was recognized as one of the key 

implementation steps to be completed following the Board decision late last year to adjust the 

strategic asset allocation (“SAA”).  We have completed our review of the IPS and identified 

appropriate adjustments, which fall into three categories: 

1. Liquidity sub-portfolio allocation;

2. Staff investment authority; and

3. General improvement opportunities.

The adjustments described below in additional detail have been reviewed by CCCERA’s investment 

staff, internal legal department, and external fiduciary counsel.  Red-lined version and final 

versions of the updated IPS are included as part of this agenda item to facilitate Board review. 

Liquidity Sub-Portfolio 

Adjustments to the language describing the allocation to the liquidity sub-portfolio were 

straightforward and only required in four places within Section 6, Investment Strategy.  

Specifically, the target allocation was changed to 36 months of projected benefit payments from 

48 months with a minimum of 18 months during market corrections.  Additionally, the expected 

allocation range was also reduced by 12 months to 24-36 months from 36-48 months. 

Staff Investment Authority 

When the SAA was originally approved five years ago, the investment portfolio totaled just over $7 

billion, and the target allocation to private market assets was 32% or just over $2 billion.  Five 

years on, total assets have grown to more than $10 billion, and the private markets target 

Meeting Date 
03/24/2021 
Agenda Item 

#6 



2  

allocation has increased to 41% or more than $4 billion.  In light of this growth, we recommend 

increasing investment staff authority for investments from the original limit of $100 million to 

$250 million.  We believe this increase reasonably reflects the increased assets dedicated to 

private market investments and Staff’s demonstrated ability to effectively manage 

implementation since program inception. 

 

In addition to the increased authority, we recommend the metric by which the authority limits are 

measured change from committed capital to committed but undrawn capital.  Such an adjustment 

will increase Staff’s ability to manage to desired investment levels given the uncertain timing of 

the cash flows that results from capital calls and distributions.  Reporting language has also been 

formalized in the IPS to ensure the Board is able to effectively monitor compliance with the 

increased authority limits. 

 

General Improvement Opportunities 

We also conducted a general review of the IPS and identified several opportunities to clarify or 

streamline the document.  These minor adjustments can be found interspersed throughout the 

document. 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement 

Association Investment Policy Statement 

 
 

Adopted: January 14, 1986 

Restated: September 28, 2016 

Amended: April 24, 2019 

Amended: March 24, 2021 

Meeting Date 
03/24/2021 
Agenda Item 

#6 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. PURPOSE ......................................................................................................................................... 1 

2. AUTHORITY ................................................................................................................................... 1 

3. GOVERNANCE ............................................................................................................................... 2 

A. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES ........................................................................................................................... 2 

1. Board of retirement ...................................................................................................................... 2 

2. Staff .............................................................................................................................................. 3 

3. General investment consultant ..................................................................................................... 3 

4. Specialty investment consultants .................................................................................................. 3 

5. Investment managers .................................................................................................................... 4 

6. Custodian bank ............................................................................................................................. 4 

B. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY .............................................................................................................................. 4 

1. Rebalancing .................................................................................................................................. 5 

2. Investment portfolio management ................................................................................................ 5 

4. INVESTMENT PHILOSOPHY ...................................................................................................... 8 

5. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES ....................................................................................................... 9 

6. INVESTMENT STRATEGY .......................................................................................................... 9 

A. ASSET ALLOCATION .............................................................................................................................................. 9 

B. FUNCTIONAL SUB-PORTFOLIOS ....................................................................................................................... 10 

1. Liquidity sub-portfolio ............................................................................................................... 10 

2. Growth sub-portfolio .................................................................................................................. 10 

3. Diversifying sub-portfolio .......................................................................................................... 11 

4. Interaction between the functional sub-portfolios ...................................................................... 11 

C. INVESTMENT STRATEGY ATTRIBUTES .......................................................................................................... 12 

7. RISK PHILOSOPHY ..................................................................................................................... 12 

8. PORTFOLIO MONITORING ...................................................................................................... 13 

APPENDIX 1: REFERENCED INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS .................................................. 14 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

1 

 

 

 

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement 

Association Investment Policy Statement 

Adopted: January 14, 1986 

Restated: September 28, 2016 

Amended: April March 24, 201921 

AMENDED: 1/14/86, 2/27/86, 10/13/87, 8/9/88, 6/13/89, 8/8/89, 1/8/91, 10/13/92, 

2/9/93, 5/2/94, 10/14/97, 5/4/99, 1/9/01, 2/12/02, 06/11/02, 11/06/02, 1/28/04, 5/26/04, 

7/28/04, 12/14/05, 10/24/07, 4/08/09, 10/30/13, 9/28/16, 4/24/19, 3/24/21 

 

The Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA) is a public employee 

retirement system that was established by the County of Contra Costa on July 1, 1945. CCCERA 

is administered by the CCCERA Board of Retirement (Board) to provide service retirement, 

disability, death, and survivor benefits for county employees and sixteen other participating 

agencies under the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937, California Government Code 

Section 31450 et. seq. (CERL), the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013, 

California Government Code Section 7522 et. seq. (PEPRA) and other applicable laws. 

 
1. PURPOSE 

CCCERA has established an investment program (Investment Program) designed to provide 

sufficient assets in a timely manner to pay the benefits due to participants today and in the 

future, over the long-term. The purpose of this Investment Policy Statement (IPS) is to 

establish the policies that will guide the Investment Program. This IPS is intended to provide 

guidance to the Board and to its delegates, the Staff, and third-party professionals. This IPS 

is supported by the Board’s Investment Resolutions, the Investment Procedures (Procedures), 

and Board policies that reflect the needs of the defined benefit plan (Plan) that the Board 

administers. The Investment Resolutions, policies and other Board documents identified in 

Appendix 1 hereto are incorporated into this IPS and made a part hereof by this reference. 

 
2. AUTHORITY 

The Investment Program shall be managed in accordance with applicable law, including but 

not limited to the following: 

• The assets of the Plan are trust funds and shall be held for the exclusive purposes of 

providing benefits to the participants in the Plan and their beneficiaries and defraying 

reasonable expenses of administering the Plan (Cal. Const. art. XVI, sec. 17(b); Cal. 

Govt. Code sec. 31595). 
 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

2 

 

 

• The board and its officers and employees shall discharge their duties with respect to the 

system: 

(a) Solely in the interest of, and for the exclusive purposes of providing benefits 

to, participants and their beneficiaries, minimizing employer contributions 

thereto, and defraying reasonable expenses of administering the system. 

(b) With the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then 

prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with these 

matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with 

like aims. 

(c) Shall diversify the investments of the system so as to minimize the risk of loss and 

to maximize the rate of return, unless under the circumstances it is clearly prudent not 

to do so. 

(Cal. Const. art. XVI sec. 17(b), (c) and (d); Cal. Gov. Code Sec. 31595 (a), (b) and (c)). 

 
3. GOVERNANCE 

The Board hereby adopts a governance model whereby specific authority, responsibility, and 

accountability are either retained by the Board or delegated to others based on areas of 

expertise and appropriate oversight. The Board retains sole responsibility governing the Plan, 

setting investment policy, and monitoring the Investment Program. It may choose to delegate 

specific areas of responsibility provided it retains appropriate oversight of the delegated 

activity. 
 

Roles and Responsibilities 
 

1. BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

The Board maintains the sole and plenary authority and fiduciary responsibility for 

the Investment Program. The Board also understands it may delegate certain 

responsibilities under the Investment Program for purposes of administrative 

efficiency and expertise. The areas of the Investment Program the Board may not 

delegate include: 

• The governance model of the Investment Program 

• Establishing and maintaining investment policy, including: 

o Investment philosophy 

o This IPS 

o Investment objectives 

o Strategic asset allocation 

o Allocation-level performance benchmarks 

o Risk philosophy 

• Engaging Board consultants and service providers 

• Monitoring the Investment Program 
 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

3 

 

 

2. STAFF 

CCCERA Staff (Staff), including the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief 

Investment Officer (CIO), is broadly responsible for supporting the Board in the 

effective execution of the Investment Program. The CEO provides general direction 

and supervision to the CIO. The CEO and the CIO have been delegated authority to 

execute specific elements of the Investment Program as outlined herein, including  

as well as in the Investment Resolutions. The CEO has the authority to execute and 

terminate contracts between CCCERA and investment managers or other service 

providers as approved by the Board. The CIO has the authority to rebalance the 

portfolio under Section 3.B.1. of this IPS. The CIO also has the authority to manage 

the investment managers within the Plan under Section 3.B.2 of this IPS. 
 

3. GENERAL INVESTMENT CONSULTANT 

The General Investment Consultant (Consultant) is engaged by the Board to provide 

independent, objective investment advice. The Consultant is and shall agree to be a 

fiduciary to the Plan under California law. The Consultant works with Staff in the 

development of recommendations while recognizing its fiduciary duty is to provide 

prudent investment advice to the Board. The Consultant provides advice without 

discretionary authority to execute on its advice. The specific duties of the Consultant 

are contained in an Agreement for Professional Investment Consulting Services, and 

generally include providing advice with respect to: 

• Investment strategy development and implementation 

• Investment policy development 

• Asset allocation among classes and subclasses 

• Investment manager selection, evaluation, and termination 

• Investment performance monitoring 

• Investment risk monitoring 

• Capital markets projections 

• Coordination with the Plan’s actuary in conducting periodic 

asset/liability studies and other required reporting 

• Board education 
 

4. SPECIALTY INVESTMENT CONSULTANTS 

Specialty consultants may be hired by the Board to work with Staff, the Consultant, 

and/or the Board. These will typically be asset class consultants (e.g., real estate, 

private equity, hedge funds) that may operate on a discretionary or non-discretionary 

basis, as directed by the Board, to meet the objectives of the Investment Program. 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

4 

 

 

 

5. INVESTMENT MANAGERS 

CCCERA engages Investment Managers to invest and manage CCCERA’s assets, in 

accordance with this IPS, the manager’s mandate, governing contractual documents 

and applicable state and federal laws and regulations. The Board has delegated the 

authority to CCCERA’s Chief Investment Officer, on the advice of legal counsel, to 

negotiate terms of engagement with Investment Managers so as to assure that 

CCCERA’s interests are appropriately furthered and Investment Managers observe 

a fiduciary standard of care. At a minimum, Investment Managers (and any affiliated 

General Partners) will be required to comply with all applicable state and federal laws 

and regulations. Investment Managers shall be registered investment advisors under 

the federal Investment Advisors Act of 1940, unless expressly exempted from 

registration. 

 
Subject to this IPS and any specific contractual obligations to the Plan, Investment 

Managers are responsible for making all investment decisions on a discretionary basis 

regarding assets placed under their jurisdiction and will be accountable for achieving 

their investment objectives. Such discretion shall include decisions to buy, hold, and 

sell assets in amounts and proportions that are reflective of the agreed-upon 

investment mandate. 
 

6. CUSTODIAN BANK 

The Custodian Bank, selected by the Board to act as the principal custodian of assets 

of the trust, is delegated the responsibility of holding the assets and evidence of 

interests owned by CCCERA in investment vehicles and cash (and equivalents). The 

Board may authorize the Custodian Bank to invest in temporary short-term fixed 

income investments both for the investment strategies and as a part of the cash portion 

of Plan assets. Such investments will be managed in general accordance with short- 

term fixed income investment guidelines as detailed in the Custodial Agreement. Cash 

managed for investment strategies shall be considered to be sub-portions of the assets 

managed by the directing Investment Managers. 

 
The Custodian Bank shall be authorized to conduct a securities lending program 

within liquidity and risk constraints as established by the Board. 
 

Delegation of Authority 

The Board has delegated authority to the CIO for certain functions as detailed below. 

Delegation of authority will be coordinated with workflow, compliance and reporting 

procedures that are clearly defined, reviewed, and approved. This IPS is used to describe 

the delegation of authority generally with the Investment Resolutions providing additional 

requirements and processes. The Board shall be notified in a timely manner of all 

investment decisions made by the CIO and their implications to the Plan. 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

5 

 

 

 

1. REBALANCING 

The Board recognizes there may be a cost to maintaining strict adherence to a target 

asset allocation in terms of both transaction costs and opportunity costs. The Board 

also recognizes that the benefit of cost minimization must be balanced against the 

assumption of active risk associated with allowing variances to asset allocation targets. 

 
The CIO is delegated the authority to conduct portfolio rebalancing in order to meet 

two distinct objectives. The first is to maintain the long-term strategic asset allocation 

targets approved by the Board. The second is to capture valuation-based opportunities 

by deviating from the long-term strategic asset allocation targets within Zones 1 and 

2 as follows: 

i. Zone 1 

The CIO may periodically rebalance the portfolio within Zone 1 ranges as set forth 

in the Investment Resolutions. When such rebalancing activity occurs, the CIO 

shall notify the Board at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

ii. Zone 2 

With prior approval of the Board, the CIO may rebalance the portfolio within Zone 

2 ranges as set forth in the Investment Resolutions. When such rebalancing activity 

occurs, the CIO shall notify the Board at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 
For each of the zones listed above, special consideration will be given to illiquid asset 

classes recognizing that their funding and redemption processes are different than 

those of the liquid asset classes. As such, each illiquid asset class is assigned a liquid 

asset class to function as a holding place while the corresponding illiquid strategies 

are being invested. 

 
Portfolio rebalancing may occur by adjusting allocations to individual investment 

strategies or managers or through the use of an overlay provider using derivatives. 
 

2. INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT 

While the Board believes the vast majority of investment return over the long term 

is dependent on the asset allocation decision and ongoing due diligence, it recognizes 

additional risk and return may be generated by how the asset allocation is 

implemented. These implementation decisions will largely be delegated to the CIO 

to be executed within the parameters established in the Investment Resolutions. 

i. Hiring a new manager 

The CIO shall have the authority to hire new managers (i.e., purchase interests in 

new investment vehicles) in accordance with the Plan’s active risk budget and up 

to an investment amount of $250100 million, subject to the remaining terms of 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

6 

 

 

this IPS. The $250100 million shall represent the cumulative total amount of 

originally committed but undrawn capital under the management of a single 

investment manager and its affiliates. (By way of example, two vintage year 

funds under one manager with a commitment of $50 million each would reach the 

total of $100 millionan investment manager with a commitment of $250 million 

and capital called to-date totaling $100 million would allow for an additional 

$150 million investment in a follow-on fund in the same series.) The CEO shall 

have authority to execute the contracts, consistent with the delegation of authority 

outlined in this IPS. Any cumulative committedment but undrawn investment 

amount above $250100 million shall require explicit Board approval.  The CIO 

shall report hiring decisions to the Board once all contracting documentation has 

been finalized. 

In all cases, the hiring process must be consistent with the requirements for 

vendor selection detailed in the Procedures and other Plan policy documents, 

including but not limited to the Code of Fiduciary Conduct and Ethics, Conflict 

of Interest Code, Placement Agent Disclosure Policy and Procurement of 

Products and Services Policy. 

 
Subject to the foregoing limitations, the CIO, with the assistance of Staff, the 

Consultant, and Specialty Consultants, shall be responsible for conducting all due 

diligence activities in connection with hiring new managers. The CIO shall invite 

the involvement of one or more Board members in the due diligence process 

Board members may participate at any point in the due diligence process, as 

appropriate and upon request. 

 
Quiet period. During the process of hiring a new manager, a quiet period will 

apply during the evaluation process, during which time no Board member may 

knowingly have any communication with any actual or potential candidate for the 

mandate, unless authorized by the Board in connection with the due diligence 

process in selecting managers. The quiet period shall cease upon the Board 

entering into a contract with the Investment Manager(s) selected for the mandate. 

The CIO is responsible for alerting the candidates and the Board to the 

commencement and duration of the quiet period and its restrictions. A violation 

of the quiet period rule may result in disqualification of the candidate or other 

appropriate Board action. Board members may observe the due diligence process 

after being notified of the quiet period, as appropriate and upon request. 

Investing in a new closed-end fund with an existing manager 

 

In the case of closed-end funds with a limited investment lifecycle, additional 

investments are periodically required to maintain asset allocation targets. For such 

follow-on investments, Staff shall have the authority to make additional 

investments in an amount necessary to maintain the intended exposure, as 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

7 

 

 

estimated by a detailed funding analysis. Any additional investment beyond that 

which is required to maintain the intended exposure must be pre-approved by the 

Board. 

In all cases, the hiring process must be consistent with the requirements for vendor 

selection detailed in the Procedures and other Plan policy documents (e.g., 

Procurement of Products and Services Policy, Placement Agent Disclosure Policy, 

Conflict of Interest Code). 

In all cases, the hiring process must be consistent with the requirements for 

vendor selection detailed in the Procedures and other Plan policy documents, 

including but not limited to the Code of Fiduciary Conduct and Ethics, Conflict 

of Interest Code, Placement Agent Disclosure Policy and Procurement of 

Products and Services Policy. 

ii. Terminating existing managers 

The Board recognizes investments may need to be adjusted or removed from the 

Plan portfolio from time to time for a variety of reasons, including: 

• Organizational changes including those to the people and processes in place 

• A manager’s style has deviated from the initial investment thesis 

• A manager’s style, strategy, ethics, or philosophy is no longer 

appropriate for the Investment Program 

• Underperformance relative to benchmark or other expectations 

• Uncompetitive pricing compared to available alternatives 

 
The CIO shall have the authority to terminate investment managers. Absent 

emergency circumstances (described below), prior to terminating a manager, the 

CIO shall present a detailed termination memo to the Board that includes: 

• Purpose of the mandate 

• Reason(s) for termination 

• Specific plan to replace or temporarily invest the assets 

 
Although the Board’s explicit approval is not required, it shall maintain veto 

authority should a majority of the Board decide the planned termination is not in 

the best interest of the Plan. 

 
Emergency termination. An emergency will be deemed to exist when an 

investment strategy suffers the resignation or other loss of its portfolio manager(s) 

and no appropriate replacement is available; when an investment management 

firm dissolves, ceases to exist, or is otherwise incapable of carrying out its 

activities in the ordinary course of its business; when an investment management 

firm is actually or effectively shut down by a regulatory agency of a state or the 

Federal government or is accused of theft or fraud by a regulatory agency or other 

government body; when the Plan’s investment is in jeopardy of material loss; or 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

8 

 

 

when such other developments with the investment management firm give concern 

to the CIO that the investment is no longer prudent for the Investment Program. 

Staff shall take action to transfer management of the affected investment strategy 

as soon as possible after CCCERA learns of the emergency. In the case of an 

emergency, the CEO, or in the CEO's absence, the Deputy CEO or the CIO will 

attempt to notify the Chair and Vice Chair of the Board immediately; notify the 

Custodian Bank that the Investment Manager's Managed Account is to be frozen 

and, except for those trades which are pending, no further trading is authorized; 

and may call a special meeting of the Board to take further action. 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

9 

 

 

 

4. INVESTMENT PHILOSOPHY 

The Investment Philosophy represents the foundational principles on which the Investment 

Program is based. Every investment decision should be made with these foundational 

principles in mind to promote the fulfillment of the fiduciary obligations. The statements 

below set forth the Board’s Investment Philosophy: 
 

Plan objectives should guide all decision making 

The Investment Program is designed to provide benefits to participants over a long term 

without accepting undue risks that could be detrimental to the participants or Plan sponsors. 

The Investment Program, therefore, must be managed in a prudent manner recognizing the 

relationships between the benefits promised to participants and their beneficiaries, the 

financial health of the Plan sponsors, and the exposures within the Investment Program. 

 

Asset allocation drives portfolio volatility and returns 

It is impossible to accurately and consistently predict the future; therefore, the Plan is 

required to be prudently diversified across and within asset classes in anticipation of 

various economic conditions. In a well-diversified portfolio, the overall volatility of 

investment returns is principally driven by the asset allocation and secondarily driven by 

the individual investment strategies. As such, asset allocation is the primary tool by which 

the Board can manage the expected risk/return profile of the Plan. 
 

Short-term investing 

Over shorter investment periods of up to five (5) years, volatility can be more detrimental 

to the success of the Investment Program. Because paying benefits to participants and their 

beneficiaries occurs continuously, the forced selling of assets during broad market 

corrections to meet these payments could result in the long-term impairment of investable 

capital. By maintaining a portion of the portfolio invested in low-volatility, highly liquid 

securities and investment strategies, the Investment Program will be able to mitigate or 

avoid the forced selling of assets during broad market corrections. 

 

Long-term investing 

Over longer investment periods, volatility can be managed more effectively to produce 

beneficial results for the Investment Program. Market corrections will occur and when 

they do, patient and well-capitalized investors are able to wait until the market recovery 

takes place. Additionally, broad market corrections have historically provided investment 

opportunities for those with available capital and the foresight to make additional 

investments. 

 

Fees 

Fees directly impact the investment results of the Investment Program but are necessary to 

appropriately compensate the investment management of the Investment Program. Fees 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

10 

 

 

 

must, therefore, be measured closely against the value the Investment Program expects to 

earn and aligned to ensure incentives are consistent with the objectives of the Plan. 

 
5. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 

The investment objectives of the Investment Program are: 

• To provide liquidity to meet retiree benefit payments in a timely manner; 

• To produce long-term real growth to meet future retiree benefit payments and 

maintain a funding surplus or closing a funding gap over time; and 

• To protect the assets against the adverse impacts of rising inflation and investment 

market volatility. 

 
Investment objectives specific to the individual investment strategies are further defined in the 

Board’s Investment Strategy portion of this IPS. 

 
6. INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

The Board has chosen to employ an investment strategy that seeks to align the Investment 

Program with the investment objectives listed in Section 5 of this IPS. The strategy divides 

the portfolio into three functional sub-portfolios—Liquidity, Growth, and Diversifying—to 

address each investment objective highlighted in Section 5. The Liquidity Sub-portfolio is 

dedicated to funding near-term benefit payments. It is joined with the longer-term Growth 

Sub-portfolio, as well as the Diversifying Sub-portfolio, which is intended to offset some of 

the investment risks embedded in the Growth Sub-portfolio. While the three sub-portfolios 

are aligned with the investment objectives individually, collectively they allow the 

Investment Program to provide appropriate risk and return characteristics. 
 

Asset Allocation 

The Board has adopted a strategic asset allocation based on the Plan’s projected actuarial 

liabilities, liquidity needs, risk tolerance and the risk/return expectations for various asset 

classes. This asset allocation seeks to optimize long-term returns for the level of risk the 

Board considers appropriate. The current asset allocation table may be found in the Asset 

Allocation Investment Resolution. 

 
Since projected liability and risk/return expectations will change over time, the Board will 

conduct a periodic review of the strategic asset allocation to maintain an expected optimal 

allocation. The Board may also revise the asset allocation in response to significantly 

changing conditions that have affected valuations and forward-looking expected returns 

of asset classes. The Board will review capital market expectations annually. The result 

of this review will be used to update the Investment Resolutions as needed. 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

11 

 

 

 

Functional Sub-portfolios 

As noted previously, the investment strategy for the Investment Program employs three 

functional sub-portfolios to construct the comprehensive asset allocation. The allocation 

to the Liquidity Sub-portfolio is assessed annually and is based on the projected benefit 

payments and expenses of the Plan. The remaining assets are invested in the Growth and 

Diversifying sub-portfolios. Annually the Board shall review the relative size and 

composition of these sub-portfolios and revise them as necessary through Investment 

Resolutions. The functional sub-portfolios are set forth below: 
 

1. LIQUIDITY SUB-PORTFOLIO 

The purpose of the Liquidity Sub-portfolio is to ensure adequate assets are available 

to pay benefits over an extended timeframe as outlined in the Investment Resolutions. 

The Board has established a target allocation amount of 3648 months’ worth of 

projected benefit payments in the Liquidity Sub-portfolio, which will be drawn down 

and replenished annually. The assets will be invested in highly liquid, low volatility 

securities expected to generate modest levels of return while preserving capital 

throughout a market cycle. This portfolio will may contain assets such as cash, short-

term bonds, laddered government bonds, derivatives, and other investments that 

provide fixed, contractual cash flows with an appropriate minimum level of credit 

risk. As a secondary purpose, a portion of the Liquidity Sub-portfolio may be 

allocated to the Growth Sub- portfolio during broad market corrections so long as at 

least 1824 months of projected benefit payments and expenses are maintained in the 

Liquidity Sub-portfolio. 

 
The success of the Liquidity Sub-portfolio will be measured by its ability to directly 

fund benefit payments through low-risk, cash flowing investments, as well as 

providing a stable offset to the rest of the portfolio during periods of severe market 

stress. 
 

2. GROWTH SUB-PORTFOLIO 

The purpose of the Growth Sub-portfolio is to grow invested assets over the long term 

in order to pay future benefits. Assets from the Growth Sub-portfolio may be sold 

over time and transferred to the Liquidity Sub-portfolio as needed. This portfolio is 

characterized by a long investment horizon and can, therefore, accept a higher level 

of volatility. Assets in this portfolio may be volatile, have reduced liquidity, and 

derive the bulk of their return from capital appreciation. These assets include public 

and private equity, corporate and other debt with credit risk premiums, private real 

estate, and other private assets. 

 
The success of this portfolio will be measured primarily by compounded annual 

growth rates in conjunction with the annualized standard deviation of returns as the 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

12 

 

 

 

primary measure of risk. Performance evaluation will, therefore, focus on the long- 

term total risk-adjusted return of the portfolio. 
 

3. DIVERSIFYING SUB-PORTFOLIO 

The purpose of the Diversifying Sub-portfolio is to offset the investment risk of the 

Growth Sub-portfolio. Investment strategies in the Diversifying Sub-portfolio are 

expected to have return profiles that have a low correlation to those in the Growth 

Sub-portfolio. This is expected to effectively dampen the market volatility across the 

entire portfolio. As a secondary objective, the investment strategies in the 

Diversifying Sub-portfolio will offer additional sources of return to those in the 

Liquidity and Growth sub-portfolios. Assets in the Diversifying Sub-portfolio may 

be sold during times of market stress or when the assets in the Growth Sub-portfolio 

are impaired in order to fund the Liquidity Sub-portfolio. 

 
The success of the Diversifying Sub-portfolio will be measured by its ability to offset 

declines in value in the Growth Sub-portfolio, as well as its ability to provide liquidity 

during times of market stress. 
 

4. INTERACTION BETWEEN THE FUNCTIONAL SUB-PORTFOLIOS 

The allocations to the Liquidity, Growth, and Diversifying sub-portfolios will vary 

over time. The Liquidity Sub-portfolio will operate as a drawdown vehicle to pay 

benefits and expenses. The Growth and Diversifying sub-portfolios will be subject 

to the volatility of the markets in which each functional sub-portfolio invests. In order 

to reallocate between the functional sub-portfolios, the Board will conduct two 

annual reviews: an annual capital review to assess the relative value and risks 

associated with each asset class; and an annual funding plan to determine how to 

replenish the Liquidity Sub-portfolio. 

 
Annually the CIO and Consultant jointly shall deliver a review of the capital markets 

to the Board. The Consultant will provide the Board current forward-looking risk and 

return assumptions for all major asset classes. In conjunction with this review, the 

CIO will provide a recommendation of how best to allocate assets within each 

functional sub-portfolio. If necessary, the CIO will recommend changes in target 

allocations to the underlying asset classes in order to deploy the Investment Program’s 

assets effectively in the upcoming year. 

 
Additionally and subsequent to the capital markets review, the CIO will present an 

annual funding plan, which will provide a recommendation of how best to replenish 

the Liquidity Sub-portfolio for the next projected 3648 months of benefits payments 

and expenses. The CIO will provide a monthly report to the Board on the progress of 

funding the Liquidity Sub-portfolio through a combination of harvesting income from 

the Growth and Diversifying sub-portfolios, asset sales in the Growth and/or 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

13 

 

 

 

Diversifying sub-portfolios or the use of contributions. Under normal market 

conditions, the balance in the Liquidity Sub-portfolio is expected to vary between 

2436 and 3648 months of projected benefit payments and expenses. 
 

Investment Strategy Attributes 

All investment strategies, whether currently used by the Investment Program or being 

considered for inclusion in the Investment Program, will be evaluated on their own unique 

risk and return characteristics, as well as their contribution to the overall Investment 

Program’s risk and return characteristics. Other risks pertaining to the individual 

investment strategies and/or the firm managing the strategy will also be considered. 

 
Fees and expenses of the investment strategies will be closely evaluated against 

competitive strategies and the value provided for the services rendered. While lower fees 

are clearly preferred over higher fees, the Plan seeks to identify investment strategies 

capable of providing value for participants by generating net-of-fee investment returns in 

excess of benchmark returns plus fees. Fee structures will be evaluated to ensure 

appropriate incentives are provided to achieve the desired outcomes for the Investment 

Program. 

 

7. RISK PHILOSOPHY 

The Board recognizes that the assumption of investment risk is necessary to meet the Plan’s 

objectives. Investment risk is viewed as both the annualized standard deviation of investment 

returns (volatility) and drawdown exposure. Drawdown exposure measures the expected 

investment loss during a market correction. Additional sources of risk include regulatory, 

governmental, counterparty, environmental, social and currency. Investment risk, in and of 

itself, is intrinsically neither good nor bad; it is a condition accepted in the pursuit of investment 

returns. The goal in managing investment risk is to ensure that an acceptable level of risk is 

being taken at the total Plan portfolio level. To accomplish this goal, the Plan invests in broad 

asset classes, via specific investment strategies within those asset classes, which have desirable 

expected return, risk, and correlation characteristics. While the individual strategies have a 

wide range of risk and return characteristics, the correlations between the strategies allows for 

effective portfolio diversification. 

 
The approach used in constructing the portfolio further focuses on the risk characteristics by 

ensuring the preservation of the Liquidity Sub-portfolio assets as detailed previously in this 

IPS. Because these assets are invested in lower risk and lower return investments, the assets 

are well protected. This then allows for the Growth Sub-portfolio to assume greater investment 

risk in pursuit of higher expected returns. The Diversifying Sub-portfolio then offsets a portion 

of the investment risk embedded in the Growth Sub-portfolio to protect against drawdown 

risks. 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

14 

 

 

 

8. PORTFOLIO MONITORING 

In discharging its fiduciary duty to prudently manage the Investment Program, the Board has 

developed the following structure for ongoing monitoring of existing investment managers. 

Reporting processes are, therefore, designed to provide the Board with the information needed 

to execute this oversight function. Accurate, timely, and clear reporting to the Board of the 

Plan’s assets, investment risks and returns, portfolio costs, and investment decisions are 

essential to assisting the Board in discharging its fiduciary duties. 

 
The CIO and General Investment Consultant will monitor individual investment managers’ 

performance quarterly and annually. The managers' organizations and operations will be 

qualitatively monitored on a continual basis. 

 
The General Investment Consultant will present a portfolio investment performance report to 

the Board on a quarterly basis. Performance will be measured for the total portfolio as well 

as sub-portfolios and individual portfolios. Each investment manager shall have a clear role 

within the total fund. The quarterly report will highlight any variance from that role. 

 
The CIO, with the assistance of the General Investment Consultant and Specialty Consultants, 

shall conduct periodic on-site due diligencereview activities in connection with evaluating 

managers. The CIO shall invite the involvement of one or more Board members in the due 

diligence process.   Additionally, the Board may from time to time determine that it is in the 

best interest of the participants and beneficiaries for one or more Board members to visit the 

offices of an investment manager, in order to further the Board members’ understanding of 

the manager’s strategy and its role in the CCCERA portfolio. 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

15 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 1: REFERENCED INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS 

 
The documents referenced in the Investment Policy Statement are listed below and 

incorporated by reference into this IPS: 

 

• CCCERA Board Investment Resolutions 

• Placement Agent Disclosure Policy 

• Code of Fiduciary Conduct and Ethics 

• Conflict of Interest Code 

• Procurement of Products and Services Policy 

• Other Investment-Related Board Actions 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement 

Association Investment Policy Statement 

 
 

Adopted: January 14, 1986 

Restated: September 28, 2016 

Amended: March 24, 2021 

Meeting Date 
03/24/2021 
Agenda Item 

#6 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. PURPOSE ......................................................................................................................................... 1 

2. AUTHORITY ................................................................................................................................... 1 

3. GOVERNANCE ............................................................................................................................... 2 

A. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES ........................................................................................................................... 2 

1. Board of retirement ...................................................................................................................... 2 

2. Staff .............................................................................................................................................. 3 

3. General investment consultant ..................................................................................................... 3 

4. Specialty investment consultants .................................................................................................. 3 

5. Investment managers .................................................................................................................... 4 

6. Custodian bank ............................................................................................................................. 4 

B. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY .............................................................................................................................. 4 

1. Rebalancing .................................................................................................................................. 5 

2. Investment portfolio management ................................................................................................ 5 

4. INVESTMENT PHILOSOPHY ...................................................................................................... 8 

5. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES ....................................................................................................... 9 

6. INVESTMENT STRATEGY .......................................................................................................... 9 

A. ASSET ALLOCATION .............................................................................................................................................. 9 

B. FUNCTIONAL SUB-PORTFOLIOS ....................................................................................................................... 10 

1. Liquidity sub-portfolio ............................................................................................................... 10 

2. Growth sub-portfolio .................................................................................................................. 10 

3. Diversifying sub-portfolio .......................................................................................................... 11 

4. Interaction between the functional sub-portfolios ...................................................................... 11 

C. INVESTMENT STRATEGY ATTRIBUTES .......................................................................................................... 12 

7. RISK PHILOSOPHY ..................................................................................................................... 12 

8. PORTFOLIO MONITORING ...................................................................................................... 13 

APPENDIX 1: REFERENCED INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS .................................................. 14 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

1 

 

 

 

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement 

Association Investment Policy Statement 

Adopted: January 14, 1986 

Restated: September 28, 2016 

Amended: March 24, 2021 

AMENDED: 1/14/86, 2/27/86, 10/13/87, 8/9/88, 6/13/89, 8/8/89, 1/8/91, 10/13/92, 

2/9/93, 5/2/94, 10/14/97, 5/4/99, 1/9/01, 2/12/02, 06/11/02, 11/06/02, 1/28/04, 5/26/04, 

7/28/04, 12/14/05, 10/24/07, 4/08/09, 10/30/13, 9/28/16, 4/24/19 

 

The Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA) is a public employee 

retirement system that was established by the County of Contra Costa on July 1, 1945. CCCERA 

is administered by the CCCERA Board of Retirement (Board) to provide service retirement, 

disability, death, and survivor benefits for county employees and sixteen other participating 

agencies under the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937, California Government Code 

Section 31450 et. seq. (CERL), the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013, 

California Government Code Section 7522 et. seq. (PEPRA) and other applicable laws. 

 
1. PURPOSE 

CCCERA has established an investment program (Investment Program) designed to provide 

sufficient assets in a timely manner to pay the benefits due to participants today and in the 

future, over the long-term. The purpose of this Investment Policy Statement (IPS) is to 

establish the policies that will guide the Investment Program. This IPS is intended to provide 

guidance to the Board and to its delegates, the Staff, and third-party professionals. This IPS 

is supported by the Board’s Investment Resolutions, the Investment Procedures (Procedures), 

and Board policies that reflect the needs of the defined benefit plan (Plan) that the Board 

administers. The Investment Resolutions, policies and other Board documents identified in 

Appendix 1 hereto are incorporated into this IPS and made a part hereof by this reference. 

 
2. AUTHORITY 

The Investment Program shall be managed in accordance with applicable law, including but 

not limited to the following: 

• The assets of the Plan are trust funds and shall be held for the exclusive purposes of 

providing benefits to the participants in the Plan and their beneficiaries and defraying 

reasonable expenses of administering the Plan (Cal. Const. art. XVI, sec. 17(b); Cal. 

Govt. Code sec. 31595). 
 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

2 

 

 

• The board and its officers and employees shall discharge their duties with respect to the 

system: 

(a) Solely in the interest of, and for the exclusive purposes of providing benefits 

to, participants and their beneficiaries, minimizing employer contributions 

thereto, and defraying reasonable expenses of administering the system. 

(b) With the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then 

prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with these 

matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with 

like aims. 

(c) Shall diversify the investments of the system so as to minimize the risk of loss and 

to maximize the rate of return, unless under the circumstances it is clearly prudent not 

to do so. 

(Cal. Const. art. XVI sec. 17(b), (c) and (d); Cal. Gov. Code Sec. 31595 (a), (b) and (c)). 

 
3. GOVERNANCE 

The Board hereby adopts a governance model whereby specific authority, responsibility, and 

accountability are either retained by the Board or delegated to others based on areas of 

expertise and appropriate oversight. The Board retains sole responsibility governing the Plan, 

setting investment policy, and monitoring the Investment Program. It may choose to delegate 

specific areas of responsibility provided it retains appropriate oversight of the delegated 

activity. 
 

Roles and Responsibilities 
 

1. BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

The Board maintains the sole and plenary authority and fiduciary responsibility for 

the Investment Program. The Board also understands it may delegate certain 

responsibilities under the Investment Program for purposes of administrative 

efficiency and expertise. The areas of the Investment Program the Board may not 

delegate include: 

• The governance model of the Investment Program 

• Establishing and maintaining investment policy, including: 

o Investment philosophy 

o This IPS 

o Investment objectives 

o Strategic asset allocation 

o Allocation-level performance benchmarks 

o Risk philosophy 

• Engaging Board consultants and service providers 

• Monitoring the Investment Program 
 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

3 

 

 

2. STAFF 

CCCERA Staff (Staff), including the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief 

Investment Officer (CIO), is broadly responsible for supporting the Board in the 

effective execution of the Investment Program. The CEO provides general direction 

and supervision to the CIO. The CEO and the CIO have been delegated authority to 

execute specific elements of the Investment Program as outlined herein, including 

the Investment Resolutions. The CEO has the authority to execute and terminate 

contracts between CCCERA and investment managers or other service providers as 

approved by the Board. The CIO has the authority to rebalance the portfolio under 

Section 3.B.1. of this IPS. The CIO also has the authority to manage the investment 

managers within the Plan under Section 3.B.2 of this IPS. 
 

3. GENERAL INVESTMENT CONSULTANT 

The General Investment Consultant (Consultant) is engaged by the Board to provide 

independent, objective investment advice. The Consultant is and shall agree to be a 

fiduciary to the Plan under California law. The Consultant works with Staff in the 

development of recommendations while recognizing its fiduciary duty is to provide 

prudent investment advice to the Board. The Consultant provides advice without 

discretionary authority to execute on its advice. The specific duties of the Consultant 

are contained in an Agreement for Professional Investment Consulting Services, and 

generally include providing advice with respect to: 

• Investment strategy development and implementation 

• Investment policy development 

• Asset allocation among classes and subclasses 

• Investment manager selection, evaluation, and termination 

• Investment performance monitoring 

• Investment risk monitoring 

• Capital markets projections 

• Coordination with the Plan’s actuary in conducting periodic 

asset/liability studies and other required reporting 

• Board education 
 

4. SPECIALTY INVESTMENT CONSULTANTS 

Specialty consultants may be hired by the Board to work with Staff, the Consultant, 

and/or the Board. These will typically be asset class consultants (e.g., real estate, 

private equity, hedge funds) that may operate on a discretionary or non-discretionary 

basis, as directed by the Board, to meet the objectives of the Investment Program. 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

4 

 

 

 

5. INVESTMENT MANAGERS 

CCCERA engages Investment Managers to invest and manage CCCERA’s assets in 

accordance with this IPS, the manager’s mandate, governing contractual documents 

and applicable state and federal laws and regulations. The Board has delegated the 

authority to CCCERA’s Chief Investment Officer, on the advice of legal counsel, to 

negotiate terms of engagement with Investment Managers so as to assure that 

CCCERA’s interests are appropriately furthered and Investment Managers observe 

a fiduciary standard of care. At a minimum, Investment Managers (and any affiliated 

General Partners) will be required to comply with all applicable state and federal 

laws and regulations. Investment Managers shall be registered investment advisors 

under the federal Investment Advisors Act of 1940, unless expressly exempted from 

registration. 

 
Subject to this IPS and any specific contractual obligations to the Plan, Investment 

Managers are responsible for making all investment decisions on a discretionary 

basis regarding assets placed under their jurisdiction and will be accountable for 

achieving their investment objectives. Such discretion shall include decisions to buy, 

hold, and sell assets in amounts and proportions that are reflective of the agreed-upon 

investment mandate. 
 

6. CUSTODIAN BANK 

The Custodian Bank, selected by the Board to act as the principal custodian of assets 

of the trust, is delegated the responsibility of holding the assets and evidence of 

interests owned by CCCERA in investment vehicles and cash (and equivalents). The 

Board may authorize the Custodian Bank to invest in temporary short-term fixed 

income investments both for the investment strategies and as a part of the cash 

portion of Plan assets. Such investments will be managed in general accordance with 

short- term fixed income investment guidelines as detailed in the Custodial 

Agreement. Cash managed for investment strategies shall be considered to be sub-

portions of the assets managed by the directing Investment Managers. 

 

The Custodian Bank shall be authorized to conduct a securities lending program 

within liquidity and risk constraints as established by the Board. 
 

Delegation of Authority 

The Board has delegated authority to the CIO for certain functions as detailed below. 

Delegation of authority will be coordinated with workflow, compliance and reporting 

procedures that are clearly defined, reviewed, and approved. This IPS is used to describe 

the delegation of authority generally with the Investment Resolutions providing additional 

requirements and processes. The Board shall be notified in a timely manner of all 

investment decisions made by the CIO and their implications to the Plan. 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

5 

 

 

 

1. REBALANCING 

The Board recognizes there may be a cost to maintaining strict adherence to a target 

asset allocation in terms of both transaction costs and opportunity costs. The Board 

also recognizes that the benefit of cost minimization must be balanced against the 

assumption of active risk associated with allowing variances to asset allocation 

targets. 

 

The CIO is delegated the authority to conduct portfolio rebalancing in order to meet 

two distinct objectives. The first is to maintain the long-term strategic asset allocation 

targets approved by the Board. The second is to capture valuation-based 

opportunities by deviating from the long-term strategic asset allocation targets within 

Zones 1 and 2 as follows: 

i. Zone 1 

The CIO may periodically rebalance the portfolio within Zone 1 ranges as set forth 

in the Investment Resolutions. When such rebalancing activity occurs, the CIO 

shall notify the Board at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

ii. Zone 2 

With prior approval of the Board, the CIO may rebalance the portfolio within Zone 

2 ranges as set forth in the Investment Resolutions. When such rebalancing activity 

occurs, the CIO shall notify the Board at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 
For each of the zones listed above, special consideration will be given to illiquid asset 

classes recognizing that their funding and redemption processes are different than 

those of the liquid asset classes. As such, each illiquid asset class is assigned a liquid 

asset class to function as a holding place while the corresponding illiquid strategies 

are being invested. 

 

Portfolio rebalancing may occur by adjusting allocations to individual investment 

strategies or managers or through the use of an overlay provider using derivatives. 
 

2. INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT 

While the Board believes the vast majority of investment return over the long term 

is dependent on the asset allocation decision and ongoing due diligence, it recognizes 

additional risk and return may be generated by how the asset allocation is 

implemented. These implementation decisions will largely be delegated to the CIO 

to be executed within the parameters established in the Investment Resolutions. 

i. Hiring a new manager 

The CIO shall have the authority to hire new managers (i.e., purchase interests in 

new investment vehicles) up to an investment amount of $250 million, subject 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

6 

 

 

to the remaining terms of this IPS. The $250 million shall represent the 

cumulative total amount of committed but undrawn capital under the 

management of a single investment manager and its affiliates. (By way of 

example, an investment manager with a commitment of $250 million and capital 

called to-date totaling $100 million would allow up to an additional $150 million 

investment in a follow-on fund in the same series.) The CEO shall have authority 

to execute the contracts, consistent with the delegation of authority outlined in 

this IPS. Any cumulative committed but undrawn investment amount above $250 

million shall require explicit Board approval.  The CIO shall report hiring 

decisions to the Board once all contracting documentation has been finalized. 

 

Subject to the foregoing limitations, the CIO, with the assistance of Staff, the 

Consultant, and Specialty Consultants, shall be responsible for conducting all due 

diligence activities in connection with hiring new managers.   

 

Quiet period. During the process of hiring a new manager, a quiet period will 

apply during the evaluation process, during which time no Board member may 

knowingly have any communication with any actual or potential candidate for 

the mandate, unless authorized by the Board in connection with the due diligence 

process in selecting managers. The quiet period shall cease upon the Board 

entering into a contract with the Investment Manager(s) selected for the mandate. 

The CIO is responsible for alerting the candidates and the Board to the 

commencement and duration of the quiet period and its restrictions. A violation 

of the quiet period rule may result in disqualification of the candidate or other 

appropriate Board action. Board members may observe the due diligence process 

after being notified of the quiet period, as appropriate and upon request. 

 

In all cases, the hiring process must be consistent with the requirements for 

vendor selection detailed in the Procedures and other Plan policy documents, 

including but not limited to the Code of Fiduciary Conduct and Ethics, Conflict 

of Interest Code, Placement Agent Disclosure Policy and Procurement of 

Products and Services Policy. 

ii. Terminating existing managers 

The Board recognizes investments may need to be adjusted or removed from the 

Plan portfolio from time to time for a variety of reasons, including: 

• Organizational changes including those to the people and processes in place 

• A manager’s style has deviated from the initial investment thesis 

• A manager’s style, strategy, ethics, or philosophy is no longer 

appropriate for the Investment Program 

• Underperformance relative to benchmark or other expectations 

• Uncompetitive pricing compared to available alternatives 

 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

7 

 

 

The CIO shall have the authority to terminate investment managers. Absent 

emergency circumstances (described below), prior to terminating a manager, the 

CIO shall present a detailed termination memo to the Board that includes: 

• Purpose of the mandate 

• Reason(s) for termination 

• Specific plan to replace or temporarily invest the assets 

 
Although the Board’s explicit approval is not required, it shall maintain veto 

authority should a majority of the Board decide the planned termination is not in 

the best interest of the Plan. 

 

Emergency termination. An emergency will be deemed to exist when an investment 

strategy suffers the resignation or other loss of its portfolio manager(s) and no appropriate 

replacement is available; when an investment management firm dissolves, ceases to exist, 

or is otherwise incapable of carrying out its activities in the ordinary course of its business; 

when an investment management firm is actually or effectively shut down by a regulatory 

agency of a state or the Federal government or is accused of theft or fraud by a regulatory 

agency or other government body; when the Plan’s investment is in jeopardy of material 

loss; or when such other developments with the investment management firm give concern 

to the CIO that the investment is no longer prudent for the Investment Program. Staff shall 

take action to transfer management of the affected investment strategy as soon as possible 

after CCCERA learns of the emergency. In the case of an emergency, the CEO, or in the 

CEO's absence, the Deputy CEO or the CIO will attempt to notify the Chair and Vice 

Chair of the Board immediately; notify the Custodian Bank that the Investment Manager's 

Managed Account is to be frozen and, except for those trades which are pending, no 

further trading is authorized; and may call a special meeting of the Board to take further 

action. 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

8 

 

 

 

4. INVESTMENT PHILOSOPHY 

The Investment Philosophy represents the foundational principles on which the Investment 

Program is based. Every investment decision should be made with these foundational 

principles in mind to promote the fulfillment of the fiduciary obligations. The statements 

below set forth the Board’s Investment Philosophy: 
 

Plan objectives should guide all decision making 

The Investment Program is designed to provide benefits to participants over a long term 

without accepting undue risks that could be detrimental to the participants or Plan sponsors. 

The Investment Program, therefore, must be managed in a prudent manner recognizing the 

relationships between the benefits promised to participants and their beneficiaries, the 

financial health of the Plan sponsors, and the exposures within the Investment Program. 

 

Asset allocation drives portfolio volatility and returns 

It is impossible to accurately and consistently predict the future; therefore, the Plan is 

required to be prudently diversified across and within asset classes in anticipation of 

various economic conditions. In a well-diversified portfolio, the overall volatility of 

investment returns is principally driven by the asset allocation and secondarily driven by 

the individual investment strategies. As such, asset allocation is the primary tool by which 

the Board can manage the expected risk/return profile of the Plan. 
 

Short-term investing 

Over shorter investment periods of up to five (5) years, volatility can be more detrimental 

to the success of the Investment Program. Because paying benefits to participants and their 

beneficiaries occurs continuously, the forced selling of assets during broad market 

corrections to meet these payments could result in the long-term impairment of investable 

capital. By maintaining a portion of the portfolio invested in low-volatility, highly liquid 

securities and investment strategies, the Investment Program will be able to mitigate or 

avoid the forced selling of assets during broad market corrections. 

 

Long-term investing 

Over longer investment periods, volatility can be managed more effectively to produce 

beneficial results for the Investment Program. Market corrections will occur and when 

they do, patient and well-capitalized investors are able to wait until the market recovery 

takes place. Additionally, broad market corrections have historically provided investment 

opportunities for those with available capital and the foresight to make additional 

investments. 

 

Fees 

Fees directly impact the investment results of the Investment Program but are necessary to 

appropriately compensate the investment management of the Investment Program. Fees



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

9 

 

 

must, therefore, be measured closely against the value the Investment Program expects to 

earn and aligned to ensure incentives are consistent with the objectives of the Plan. 

 
5. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 

The investment objectives of the Investment Program are: 

• To provide liquidity to meet retiree benefit payments in a timely manner; 

• To produce long-term real growth to meet future retiree benefit payments and 

maintain a funding surplus or closing a funding gap over time; and 

• To protect the assets against the adverse impacts of investment market volatility. 

 
Investment objectives specific to the individual investment strategies are further defined in 

the Board’s Investment Strategy portion of this IPS. 

 
6. INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

The Board has chosen to employ an investment strategy that seeks to align the Investment 

Program with the investment objectives listed in Section 5 of this IPS. The strategy divides 

the portfolio into three functional sub-portfolios—Liquidity, Growth, and Diversifying—to 

address each investment objective highlighted in Section 5. The Liquidity Sub-portfolio is 

dedicated to funding near-term benefit payments. It is joined with the longer-term Growth 

Sub-portfolio, as well as the Diversifying Sub-portfolio, which is intended to offset some of 

the investment risks embedded in the Growth Sub-portfolio. While the three sub-portfolios 

are aligned with the investment objectives individually, collectively they allow the 

Investment Program to provide appropriate risk and return characteristics. 
 

Asset Allocation 

The Board has adopted a strategic asset allocation based on the Plan’s projected actuarial 

liabilities, liquidity needs, risk tolerance and the risk/return expectations for various asset 

classes. This asset allocation seeks to optimize long-term returns for the level of risk the 

Board considers appropriate. The current asset allocation table may be found in the Asset 

Allocation Investment Resolution. 

 

Since projected liability and risk/return expectations will change over time, the Board will 

conduct a periodic review of the strategic asset allocation to maintain an expected optimal 

allocation. The Board may also revise the asset allocation in response to significantly 

changing conditions that have affected valuations and forward-looking expected returns 

of asset classes. The Board will review capital market expectations annually. The result 

of this review will be used to update the Investment Resolutions as needed. 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

10 

 

 

 

Functional Sub-portfolios 

As noted previously, the investment strategy for the Investment Program employs three 

functional sub-portfolios to construct the comprehensive asset allocation. The allocation 

to the Liquidity Sub-portfolio is assessed annually and is based on the projected benefit 

payments and expenses of the Plan. The remaining assets are invested in the Growth and 

Diversifying sub-portfolios. Annually the Board shall review the relative size and 

composition of these sub-portfolios and revise them as necessary through Investment 

Resolutions. The functional sub-portfolios are set forth below: 
 

1. LIQUIDITY SUB-PORTFOLIO 

The purpose of the Liquidity Sub-portfolio is to ensure adequate assets are available 

to pay benefits over an extended timeframe as outlined in the Investment Resolutions. 

The Board has established a target allocation amount of 36 months’ worth of 

projected benefit payments in the Liquidity Sub-portfolio, which will be drawn down 

and replenished annually. The assets will be invested in highly liquid, low volatility 

securities expected to generate modest levels of return while preserving capital 

throughout a market cycle. This portfolio may contain assets such as cash, short-term 

bonds, laddered government bonds, derivatives, and other investments that provide 

fixed, contractual cash flows with an appropriate level of credit risk. As a secondary 

purpose, a portion of the Liquidity Sub-portfolio may be allocated to the Growth Sub- 

portfolio during broad market corrections so long as at least 18 months of projected 

benefit payments and expenses are maintained in the Liquidity Sub-portfolio. 

 
The success of the Liquidity Sub-portfolio will be measured by its ability to directly 

fund benefit payments through low-risk, cash flowing investments, as well as 

providing a stable offset to the rest of the portfolio during periods of severe market 

stress. 
 

2. GROWTH SUB-PORTFOLIO 

The purpose of the Growth Sub-portfolio is to grow invested assets over the long 

term in order to pay future benefits. This portfolio is characterized by a long 

investment horizon and can, therefore, accept a higher level of volatility. Assets in 

this portfolio may be volatile, have reduced liquidity, and derive the bulk of their 

return from capital appreciation. These assets include public and private equity, 

corporate and other debt with credit risk premiums, private real estate, and other 

private assets. 

 

The success of this portfolio will be measured primarily by compounded annual 

growth rates in conjunction with the annualized standard deviation of returns as the 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

11 

 

 

 

primary measure of risk. Performance evaluation will, therefore, focus on the long- 

term total risk-adjusted return of the portfolio. 
 

3. DIVERSIFYING SUB-PORTFOLIO 

The purpose of the Diversifying Sub-portfolio is to offset the investment risk of the 

Growth Sub-portfolio. Investment strategies in the Diversifying Sub-portfolio are 

expected to have return profiles that have a low correlation to those in the Growth 

Sub-portfolio. This is expected to effectively dampen the market volatility across the 

entire portfolio. As a secondary objective, the investment strategies in the 

Diversifying Sub-portfolio will offer additional sources of return to those in the 

Liquidity and Growth sub-portfolios. 

 

The success of the Diversifying Sub-portfolio will be measured by its ability to offset 

declines in value in the Growth Sub-portfolio, as well as its ability to provide 

liquidity during times of market stress. 
 

4. INTERACTION BETWEEN THE FUNCTIONAL SUB-PORTFOLIOS 

The allocations to the Liquidity, Growth, and Diversifying sub-portfolios will vary 

over time. The Liquidity Sub-portfolio will operate as a drawdown vehicle to pay 

benefits and expenses. The Growth and Diversifying sub-portfolios will be subject 

to the volatility of the markets in which each functional sub-portfolio invests. In order 

to reallocate between the functional sub-portfolios, the Board will conduct two 

annual reviews: an annual capital review to assess the relative value and risks 

associated with each asset class; and an annual funding plan to determine how to 

replenish the Liquidity Sub-portfolio. 

 

Annually the CIO and Consultant jointly shall deliver a review of the capital markets 

to the Board. The Consultant will provide the Board current forward-looking risk and 

return assumptions for all major asset classes. In conjunction with this review, the 

CIO will provide a recommendation of how best to allocate assets within each 

functional sub-portfolio. If necessary, the CIO will recommend changes in target 

allocations to the underlying asset classes in order to deploy the Investment 

Program’s assets effectively in the upcoming year. 

 

Additionally and subsequent to the capital markets review, the CIO will present an 

annual funding plan, which will provide a recommendation of how best to replenish 

the Liquidity Sub-portfolio for the next projected 36 months of benefits payments 

and expenses. The CIO will provide a monthly report to the Board on the progress of 

funding the Liquidity Sub-portfolio through a combination of harvesting income 

from the Growth and Diversifying sub-portfolios, asset sales in the Growth and/or 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

12 

 

 

 

Diversifying sub-portfolios or the use of contributions. Under normal market 

conditions, the balance in the Liquidity Sub-portfolio is expected to vary between 24 

and 36 months of projected benefit payments and expenses. 
 

Investment Strategy Attributes 

All investment strategies, whether currently used by the Investment Program or being 

considered for inclusion in the Investment Program, will be evaluated on their own unique 

risk and return characteristics, as well as their contribution to the overall Investment 

Program’s risk and return characteristics. Other risks pertaining to the individual 

investment strategies and/or the firm managing the strategy will also be considered. 

 

Fees and expenses of the investment strategies will be closely evaluated against 

competitive strategies and the value provided for the services rendered. While lower fees 

are clearly preferred over higher fees, the Plan seeks to identify investment strategies 

capable of providing value for participants by generating net-of-fee investment returns in 

excess of benchmark returns. Fee structures will be evaluated to ensure appropriate 

incentives are provided to achieve the desired outcomes for the Investment Program. 

 

7. RISK PHILOSOPHY 

The Board recognizes the assumption of investment risk is necessary to meet the Plan’s 

objectives. Investment risk is viewed as both the annualized standard deviation of investment 

returns (volatility) and drawdown exposure. Drawdown exposure measures the expected 

investment loss during a market correction. Additional sources of risk include regulatory, 

governmental, counterparty, environmental, social and currency. Investment risk, in and of 

itself, is intrinsically neither good nor bad; it is a condition accepted in the pursuit of 

investment returns. The goal in managing investment risk is to ensure an acceptable level of 

risk is being taken at the total Plan portfolio level. To accomplish this goal, the Plan invests 

in broad asset classes, via specific investment strategies within those asset classes, which have 

desirable expected return, risk, and correlation characteristics. While the individual strategies 

have a wide range of risk and return characteristics, the correlations between the strategies 

allows for effective portfolio diversification. 

 

The approach used in constructing the portfolio further focuses on the risk characteristics by 

ensuring the preservation of the Liquidity Sub-portfolio assets as detailed previously in this 

IPS. Because these assets are invested in lower risk and lower return investments, the assets 

are well protected. This then allows for the Growth Sub-portfolio to assume greater 

investment risk in pursuit of higher expected returns. The Diversifying Sub-portfolio then 

offsets a portion of the investment risk embedded in the Growth Sub-portfolio to protect 

against drawdown risks. 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

13 

 

 

 

8. PORTFOLIO MONITORING 

In discharging its fiduciary duty to prudently manage the Investment Program, the Board has 

developed the following structure for ongoing monitoring of existing investment managers. 

Reporting processes are, therefore, designed to provide the Board with the information 

needed to execute this oversight function. Accurate, timely, and clear reporting to the Board 

of the Plan’s assets, investment risks and returns, portfolio costs, and investment decisions 

are essential to assisting the Board in discharging its fiduciary duties. 

 

The CIO and General Investment Consultant will monitor individual investment managers’ 

performance quarterly and annually. The managers' organizations and operations will be 

qualitatively monitored on a continual basis. 

 

The General Investment Consultant will present a portfolio investment performance report to 

the Board on a quarterly basis. Performance will be measured for the total portfolio as well 

as sub-portfolios and individual portfolios. Each investment manager shall have a clear role 

within the total fund. The quarterly report will highlight any variance from that role. 

 

The CIO, with the assistance of the General Investment Consultant and Specialty Consultants, 

shall conduct periodic on-site review activities in connection with evaluating managers.   

Additionally, the Board may from time to time determine that it is in the best interest of the 

participants and beneficiaries for one or more Board members to visit the offices of an 

investment manager, in order to further the Board members’ understanding of the manager’s 

strategy and its role in the CCCERA portfolio. 



CCCERA INVESTMENT POLICY STATEMENT 

14 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 1: REFERENCED INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS 

 
The documents referenced in the Investment Policy Statement are listed below and 

incorporated by reference into this IPS: 

 

• CCCERA Board Investment Resolutions 

• Placement Agent Disclosure Policy 

• Code of Fiduciary Conduct and Ethics 

• Conflict of Interest Code 

• Procurement of Products and Services Policy 

• Other Investment-Related Board Actions 



1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 

Date: March 24, 2021 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Tim Price, Chief Investment Officer 

Subject: Recommendation to execute agreement with StoneX Futures Commission Merchant 
(FCM) for Sit LLCAR Strategy 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary and Recommendation 
As part of the recently approved Sit LLCAR strategy, we are asking for Board approval to retain 
StoneX as a Futures Commission Merchant (FCM).  FCMs buy and sell futures, options and swaps 
on behalf of investors and are required by regulators for such transactions. The Sit LLCAR employs 
S&P futures to hedge equity risk and StoneX is Sit’s preferred FCM for such transactions. Unlike 
long only strategies where the investment firm is responsible for selecting brokers and other such 
parties, futures exposure management requires a direct agreement with the end client.  The 
StoneX agreement will be ancillary to the Board-approved Sit LLCAR agreement.  

Sit has an existing relationship with StoneX and found them to be an efficient, market priced and 
reliable service provider. Sit estimates that the upper bound of total cost of services to be less 
than $5,000 per annum. 

Meeting Date 
03/24/2021 
Agenda Item 

#7 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-2 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

SALARY RESOLUTION FOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 31522.9 

WHEREAS, effective July 1, 2017, the Board of Retirement (“Board”) of the Contra Costa County 

Employees’ Retirement Association (“CCCERA”) entered into that certain Amended and Restated 

Employment Agreement for Chief Executive Officer with Gail Strohl, dated July 1, 2017 

(“Employment Agreement”), pursuant to Government Code section 31522.9; and  

WHEREAS, the Employment Agreement provides, at Section 3.1, that Strohl’s annual base salary 

shall be as set by the Board in a Salary Resolution adopted by the Board from time to time. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 

RESOLVED that commencing as of April 1, 2021, Strohl’s annual base salary for purposes of the 

Employment Agreement shall be Two Hundred Eighty Seven Thousand Eight Hundred and Eighty 

Dollars and Forty Cents ($287,880.40), payable in twelve monthly installments in arrears at a 

gross monthly rate of Twenty Three Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety Dollars and Three cents 

($23,990.03), less applicable taxes, and other customary and applicable payroll deductions, and, be 

it further 

RESOLVED that the annual base salary set by this Resolution shall remain in effect during the 

term of Gail Strohl’s continuing employment in accordance with the terms of the Employment 

Agreement unless and until modified by further resolution of the Board of Retirement, and, be it 

further

RESOLVED that on April 1, 2021, Strohl shall also receive a Five Thousand Dollar ($5,000.00) 

one-time lump-sum payment, less applicable taxes, and other customary and applicable payroll 

deductions. 

THIS RESOLUTION WAS ADOPTED BY THE AFFIRMATIVE VOTE OF THE BOARD OF 

RETIREMENT OF THE CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT 

ASSOCIATION THIS TWENTY FOURTH DAY OF MARCH, 2021. 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:  

____________________________________________ 

Todd Smithey 

Chairperson of the Board of Retirement 

Attest: 

____________________________________________ 

David MacDonald 

Secretary of the Board of Retirement 

Meeting Date 
03/24/2021 
Agenda Item 

#8 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

 

CCCERA RESOLUTION FOR SALARY AND BENEFITS 

FOR UNREPRESENTED EMPLOYEES  

 

EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 1, 2016 

AMENDED MAY 25, 2016 

AMENDED JUNE 22, 2016 

AMENDED JUNE 14, 2017 

AMENDED AUGUST 23, 2017 

AMENDED MAY 23, 2018 

AMENDED JULY 25, 2018 

AMENDED AUGUST 22, 2018 

AMENDED APRIL 10, 2019 

AMENDED FEBRUARY 26, 2020 

AMENDED FEBRUARY 10, 2021 

AMENDED MARCH 24, 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Date 
03/24/2021 
Agenda Item 

#9 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

Table of Contents 
1. Paid Holidays: ............................................................................................................................................ 2 

2. Personal Holidays: ..................................................................................................................................... 3 

3. Vacation: .................................................................................................................................................... 3 

        Vacation Buy Back: ................................................................................................................................... 4 

4. Sick Leave: ................................................................................................................................................. 5 

5. Sick Leave Incentive Plan: ......................................................................................................................... 5 

6. Management Administrative Leave ........................................................................................................... 6 

7. Other Unpaid Leaves: ................................................................................................................................ 7 

A. Medical/Family Illness/Child Care Leave (FMLA/CFRA LEAVE) ..................................................... 7 

B. Pregnancy Disability Leave ................................................................................................................... 8 

C.    Military Leave ........................................................................................................................................ 8 

8. Health, Dental, and Related Benefits ......................................................................................................... 9 

    Health and Dental Coverage Upon Retirement ........................................................................................ 10 

9. Long-Term and Short-Term Disability Insurance .................................................................................... 12 

10.   State Disability Insurance ........................................................................................................................ 12 

11.   Life Insurance .......................................................................................................................................... 12 

12.   Workers Compensation Insurance ........................................................................................................... 12 

13.   Health Care Spending Account ................................................................................................................ 13 

14.   Dependent Care Assistance Program ....................................................................................................... 14 

15.   Premium Conversion Plan ....................................................................................................................... 14 

16.   Vision Insurance ...................................................................................................................................... 14 

17.   Retirement: ............................................................................................................................................... 14 

    CCCERA Membership: ........................................................................................................................... 14 

    Deferred Compensation: .......................................................................................................................... 15 

18.   General Training ...................................................................................................................................... 16 

19.   Other Job-Related Training ...................................................................................................................... 16 

20.   Professional Development Reimbursement ............................................................................................. 16 

21.   Salary ....................................................................................................................................................... 17 

22.   Overtime .................................................................................................................................................. 17 

23.   Differential Pay ........................................................................................................................................ 17 

A. Longevity ............................................................................................................................................. 17 

B. Certificate Differentials ........................................................................................................................ 18 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

2 | P a g e  
 

 

WHEREAS, the Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association ("CCCERA") is a 

public agency established by virtue of, and governed by the County Employees’ Retirement Law 

of 1937, Government Code sections 31450, et seq., (“CERL”) and Article XVI, section 17 of the 

California Constitution. 

 

WHEREAS, CCCERA administers a retirement system for the County of Contra Costa and for 

other participating employers located within the County, including CCCERA, by and through its 

Board of Retirement (“Board”), and as the Board delegates to its employees who are appointed 

by CCCERA pursuant to CERL section 31529.9 (“CCCERA Employees.”) 

  

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to provide salary and benefits to the unrepresented employees of 

CCCERA, effective from January 1, 2015 until further notice; 

 

NOW THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that effective January 1, 2015 and until 

further notice employees of CCCERA in the job classifications identified on Attachment A 

hereto shall receive the following salary and benefits: 

 

 

1. Paid Holidays:  
 

CCCERA observes the following paid holidays during the term covered by this Resolution: 

 
New Year’s Day Labor Day 
Martin Luther King Jr. Day Veterans’ Day 
Presidents’ Day Thanksgiving Day 
Memorial Day Day after Thanksgiving 
Independence Day Christmas Day 

 
Any paid holiday observed by CCCERA that falls on a Saturday is observed on the 
preceding Friday and any paid holiday that falls on a Sunday is observed on the following 
Monday. 

 

Eligibility for Paid Holidays: Regular full-time employees are entitled to a paid day off in 
recognition of the holiday without a reduction in monthly base pay for CCCERA-observed 
holidays listed above.   

 

Part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 20 hours per 
week] are entitled to the listed paid holidays on a pro rata basis. For example, a part time 
employee whose position hours are 24 per week is entitled to 4.8 hours off work on a 
holiday (24/40 x 8 = 4.8).  

 

When a paid holiday falls on a part-time employee’s normally scheduled work day and the 
part-time paid holiday hours are more than the normally scheduled work hours the 
employee is entitled to receive flexible compensation hours or pay at the rate of one times 
the employees’ base rate of pay for the difference between the employee’s normally 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

3 | P a g e  
 

scheduled work hours and the paid part-time holiday hours. 

When a paid holiday falls on a part-time employee’s normally scheduled work day and the 
part-time paid holiday hours are less than the normally scheduled work hours the employee 
must use non-sick leave accruals for the difference between the employee’s normally 
scheduled work hours and the part-time paid holiday hours. If the employee does not have 
any non-sick leave accrual balances, leave without pay will be authorized. 

 

Flexible Compensation: Flexible Compensation may not be accumulated in excess of 288 
hours. After 288 hours are accrued by an employee, the employee will receive flexible pay 
at the rate of 1.0 times the employee’s base rate of pay. Flexible compensation may be 
taken on those dates and times determined by mutual agreement of the employee and their 
supervisor. 

 

2. Personal Holidays: 

 
Regular employees subject to this Resolution are entitled to accrue up to two hours of 
personal holiday credit each month.  
 

Part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 20 hours per 
week] accrue personal holiday hours on a pro rata basis.  
 
No employee may accrue more than forty hours of personal holiday credit at any time.  
Once the employee reaches forty hours of personal holiday, the employee will cease 
accruing such paid time off until he/she uses sufficient such time to reduce his/her bank 
below the forty-hour maximum, after at which time the employee may begin to accrue 
additional hours up to the forty-hour maximum. 
 
On separation from CCCERA service, employees shall be paid for any accrued and unused 
personal holiday hours at the employee’s then-current rate of pay. 

 

3. Vacation:  
 

Regular full-time employees subject to this Resolution are entitled to accrue paid vacation 
as follows: 

 

 

 

Length of Service* 

Monthly 
Accrual 
Hours 

Maximum  
Cumulative 
Hours  

Fewer than 11 years 10 240 

11 years 10-2/3 256 

12 years 11-1/3 272 

13 years 12 288 

14 years 12-2/3 304 

15 through 19 years 13-1/3 320 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

4 | P a g e  
 

 

 

Length of Service* 

Monthly 
Accrual 
Hours 

Maximum  
Cumulative 
Hours  

20 through 24 years 16-2/3 400 

25 through 29 years 20 480 

30 years and up 23-1/3 560 

* Includes County service if employed at CCCERA before January 1, 2015. 

 

Part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 20 hours per 
week] are entitled to the listed paid vacation on a pro rata basis. 

 

Employees may accrue paid vacation time up to a maximum of twice their annual vacation 
accrual.  That is, for a full-time employee with 8 years of service, the employee may 
accrue up to a maximum of 240 hours (120 hours maximum annual accrual x 2 = 240 
hours).  Once the employee reaches this maximum cumulative hours, she/he will cease 
accruing paid vacation time until he/she uses sufficient vacation to drop below the 
maximum cumulative hours after which time the employee may begin to accrue additional 
hours up to the maximum cumulative hours. 

 
On separation from CCCERA service, employees shall be paid for any accrued and unused 
vacation hours at the employee’s then-current rate of pay. 

 

Vacation Buy Back: 

 

A. With the exception of the Chief Executive Officer, employees may elect payment 
of up to one-third (1/3) of their annual vacation accrual, subject to the following 
conditions:  

(1) the choice can be made only once every thirteen (13) months and there must be 
at least twelve (12) full months between each election;  

(2) payment is based on an hourly rate determined by dividing the employee’s 
current monthly salary by 173.33; and  

(3) the maximum number of vacation hours that may be paid in any one sale is 
one-third (1/3) of the annual accrual. 

 

B. The Chief Executive Officer may elect payment of up to one-third (1/3) of their 
annual vacation accrual, subject to the following conditions: 

(1) the choice can be made only once in each calendar year;  

(2) payment is based on an hourly rate determined by dividing the employee’s 
current monthly salary by 173.33; and  

(3) the maximum number of vacation hours that may be paid in any one sale is 
one-third (1/3) of the annual accrual. 

 
C. The vacation buy back election must be made in the calendar year preceding the year of the 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

5 | P a g e  
 

vacation sale. Hours that an employee elects to cash out are not available for the employee 

to use as vacation.  If a vacation buy back election is not made in the preceding calendar 

year, it will be considered a declination of the vacation sale for the year.  

 

NOTE: Where a lump-sum payment is made to employees as a retroactive general salary 
adjustment for a portion of a calendar year that is subsequent to the exercise by an 
employee of the vacation buy-back provision herein, that employee’s vacation buy-back 
will be adjusted to reflect the percentage difference in base pay rates upon which the lump-
sum payment was computed, provided that the period covered by the lump-sum payment 
includes the effective date of the vacation buy-back. For example: In May a salary 
increase is approved with an effective date of January 1st and the employee completed a 
vacation buy-back in March, a lump sum payment for the difference in base pay of the 
vacation buy-back would be calculated.   

 

4. Sick Leave:  

 

Regular full-time employees subject to this Resolution shall earn paid sick leave benefits at 
the rate of eight (8) hours per month.  Regular part-time employees [who are regularly 
scheduled to work a minimum of 20 hours per week] are entitled to sick leave benefits on a 
pro rata basis.  

 

Unused sick leave hours accumulate from year to year. When an employee is separated, 
other than through retirement, accumulated sick leave hours shall be cancelled, unless the 
separation results from layoff, in which case the accumulated hours shall be restored if 
reemployed in a regular position within the period of layoff eligibility. At retirement, 
employees are credited, at the rate of one day for each one day earned, with sick leave 
accumulated as of the day of retirement and that sick leave credit counts as additional 
retirement service credit.  

 

For more information on sick leave benefits please refer to the CCCERA Personnel 
Policies. 

 

5. Sick Leave Incentive Plan:  

 

Employees may be eligible for a payoff of a part of unused sick leave accruals at 
separation. The sick leave incentive plan is an incentive for employees to safeguard sick 
leave accruals as protection against wage loss due to time lost for injury or illness. Payoff 
must be approved by the Chief Executive Officer, and is subject to the following 
conditions: 

 

➢ The employee must have resigned in good standing 

➢ Payout is not available if the employee is eligible to retire 

➢ The balance of sick leave at resignation must be at least 70% of accruals earned in 
the preceding continuous period of employment excluding any sick leave use 
covered by the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), the California Family 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

6 | P a g e  
 

Rights Act (CFRA) or the California Pregnancy Disability Act (PDL). 

➢ Payout is by the following schedule: 

 

Years of Payment 
Continuous Service 

Payment of Unused 
Sick Leave Payable 

3 – 5 years 30% 

5 – 7 years 40% 

7 plus years 50% 

  

➢ No payoff will be made pursuant to this section unless CCCERA certifies that an 
employee requesting as sick leave payoff has terminated membership in, and has 
withdrawn their contributions from CCCERA. 

➢ It is the intent of the Board of Retirement that payments made pursuant to this 
section are in lieu of CCCERA retirement benefits resulting from employment with 
any of the employers in the CCCERA retirement plan.  

 

6. Management Administrative Leave 

 

Management Administrative Leave is authorized time away from the job for any personal 
activities and needs which are not charged to sick leave or vacation hours. Unrepresented 
employees who are exempt from the payment of overtime are eligible for this benefit. 

 

Use of Management Administrative Leave may be requested whenever desired by the 
employee; however; approval of request shall be subject to the same department process as 
used for vacation requests. 

 

All unused Management Administrative Leave will be cancelled at 11:59 p.m. on 
December 31st of each year. 

 

A. On January 1st of each year, all full-time unrepresented employees, who are exempt 
from the payment of overtime and in paid status, will be credited with ninety four (94) 
hours of paid Management Administrative Leave. All Management Administrative 
Leave is non-accruable and all balances will be zeroed out on December 31st of each 
year. 

 

B. Regular part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 20 
hours per week] are eligible for Management Administrative Leave on a prorated 
basis, based upon their position hours. 

 

C. Employees appointed (hired or promoted) to a management position are eligible for 
Management Administrative Leave on the first day of the month following their 
appointment date and will receive Management Administrative Leave on a prorated 
basis for that first year. 

 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

7 | P a g e  
 

 

7. Other Unpaid Leaves: 

 

CCCERA provides leaves of absence to eligible employees in a variety of circumstances.  
In all cases, CCCERA intends to comply with applicable federal and state laws.  For 
additional information on unpaid leaves please refer to the CCCERA Personnel Policies. 

 

• Pregnancy disability leave may be requested by any employee at any time. 

• Workers’ compensation leave is provided to any employee as needed. 

• Leave as a reasonable accommodation of an employee’s disability is 

provided to any employee as needed. 

Request for Leave:  As soon as an employee learns of the need for a leave of absence, the 

employee should submit a request for leave to the Administrative/HR Manager.  Request 

forms are available from Human Resources.  Any leave request must state the purpose of 

the leave being requested.  If approved, the leave must be used for that purpose. 

A. Medical/Family Illness/Child Care Leave (FMLA/CFRA LEAVE)  

 

Eligible employees may request an unpaid Family Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”) of up to 

18 workweeks in a rolling 12-month period (measured backwards from the date the leave 

begins) for any of the following reasons: 

• Birth of the employee’s child and to care for the child within the first year of 

birth;  

• The care of an adopted or foster child which the first year of placement with 

the employee; 

• Care for the employee’s child, spouse or domestic partner, or parent with a 

serious health condition;  

• Serious health condition of the employee; 

• A qualifying exigency arising out of an eligible family member’s call to 

military duty; or 

• To care for a covered military service member who is the employee’s eligible 

family member/next-of-kin. 

For purposes of this Resolution, an eligible employee is one who has completed one year of 

continuous employment with CCCERA and worked a minimum of 1,250 hours during the 

preceding 12 months. 

Medical certification is required for leaves necessitated by the serious health condition of 

the employee or of a family member, but an employee or his/her health care provider need 

not, and should not, disclose the employee’s underlying condition. medical history, results 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

8 | P a g e  
 

of tests, or any genetic information.    A “serious health condition” means an illness, injury, 

impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves any of the following: 

• Time or treatment in connection with inpatient care; 

• Period of incapacity of more than three consecutive days that involves 

treatment by a health care provider; or 

• Any period of incapacity or treatment that is permanent or long term. 

Employees will continue to be covered by CCCERA health insurance benefits under pre-

leave conditions during the entire approved FMLA leave. 

FMLA leave is unpaid, except that employees [may elect to use any accrued vacation, sick, 

personal holiday or management administrative leave time. 

Intermittent leave or a reduced work schedule may be approved with medical certification 

for an employee’s Serious Health Condition, for the employee to care for a child, parent, 

spouse, or domestic partner (under the CFRA only) with a serious health condition. 

Medical certification that the employee is released to return to work is required before the 

employee will be permitted to return. 

If an employee needs to extend his or her leave, he/she must request an extension for 

FMLA/CFRA leave as soon as practicable after he/she has knowledge of the need for 

additional leave time. Recertification by a treating health care provider may be required 

every 30 calendar days in connection with an employee’s absence where appropriate. 

B. Pregnancy Disability Leave 

 

Pregnancy Disability Leave (PDL) is a leave due to pregnancy, childbirth, or related reasons 

preventing the employee from performing her job functions.  PDL includes leave needed for 

prenatal care and prenatal complications. 

Employees may take up to a maximum of four months of PDL per pregnancy.  Medical 

certification of the need for the leave is required, and the length of PDL will depend on the 

medical necessity for the leave.  Medical certification that the employee is released to return 

to work is required before the employee will be permitted to return. 

Employees will continue to be covered by CCCERA health insurance benefits under pre-

leave conditions during the entire approved PDL. 

Leave for pregnancy disability is unpaid, except that employees may elect to use any 

accrued vacation, sick, personal holiday or management administrative leave time. 

C.  Military Leave 
 

Federal and state mandated-military leaves of absence are granted without pay to members 

of the United States Uniformed Services, the California National Guard, or the reserves.  To 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

9 | P a g e  
 

be eligible, an employee must submit written verification from the appropriate military 

authority.  Such leaves will be granted in accordance with state and federal law.  

When an employee goes on Military Leave for more than 30 days, any applicable group 

insurance (existing provisions will apply) continues for 90 days following the 

commencement of unpaid Military Leave. Beyond the 90 days, the employee may elect to 

continue the same group health care coverage, including dependent coverage, if applicable, 

for up to 24 months at his/her own expense. 

An employee may elect to use accrued personal holidays, vacation, and/or management 

administrative leave at the beginning of unpaid military service or may retain earned and 

accrued vacation for use upon return from the leave. The employee must provide this 

request/election in writing to Administrative/HR Manager prior to the start of the military 

leave. 

At the conclusion of military service, an employee will be reinstated upon giving notice of 

his/her intent to return to work by either (1) reporting to work or (2) submitting a timely oral 

or written request to CCCERA for reinstatement within 90 days of days after their release 

from active duty or any extended period required by law. The Military Leave will expire 

upon the employee’s failure to request reinstatement or return to work in a timely manner 

after conclusion of service. 

8. Health, Dental, and Related Benefits 

 

Regular full-time and part-time employees [who are regularly scheduled to work a 

minimum of 20 hours per week] and their eligible dependents may be entitled to receive 

medical and dental insurance coverage through CCCERA Plans.  Attached hereto as 

Attachment B, is the monthly premium subsidy for unrepresented employees. 

Effective January 1, 2016, CCCERA shall offer an Internal Revenue Code Section 125 

Flexible Benefits Plan that offers (i) CalPERS health plan coverages for each eligible 

employee and the employee's eligible family members and (ii) at least one other nontaxable 

benefit.  CCCERA shall make monthly contributions under the plan for each eligible 

employee and their dependents (if applicable) up to the relevant amount set forth in 

Attachment B.  Such contributions shall consist of (i) the Minimum Employer Contribution 

(MEC) established by the Public Employees' Medical and Hospital Care Act, and 

designated by CCCERA as the MEC, and (ii) the additional amount of such contributions in 

excess of the MEC. 

 

Any eligible employee who enrolls in health coverage with a higher total premium than 

CCCERA’s contributions with respect to the eligible employee, as stated in Attachment B, 

will pay the difference via pre-tax payroll deductions under the plan to the extent permitted 

by Internal Revenue Code Section 125. 

 

Dual Coverage: Each employee, eligible dependent and retiree may be covered by only a 

single CCCERA health or dental plan. 

Please refer any questions about medical/dental benefits to Human Resources.   

 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

10 | P a g e  
 

Health and Dental Coverage Upon Retirement 

 

1. Any CCCERA retiree or their eligible dependent who becomes age 65 on or after 

January 1, 2009 and who is eligible for Medicare must immediately enroll in Medicare 

Parts A and B. 

 

2. For employees hired by Contra Costa County or CCCERA on or after January 1, 2009 

and their eligible dependents, upon completion of five (5) years of CCCERA service, 

an eligible employee who retires from CCCERA may retain continuous coverage of a 

CCCERA health and/or dental plan provided that:  

 

i. he or she begins to receive a monthly retirement allowance from CCCERA 

within 120 days of separation from CCCERA employment and  

ii. he or she pays the difference between the Public Employees’ Medical and 

Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) minimum contribution and the premium cost 

of the health plan. He or she pays the full premium of the dental plan without 

any CCCERA premium subsidy. 

 

3. For employees hired by Contra Costa County before January 1, 2009 and their eligible 

dependents, upon completion of five (5) years of CCCERA service, an eligible 

employee who retires from CCCERA may retain continuous coverage of a CCCERA 

health and/or dental plan provided that they meet the requirements listed below:  

  

i. he or she begins to receive a monthly retirement allowance from CCCERA 

within 120 days of separation from CCCERA employment and  

ii. he or she pays the difference between the monthly premium subsidy 

established by the Board of Retirement for eligible employees and their 

eligible dependents and the premium cost of the health/dental plan.1 

 

1 CCCERA will pay the health/dental plan monthly premium subsidy established by the Board of Retirement for eligible retirees 

and their eligible dependents. 

 

4. All periods of benefit eligible employment will be included in the five (5) years of 
service calculation for purposes of health and dental coverage upon retirement. 

 

5. Employees who were on an authorized leave of absence without pay prior to retiring 
must have maintained coverage through CCCERA and paid the applicable premiums 
during their authorized leave of absence in order to be eligible for coverage under 
this Section. 

 

6. Employees, who resign and file for a deferred retirement and their eligible 
dependents, may continue in their CCCERA group health and/or dental plan under 
the following conditions and limitations: 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

11 | P a g e  
 

i. Health and dental coverage during the deferred retirement period is totally 
at the expense of the employee, without any CCCERA contributions. 

ii. Life insurance coverage is not included. 
iii. To continue health and dental coverage, the employee must: 

 
a. be qualified for a deferred retirement under the 1937 Retirement Act 

provisions; 
b. be an active member of a CCCERA group health and/or dental plan 

at the time of filing their deferred retirement application and elect to 
continue plan benefits; 

c. be eligible for a monthly allowance from the Retirement System and 
direct receipt of a monthly allowance within one hundred twenty 
(120) days of application for deferred retirement; and 

d. file an election to defer retirement and to continue health benefits 
hereunder with CCCERA within thirty (30) days before separation 
from CCCERA service. 

 
iv. Deferred retirees who elect continued health benefits hereunder and their 

eligible dependents may maintain continuous membership in their 
CCCERA health and/or dental plan group during the period of deferred 
retirement by paying the full premium for health and dental coverage on or 
before the 10th of each month, to CCCERA. When the deferred retirees 
begin to receive retirement benefits, they will qualify for the same health 
and/or dental coverage listed above, as similarly situated retirees who did 
not defer retirement. 

 
v. Deferred retirees may elect retiree health benefits hereunder without 

electing to maintain participation in their CCCERA health and/or dental 
plan during their deferred retirement period. When they begin to receive 
retirement benefits, they will qualify for the same health and/or dental 
coverage as listed above, as similarly situated retirees who did not defer 
retirement. 

 

vi. Employees who elect deferred retirement will not be eligible in any event 
for CCCERA health and/or dental premium subsidies unless the member 
draws a monthly retirement allowance within one hundred twenty days 
(120) after separation from CCCERA employment. 

 
vii. Deferred retirees and their eligible dependents are required to meet the 

same eligibility provisions for retiree health/dental coverage as similarly 
situated retirees who did not defer retirement. 

 

7. For employees who retire and are eligible to receive a medical premium subsidy that 

is greater than the PEMHCA minimum contribution, each month during which such 

retiree medical coverage continues, CCCERA will provide each such retiree with a 

medical expense reimbursement plan (MERP), also known as a health 

reimbursement arrangement (HRA), subject to Internal Revenue Code Section 105, 

with a monthly credit equal to the excess of (i) the relevant medical coverage 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

12 | P a g e  
 

monthly premium subsidy set forth in Attachment B for such eligible retiree and his 

or her eligible family members over (ii) the then current MEC. 

 

8. Long-Term and Short-Term Disability Insurance 

 

CCCERA will provide Long-Term and Short-Term Disability Insurance. 

 

9. State Disability Insurance 

 

Unrepresented employees do not contribute towards State Disability Insurance. 

 

10. Life Insurance  

 

For employees who are enrolled in CCCERA’s program of medical or dental coverage as 
either the primary or the dependent, term life insurance in the amount of ten thousand 
dollars ($10,000) will be provided by CCCERA.  

 

Management employees, with the exception of the Chief Executive Officer will also 
receive fifty-seven thousand dollars ($57,000) in addition to the life insurance provided 
above. The Chief Executive Officer will receive an additional sixty thousand dollars 
($60,000) in addition to the ten thousand dollars ($10,000) insurance provided above. 

 

In addition to the life insurance benefits provided by CCCERA, employees may subscribe 
voluntarily and at their own expense for supplemental life insurance. Please refer to 
Human Resources for additional information. 

 

11. Workers Compensation Insurance 
 

CCCERA provides workers' compensation benefits to employees who sustain a work-related 

injury or illness, and claims are processed through an adjusting agent/insurance carrier as 

designated by CCCERA, which administers workers' compensation claims and provides 

benefits and services to injured employees.  A worker's compensation injury is any injury or 

illness that arises out of and in the course of employment (AOE/COE) (Labor Code section 

3600). 

 

1. Waiting Period: There is a three (3) calendar day waiting period before workers’ 
compensation benefits commence. If the injured worker loses any time on the date of 
injury, that day counts as day one (1) of the waiting period. If the injured worker does 
not lose time on the date of the injury, the waiting period is the first three (3) days 
following the date of the injury. The time the employee is scheduled to work during 
this waiting period will be charged to the employee’s sick leave and/or vacation 
accruals. In order to qualify for workers’ compensation the employee must be under 
the care of a physician. Temporary compensation is payable on the first three (3) days 
of disability when the injury necessitates hospitalization, or when the disability exceeds 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

13 | P a g e  
 

fourteen (14) days. 

 

2. Continuing Pay: Permanent employees shall continue to receive the appropriate percent 
as per Labor Code section 4650 et. seq. of their regular monthly salary during any 
period of compensable temporary disability not to exceed one year. Payment of 
continuing pay and/or temporary disability compensation is made in accordance with 
Part 2, Article 3 of the Workers’ Compensation Laws of California. "Compensable 
temporary disability absence" for the purpose of this Section, is any absence due to 
work connected disability which qualifies for temporary disability compensation as set 
forth in Part 2, Article 3 of the Workers’ Compensation Laws of California. 

 

When any disability becomes medically permanent and stationary and/or reaches 
maximum medical improvement, the salary provided in this Section shall terminate. 
No charge shall be made against sick leave or vacation for these payments. Sick leave 
and vacation rights shall not accrue for those periods during which continuing pay is 
received.  

 

Employees shall be entitled to a maximum of one (1) year of continuing pay benefits 
for any one injury or illness.  

 

Continuing pay begins at the same time that temporary workers’ compensation benefits 
commence and continues until either the member is declared medically 
permanent/stationary, or until one (1) year of continuing pay, whichever comes first, 
provided the employee remains in an active employed status. Continuing pay is 
automatically terminated on the date an employee is separated from CCCERA by 
resignation, retirement, layoff, or the employee is no longer employed by CCCERA. In 
these instances, employees will be paid workers’ compensation benefits as prescribed 
by workers’ compensation laws. All continuing pay must be cleared through 
CCCERA. 

 

3. Physician Visits: Whenever an employee who has been injured on the job and has 
returned to work is required by an attending physician to leave work for treatment 
during working hours, the employee is allowed time off, up to three (3) hours for such 
treatment, without loss of pay or benefits. Said visits are to be scheduled contiguous to 
either the beginning or end of the scheduled workday whenever possible. This 
provision applies only to injuries/illnesses that have been accepted by CCCERA as 
work related. 

 

12. Health Care Spending Account 

 

After six (6) months of regular employment, full time and part time (20/40 or greater) 
employees may elect to participate in a Health Care Spending Account (HCSA) Program 
designated to qualify for tax savings under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code, but 
such savings are not guaranteed. The HCSA Program allows employees to set aside a 
predetermined amount of money from their pay, before taxes, for health care expenses not 
reimbursed by any other health benefit plans. HCSA dollars may be expended on any 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

14 | P a g e  
 

eligible medical expenses allowed by Internal Revenue Code Section 125. Any unused 
balance over five hundred dollars ($500) is forfeited and cannot be recovered by the 
employee. Please refer to Human Resources for more information on the HCSA Program. 

 

13. Dependent Care Assistance Program 

 

Full time and part time (20/40 or greater) employees may elect to participate in a 
Dependent Care Assistance Program (DCAP) designed to qualify for tax savings under 
Section 129 of the Internal Revenue Code, but such savings are not guaranteed. The 
program allows employees to set aside up to five thousand ($5,000) of annual salary 
(before taxes) per calendar year to pay for eligible dependent care (child and elder care) 
expenses. According to IRS regulations, any unused balance is forfeited and may not be 
recovered by the employee. Please refer to Human Resources for more information on 
DCAP. 

 

14. Premium Conversion Plan 

 

CCCERA offers the Premium Conversion Plan (PCP) designed to qualify for tax savings 
under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code, but tax savings are not guaranteed. The 
program allows employees to use pre-tax salary to pay health and dental premiums. Please 
refer to Human Resources for more information on the PCP. 

 

15. Vision Insurance 

 

CCCERA will pay 100% of the employee only premium for EyeMed Option 2 vision 

coverage and up to two hours of CCCERA paid time for exam and to obtain glasses. 

Employees may obtain spouse and dependent coverage at their own cost.  

 

16. Retirement: 

 

CCCERA Membership: 

Contributions: Employees are responsible for the payment of one hundred percent of 
the employees’ basic retirement benefit contributions determined annually by the 
Board. Employees are also responsible for the payment of the employee’s contributions 
to the retirement cost-of-living program as determined annually by the Board. 
CCCERA is responsible for payment of one hundred percent of the employer’s 
retirement contributions as determined annually by the Board. 

A. Employees who are not classified as new members under PEPRA will be enrolled in 
Retirement Tier 1 enhanced. For more information on retirement tiers please refer to 
the CCCERA member handbooks. 

B. Employees who are classified as new members under PEPRA will be enrolled in 
Retirement IV (3% COLA). For more information on retirement tiers please refer to 
the CCCERA member handbooks. 

C. CCCERA will implement Section 414(h) (2) of the Internal Revenue Code which 
allows CCCERA to reduce the gross monthly pay of employees by an amount equal to 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

15 | P a g e  
 

the employee’s total contribution to the CCCERA Retirement Plan before Federal and 
State income taxes are withheld, and forward that amount to the CCCERA Retirement 
Plan. This program of deferred retirement contribution will be universal and non-
voluntary as required by statute. 

 

Deferred Compensation: 

A. CCCERA will contribute eighty-five dollars ($85) per month to each employee who 
participates in CCCERA’s Deferred Compensation Plan. To be eligible for this 
Deferred Compensation Incentive, the employee must contribute to the deferred 
compensation plan as indicated below: 

 

Employees with Current 
Monthly Salary of: 

Qualifying Base 
Contribution Amount 

Monthly Contribution 
Required to Maintain 
Incentive Program 
Eligibility 

$2,500 and below $250 $50 

$2,501 – 3,334 $500 $50 

$3,335 – 4,167 $750 $50 

$4,168 – 5,000 $1,000 $50 

$5,001 – 5,834 $1,500 $100 

$5,835 – 6,667 $2,000 $100 

$6,668 and above $2,500 $100 

 

Employees who discontinue contributions or who contribute less than the required 
amount per month for a period of one (1) month or more will no longer be eligible for 
the eighty-five dollars ($85) Deferred Compensation Incentive. To reestablish 
eligibility, employees must again make a Base Contribution Amounts as set forth above 
based on current monthly salary. Employees with a break in deferred compensation 
contributions either because of an approved medical leave or an approved financial 
hardship withdrawal will not be required to reestablish eligibility. Further, employees 
who lose eligibility due to displacement by layoff, but maintain contributions at the 
required level and are later employed in an eligible position, will not be required to 
reestablish eligibility. 

 

B. Regular employees hired on and after January 1, 2009 will receive one hundred and 
fifty dollars ($150) per month to an employee’s account in the Contra Costa County 
Deferred Compensation Plan or other tax-qualified savings program designated by 
CCCERA, for employees who meet all of the following conditions: 

1. The employee must be hired by CCCERA on or after January 1, 2009. 

2. The employee is not eligible for a monthly premium subsidy for health and/or dental 
upon retirement as set forth in Section 8. 

3. The employee must be appointed to a regular position. The position may be either   
full time or part time (designated at a minimum of 20 hours per week). 

4. The employee must have been employed by CCCERA or Contra Costa County for at 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

16 | P a g e  
 

least 90 calendar days. 

5. The employee must contribute a minimum of twenty-five dollars ($25) per month to 
the Contra Costa County Deferred Compensation Plan, or other tax-qualified savings 
program designated by CCCERA. 

6. The employee must complete and sign the required enrollment form(s) for his/her 
deferred compensation account and submit those forms to Human Resources. 

7. The employee may not exceed the annual maximum contribution amount allowable 
by the United States Internal Revenue Code. 

8. Employees are eligible to apply for loans from the Contra Costa County Deferred 
Compensation Plan loan program. For more information on the loan program refer to 
Human Resources. 

 

17. General Training 

 

CCCERA periodically provides training to employees on its harassment prevention and 

equal opportunity/discrimination policies.  The purpose of these training sessions is to 

inform and remind employees of CCCERA’s policies on these matters.  These training 

sessions are mandatory. 

Employees also receive safety training as part of CCCERA’s Injury and Illness Prevention 

program. 

18. Other Job-Related Training  

 

Employees may request to attend training sessions on topics that are directly related to the 

employee’s current job and that are likely to improve the employee’s job knowledge and 

skills.  Requests to attend training must be submitted to the employee’s department 

manager.  It is within the sole discretion of CCCERA whether or not to grant a training 

request. 

 

19. Professional Development Reimbursement 

 

To encourage personal and professional growth which is beneficial to both CCCERA and 

the employee, CCCERA reimburses for certain expenses incurred by employees which are 

related to an employee’s current work assignment. 

Expenses that may be eligible for reimbursement include certification programs and courses 

offered through accredited colleges, universities and technical schools. 

Guidelines:  Prior to registering for a course, the employee must provide appropriate 

information to Human Resources to begin the approval process. 

If granted, reimbursement may be used to defray actual costs of tuition, registration, testing 

materials, testing fees and books only and is limited to $2,000 per year.   



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

17 | P a g e  
 

Course attendance, study, class assignments and exams must be accomplished outside of the 

employee’s regular working hours. 

Reimbursement:  Reimbursement will only be provided for course work in which the 

employee achieves a grade of C or better. Reimbursement will be provided only to 

employees who are employed by CCCERA at the time CCCERA receives evidence of 

satisfactory completion of the course or certification exam. 

If the employee does not successfully complete the course or certification exam, no 

reimbursement will be provided. 

Exceptions: For classifications which require a certification or technical license, CCCERA 

will reimburse the entire cost of certification fees and membership dues without reducing 

the maximum annual Professional Development Reimbursement amount.  

20. Salary 

 

Attached hereto as Attachment A, is the salary schedule for all classifications of 

unrepresented employees. 

21. Overtime 

 

Unrepresented employees who are exempt from the payment of overtime are not entitled to 

receive overtime pay, flexible compensatory, or overtime compensatory time. 

Unrepresented employees who are non-exempt from the payment of overtime will receive 

overtime for hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the workweek and paid at a rate of time 

and one-half their hourly rate of pay. 

22. Differential Pay 

 

A. Longevity 

 

Ten Years of Service: 

Employees who have completed ten (10) years of service for CCCERA* are eligible to 

receive a two and one-half percent (2.5%) longevity differential effective on the first day of 

the month following the month in which the employee qualifies for the ten (10) year service 

award.  

Fifteen Years of Service: 

Employees who have completed fifteen (15) years of service for CCCERA* are eligible to 

receive an additional two and one-half percent (2.5%) longevity differential effective on the 

first day of the month following the month in which the employee qualifies for the fifteen 

(15) year service award. 

Twenty Years of Service: 



BOR Reso. No. 2021-3 

18 | P a g e  
 

Employees in the General Counsel classification who have completed twenty (20) years of 

service for CCCERA* will receive an additional two percent (2%) longevity differential 

effective on the first day of the month following the month in which the employee qualifies 

for the twenty (20) year service award. 

*For employees hired prior to January 1, 2019 upon completion of required years of service 

for Contra Costa County and/or CCCERA will qualify. 

B. Certificate Differentials 

 
NOTE: No employee may receive more than one certificate differential at one time, 
regardless of the number of certificates held by that employee. 

 

➢ Accounting Certificate Differential 

Incumbents of unrepresented professional accounting, auditing or fiscal officer positions 
who possess one of the following active certifications will receive a differential of five 
percent (5%) of base monthly salary:  

 

(1) a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) license issued by the State of California, 
Department of Consumer Affairs, Board of Accountancy;  

(2) a Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) certification issued by the Institute of Internal 
Auditors;  

(3) a Certified Management Accountant (CMA) certification issued by the Institute of 
Management Accountants; or  

(4) a Certified Government Financial Manager (CGFM) certification issued by the 
Association of Government Accountants. 

 

➢ Associate of the Society of Actuaries (ASA) 
Employees who possess an active ASA certification will receive a differential of five 
percent (5%) of base monthly salary. Verification of eligibility for any such differential 
must be provided to Human Resources.  

 

 



Effective April 1, 2021

Revision Dates: 4/1/2021, 4/1/2020, 1/1/2020, 7/1/19, 4/1/19, 7/1/18, 7/1/17, 7/1/16, 2/1/16, 7/1/15, 1/1/15

10 year 

Longevity

15 year 

Longevity

20 year 

Longevity

CPA, 

CGFM, 

CIA, CMA ASA

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 2.50% 2.50% 2.00% 5% 5%

Hourly (Non-Exempt)

Executive Assistant $37.67 $39.55 $41.53 $43.61 $45.79 Yes Yes No No Yes

Information Technology Coordinator $39.55 $41.53 $43.61 $45.79 $48.08 Yes Yes No No Yes

Member Services Supervisor $45.79 $48.08 $50.48 $53.01 $55.66 Yes Yes No No Yes

Retirement Services Supervisor $45.79 $48.08 $50.48 $53.01 $55.66 Yes Yes No No Yes

Monthly (Exempt)

Accountant $6,219 $6,529 $6,856 $7,199 $7,559 Yes Yes No Yes Yes

Accounting Manager $10,636 $11,168 $11,726 $12,312 $12,928 Yes Yes No Yes Yes

Accounting Supervisor $7,937 $8,333 $8,750 $9,188 $9,647 Yes Yes No Yes Yes

Administrative/HR Manager $10,383 $10,902 $11,447 $12,019 $12,620 Yes Yes No No Yes

Administrative/HR Supervisor $7,937 $8,333 $8,750 $9,188 $9,647 Yes Yes No No Yes

Communications Coordinator $7,379 $7,748 $8,135 $8,542 $8,969 Yes Yes No No Yes

Compliance Business Analyst $8,135 $8,542 $8,969 $9,417 $9,888 Yes Yes No No Yes

Deputy General Counsel $14,966 $15,714 $16,500 $17,325 $18,191 Yes Yes No No Yes

Information System Programmer/Analyst $7,559 $7,937 $8,333 $8,750 $9,188 Yes Yes No No Yes

Information Technology Manager $12,620 $13,251 $13,914 $14,609 $15,340 Yes Yes No No Yes

Investment Analyst $10,902 $11,447 $12,019 $12,620 $13,251 Yes Yes No No Yes

Investment Officer $15,340 $16,107 $16,912 $17,758 $18,646 Yes Yes No No Yes

Member Services Manager $10,383 $10,902 $11,447 $12,019 $12,620 Yes Yes No No Yes

Retirement Services Manager $10,383 $10,902 $11,447 $12,019 $12,620 Yes Yes No No Yes

Chief Executive Officer                               Yes Yes No No Yes

Chief Investment Officer Yes Yes No No Yes

Compliance Officer Yes Yes No No Yes

Deputy Chief Executive Officer Yes Yes No No Yes

General Counsel Yes Yes Yes No Yes

Internal Auditor Yes Yes No Yes Yes

$16,419 - $21,344

$18,101- $23,531

$10,585 - $13,760

*NOTE: Certificate Differentials cannot be combined with other certificate differentials

Resolution of the Board of Retirement 

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association

CCCERA Resolution for Salary and Benefits for Unrepresented Employees

(BOR Reso. No. 2021-3)

Attachment A

Eligible for Differential*

Monthly Salary Range (Exempt)

$23,990.03

$20,479 - $26,623

$10,585 - $13,760



Attachment B 

 

Health and Dental Coverage Monthly Premium Subsidy 

Effective: January 1, 2019 

 

CalPERS Health Plans - For 2019, CCCERA’s employer monthly premium subsidy is a set 

dollar amount and is not a percentage of the medical plan premium charged by CalPERS.  

Below are the employer monthly premium subsidies provided for each medical plan for 2019 

only: 

 

CalPERS Health Plans 

Employee Only Employee & 1 

Dependent 

Employee & 2+ 

Dependents 

 

Employer Monthly 

Premium Subsidy 

Employer Monthly 

Premium Subsidy 

Employer Monthly 

Premium Subsidy 

Anthem HMO Select  $782.95 $1,565.89 $2,035.66 

Anthem HMO Traditional $746.47 $1,492.94 $1,940.82 

BSC Access + $746.47 $1,492.94 $1,940.82 

HealthNet SmartCare $804.97 $1,609.95 $2,092.93 

Kaiser Permanente $763.16 $1,526.33 $1,984.23 

PERS Choice $746.47 $1,492.94 $1,940.82 

PERS Select $543.19 $1,086.38 $1,412.29 

PERSCare $746.47 $1,492.94 $1,940.82 

Western Health Advantage $746.47 $1,492.94 $1,940.82 

 

Delta Dental - For 2019 CCCERA’s employer monthly premium subsidy is a set dollar amount 

and is not a percentage of the dental plan premium charged by Delta Dental.  Below are the 

employer monthly premium subsidies provided for 2019: 

  Employee Only: $46.21 

  Employee and Spouse: $103.72 

  Employee and Children: $103.41 

  Family: $169.38 

 

Effective January 1, 2020, any change in the monthly medical plan premiums charged by CalPERS or 

the monthly dental plan premiums charged by Delta Dental in the plan year 2020 compared to the plan 

year 2019, will be shared equally by the employee and CCCERA.  This change in monthly medical 

plan premiums or dental plan premiums will be added to or subtracted from the 2019 employer 

monthly premium subsidy listed in the table above.  



 

Meeting Date 
03/24/2021 
Agenda Item 

#10a. 



 
 
 

Advanced Principles of Pension Governance for Trustees 

A Virtual Program • June 7, 9 & 11, 2021 
 

Featuring	select,	abbreviated	sessions	from	CALAPRS’	popular	educational		
program	for	experienced	public	pension	fund	trustees	

 

ABOUT THE PROGRAM 
Public	Pension	Fund	Trustees	bear	a	heavy	fiduciary	burden.		On	a	cumulative	basis,	
California's	Constitution	holds	our	members'	350	Trustees	accountable	for	the	stewardship	of	
more	than	$450	Billion	in	retirement	fund	assets.		40	California	public	pension	systems	belong	
to	CALAPRS.		For	many	years,	Trustees	of	our	member	retirement	systems	have	participated	in	
CALAPRS’	unique	training	programs	presented	exclusively	for	California	public	retirement	
system	board	members.			
	
The	Advanced	course	is	about	building	trustee	skills	and	strengthening	board	governance.	
Pension	trustees	have	many	opportunities	to	learn	about	the	disciplines	required	to	run	a	
pension	system:		institutional	investing,	actuarial	science,	benefits	law,	etc.		But	another	highly	
important	area	of	knowledge	is	the	business	of	being	a	trustee	and	of	contributing	to	a	well-
functioning	board.		The	CALAPRS	Advanced	Principles	of	Pension	Governance	course	
exposes	veteran	trustees	to	the	most	effective	pension	management	thinking	to	help	them	
enhance	their	service	to	their	retirement	systems.			
	
To	continue	CALAPRS’	mission	of	providing	education	for	trustees	during	these	unprecedented	
times,	we	have	arranged	with	our	faculty	of	subject-matter	experts	to	present	abbreviated	
versions	of	several	key	educational	topics	from	this	program	in	an	online	format	in	June	2021.	
	
It	is	our	hope	that	those	who	attend	the	online	program	this	year	will	be	able	to	join	us	next	
year	as	well,	to	experience	the	full	educational	program	and	the	full	agenda	of	important	topics	
and	networking	that	are	offered	in-person	at	UCLA	Luskin	Center	in	Los	Angeles,	CA.	
	

PARTICIPANTS | WHO IS RIGHT FOR THE PROGRAM? 
The	program	is	designed	for	an	experienced	group	of	trustees.	Trustees	should	have	already	
acquired	a	basic	understanding	of	board	governance	practices,	actuarial	and	investment	
principles,	and	fiduciary	responsibility.	The	CALAPRS	Principles	of	Pension	Governance	
program	held	at	Pepperdine	University	is	an	excellent	primer,	but	is	not	a	prerequisite	to	
attend	this	program. 
 
THE VIRTUAL PLATFORM | HOW TO PARTICIPATE 	
The	program	will	be	held	using	the	Zoom	Meeting	platform	and	attendees	will	need	to	participate	
using	their	computer	or	mobile	tablet	in	order	to	access	the	visual	portion	of	the	sessions.	Audio	
may	be	accessed	by	dialing	in	by	phone	or	through	computer	audio	using	the	Zoom	platform.	
Detailed	access	instructions	will	be	sent	to	each	participant	one	week	prior	to	the	program.			
	
CALAPRS	plans	to	make	this	course	interactive	and	allow	attendees	the	option	to	enable	their	audio	
and	video	and	participate	actively	in	the	discussion.	In	addition,	a	chat	box	will	be	available	for	
attendees	to	communicate	with	each	other	in	writing,	as	well	as	a	written	Q&A	feature	to	submit	
questions	directly	to	the	presenters.		
	
	

Meeting Date 
03/24/2021 
Agenda Item 

#10b. 



 
 
 

Advanced Principles of Pension Governance for Trustees 

A Virtual Program • June 7, 9 & 11, 2021 
 

CURRICULUM | YOUR COURSE OF STUDY  
Course	attendees	will	hear	from	and	discuss	issues	with	top-level	presenters	in	the	areas	of	
board/staff	roles,	governance,	investment	principles,	economic	forecasting	and	actuarial	science.			
 
Monday,	June	7,	2021	
8:30-9:00am	 	 Welcome	&	Introductions	–	Mark	Hovey,	Course	Facilitator	
	
9:00am-11:00am	 Policy-Focused	Boards	–	Tom	Iannucci,	Cortex	Consulting	
	
Policy-focused	Boards	will	provide	attendees	with	a	unique	board-level	perspective	on	the	public	
pension	business.	Using	interactive	discussions	and	case	studies,	attendees	will	learn	and	discuss:	

• Fiduciary	and	organizational	risks	and	how	to	mitigate	them	through	board-level	policy;	
• Discuss	obstacles	to	board	effectiveness	and	strategies	for	overcoming	them;	
• Discuss	optimal	board	and	staff	roles,	accountabilities	and	delegation	of	authority;	
• Effective	strategic	and	business	planning	practices	

	
Wednesday,	June	9,	2021	
8:30-10:00am	 	 Economics	Update	&	Forecast	–	Dr.	Jerry	Nickelsburg,	Professor,		

UCLA	Anderson	School	of	Management	
	
As	we	have	now	entered	the	second	year	of	the	COVID19	pandemic,	the	need	for	good	forecasts	of	
the	future	of	the	national,	state	and	local	economies	becomes	more	important.	However,	the	
uncertainty	surrounding	the	post-COVID	world	makes	such	forecasting	all	the	more	difficult.	Will	
people	return	to	the	city?	What	about	offices?	How	soon	will	government	revenues	recover?	Using	
“similar	as	economic	inference”	and	lessons	from	the	2006-2008	housing	debacle	will	help	us	
understand	how	to	tap	into	that	uncertainty	to	develop	better	forecasts.	The	economic	outlook	for	
the	US	and	California	are	an	illustration	of	navigating	heightened	uncertainty	in	an	organized	way	
in	order	to	make	better	decisions,	and	to	have	a	road	map	to	changing	those	decisions.	
	
10:00-11:00am	 Good	Governance	and	the	Investment	Team	–	Steve	Sexauer,	Chief	

Investment	Officer,	San	Diego	County	Employees’	Retirement	Association	
	
Your	actuary	teaches	the	pension	equation	as	C	+	I	=	B	+	E.		What	is	the	role	of	"I"?	How	is	that	role	
accomplished?	This	session	will	share	the	investment	theory	that	underpins	pension	investments,	
and	why	we	see	consistent	evidence	that	most	public	pension	plan	returns	are	below	that	of	a	
simple	60%	stock-40%	bond	fund.	We'll	also	review	how	to	ensure	the	Investment	team	skills,	size,	
and	work	assignments	are	aligned	with	the	goals	of	"I."		
	
Friday,	June	11,	2021	
8:30-10:00am	 Advanced	Actuarial	Principles	–	Paul	Angelo,	Senior	VP	&	Actuary,	Segal		

&	Todd	Tauzer,	VP	&	Actuary,	Segal	
	

• Focus	on	the	two	actuarial	policy	and	decision	areas	for	trustees:	assumptions	and	funding	
policy	

• Consider	recent	trends	in	public	plan	discount	rates	and	why	that	topic	is	still	controversial	
• Review	the	three	components	of	funding	policy	and	then	drill	down	on	how	to	pay	off	the	

unfunded	liability	
	

10:00-11:00am	 Tying	It	All	Together:	Program	Takeaways	–	Mark	Hovey	



 
 
 

Advanced Principles of Pension Governance for Trustees 

A Virtual Program • June 7, 9 & 11, 2021 
	

REGISTRATION  
Registration	is	open	to	any	current	trustee	from	a	CALAPRS	member	retirement	system.	
Registration	is	open	online	at	www.calaprs.org	and	must	be	submitted	by	May	31,	2021.		
	
Pricing	to	attend	the	full	virtual	program	(all	3	days)	is	$650	per	trustee.		
	
Register	now	at	www.calaprs.org/events	
	
Questions?		
Contact	register@calaprs.org	or	415-764-4860	and	a	member	of	the	CALAPRS	staff	will	be	happy	to	
assist	you.		
	



INCOME TAX REMINDERS
Retirees and Payees

As we enter tax season, CCCERA wants to 
remind retirees about their right to increase, 
decrease, start or stop federal and/or state income 
tax withholding from their monthly retirement 
benefit.

If you reside in the United States, you are not 
required to have federal tax withheld from your 
monthly payments; however, if you choose to 
exempt yourself from withholding, you may need 
to pay any required taxes through other methods, 
such as quarterly installments. Please note, there 
is mandatory withholding on pension payments 
delivered outside the United States.

When can I change my tax withholding?

Changes can be made at any time by submitting 
the Withholding Certificates for Pension Payments 
Form (Form 210), available at cccera.org/forms. 

This form allows you to:

• Discontinue federal/state income tax 
withholding from your monthly retirement 
allowance.

• Withhold federal/state income tax based on 
a set number of allowances, and a specific 
marital status.

• Withhold a specific amount from your 
monthly pension payment (California state 
tax only).

• Withhold an additional amount from each 
monthly pension payment.

Changes received before the 15th of each month 
will be effective the following month. 

If your current withholding elections are good, they 
will remain in effect and no action is required. If 
your withholding and estimated tax payments do 
not adequately meet your tax liabilities, penalties 
under the estimated tax rules may apply.
 
What about state taxes?

Monthly payments made to CCCERA retirees 
living in California are subject to California income 
tax.  CCCERA payments to retirees living outside 
of California may not be subject to California 
income tax, but may be taxable based upon the 
state that you reside. CCCERA will continue to 
withhold California income tax until directed 
otherwise. Check with a tax professional, the State 
of California Franchise Tax Board or your state 
department of revenue for information on your 
individual tax situation as CCCERA cannot give 
personal tax advice to members.

Did you receive two 1099-R tax forms?

There are two reasons why you may receive two 
1099-R tax forms for the 2020 tax year:

• You turned 59½ during 2020 — one 1099-
R reflects the payments to you for part of 
the year that you were under 59½ and the 
second 1099-R reflects the payments  to you 
for part of the year that you were over 59½.

• You retired under the age of 59½ and 
returned to work for your employer within  
90 days of your retirement date for part of 
the year.

Spring 2021CCCERANEWS    



COLA EFFECTIVE APRIL 1
Retirees and Payees

CCCERA retirees and their survivors will receive 
a 2021 cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) in their 
monthly benefit effective April 1, 2021. The new 
amount will be reflected in the May 1, 2021 
benefit payments.

The Retirement Board voted to adopt the COLA 
presented by Segal Consulting, CCCERA’s actuary, 
at the January 27, 2021 board meeting. The COLA 
applies to every retirement allowance, optional 
death allowance and survivor allowance effective 
on or before March 31, 2021. 

Your COLA increase is based on several factors:

• San Francisco-Oakland-Hayward area CPI 
(Consumer Price Index)

• Your COLA Bank
• Your retirement tier
• Your date of retirement

Under the County Employees Retirement Law 
(CERL), there is a cap on the amount CCCERA 
may increase your benefit. If the inflation rate 
(measured by the change in CPI) is higher than this 
cap, the remainder is banked, then applied if the 
change in a future CPI is lower than the cap. This 
helps stabilize the COLA from year to year. The 
percentage CCCERA can increase your benefit 
is determined by the law that applies to your 
retirement tier.

The COLA helps maintain the value of pension 
payments in terms of purchasing power. If the 
annual cost of living goes up, retirees see an 
increase in their benefit. However, if the cost of 
living goes down, the COLA may decrease your 
benefit payment. The cost-of-living factor used 
by CCCERA is determined by comparing the 
December CPI for the San Francisco-Oakland-
Hayward area over the past two years (2020 and 
2019), and rounding the change to the nearest 
one-half of one percent.

2021 COLA Adjustments

Retirement Tier COLA
Tier 11

Tier 31 (Service Retirement Only)1

Tier 41 (3% Maximum (Max.) COLA)1

Tier 51  (Service Retirement Only with 3% Max. COLA)
Safety Tier A1

Safety Tier D1

For the above tiers, if you:
• Retired on or before 4/1/1982 to 3/31/2019
• Retired 4/1/2019 to 3/31/2021

3.0% 
2.0%

Tier 22

Tier 32 (Disability Retirement Only)
Tier 52 (Disability Retirement Only with 4% Max. COLA)

2.0% 
2.0% 
2.0% 

Tier 43 (2% Max. COLA)
Tier 53 (2% Max. COLA)
Safety Tier C3

Safety Tier E3

2.0%
2.0%
2.0%
2.0%

COLA provisions in CERL are determined by the following Government 
Codes: 1Gov. Code 31870.1; 2Gov. Code 31870.3; 3Gov. Code 31870.

Estimate your 2021 monthly retirement benefit

1 Enter your most recent monthly 
gross amount. Find this amount on 
your latest pay advice (see example, 
below).

$                                        
     
Example:        
$       1,100                                   

2 Enter the decimal form of your COLA 
percentage for 2021 (see 2021 COLA 
Adjustment table, above), plus 1.00. 

For example, a 2% COLA is expressed as 
0.02. You would take that 0.02 and add 
1.00 — making the total 1.02. Likewise, 
for a 3% COLA, you would use 1.03.

                                          

     Example:         
          1.02                                          

3 Multiply line 1 by line 2 and enter 
the result here. This is your estimated 
2021 monthly retirement benefit, 
beginning May 1, 2021.

$                                        

     Example:
$       1,122                         

2



UPDATE YOUR INFORMATION
Retirees and Payees, Active Members

Beneficiary Designation

Consider updating your beneficiary after a life 
change such as a marriage or divorce: 

• Retirees can update their beneficiary by 
submitting a Retiree Change of Beneficiary 
Designation (Form 206). 

• Active members should submit a Beneficiary 
Designation Form (Form 102).

Address Changes and EFT

To update your address or electronic funds transfer: 

• Retirees and payees must submit the Member 
Mailing Address Change Form (Form 301) or 
the Electronic Funds Transfer Form (Form 209). 

• Active members must update their address 
with their employer.

Important Documents

Retirees and payees should consider mailing copies of 
important documents such as current identification 
cards and power of attorney to CCCERA, as they 
can affect the timeliness of your benefit.

Tax Forms
Please refer to your latest retirement benefit 
advice, statement or check for your tax 
withholding elections. Changes can be made at any 
time by submitting the Withholding Certificates for 
Pension Payments Form (Form 210).

Where can I find forms?

All forms are available at cccera.org/forms. While 
CCCERA’s office is closed to the public, forms may 
be submitted electronically. However, please note 
that original forms are still required to be mailed 
in (originals cannot be photocopied or submitted 
electronically). 

RETIREMENT PREPARATION
Active Members

Prospective retirees should consider these steps:

1. Visit cccera.org to use our pension calculator, 
read the benefit handbook, find information 
on reciprocity, and watch our videos.

2. Review your annual benefit statement; this 
document contains information about your 
tier, years of service and beneficiaries.

3. Streamline your retirement by mailing 
CCCERA applicable copies of marriage 
certificates, marriage dissolutions, your 
beneficiary(ies) and your own birth 
certificate or passport, Social Security cards, 
and Secretary of State Domestic Partnership 
Certificates. These documents are required 
to process your benefit or lump sum 
payment at termination.

4. Attend a (virtual) Pre-Retirement Workshop 
(see dates on the next page).

And five, call us with any questions!

CURRENT OPERATIONS
Retirees and Payees, Active Members

The CCCERA office is closed to the public at 
this time. We continue to perform all business 
functions and provide retirement services to our 
members. You may call or email the office. Staff is 
available by phone during the following hours.

Limited Phone Hours

Monday through Thursday
9 a.m. to 2 p.m.
(Closed between noon and 12:30 p.m.)

If you have any questions outside of these hours, 
please leave us a voicemail at (925) 521-3960 or 
email us at info@cccera.org. For continuing updates 
on our current operations, please visit cccera.org/
coronavirus.

3



2021 CALENDAR DATES

1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520
Phone: (925)521-3960   Fax: (925)521-3969  cccera.org

UPCOMING CLOSURE SCHEDULE

May 31
Memorial Day Holiday

VIRTUAL PRE-RETIREMENT WORKSHOPS

Due to the shelter-in-place, in-person workshops are on 
hold, and are now offered virtually. Sessions are available 
year-round to all members but the Pre-Retirement 
Workshop is particularly helpful for those planning to retire 
within five years. Visit cccera.org/retirement-counseling to see 
when the next workshops are scheduled. Reservations are 
required and fill up fast; please call CCCERA to sign up.

UPCOMING BOARD MEETINGS

February 24, 2021
March 24, 2021
April 28, 2021

2021 RETIREE PAYROLL DATES

Month Pay Date Month Pay Date
January February 1 July August 2
February March 1 August September 1
March April 1 September October 1
April May 3 October November 1
May June 1 November December 1
June July 1 December January 3

NOTICE

This newsletter is intended to provide members with general 
information about the benefits available through CCCERA, but 
it does not describe every plan provision in detail. CCCERA is 
governed by the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 (CERL, 
Government Code Section 31450 et. seq.) and the California 
Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA). The laws 
governing public retirement systems are complex. If conflict arises 
between this newsletter and the law, the law shall govern.

March 10, 2021
April 14, 2021
May 5, 2021

NEED A DIFFERENT LANGUAGE?

If you are interested in receiving this newsletter in a 
different language, please email info@cccera.org.

Presorted Standard
U.S. Postage 

PAID
OAKLAND, CA
Permit No. 3729



 April 14, 2021 
Agenda Item 16B 

 

 

 
CONTRA COSTA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

PENDING PROPOSALS – April 14, 2021 
 
 
 
 

LAFCO APPLICATION RECEIVED STATUS 

   

LAFCO No. 16-06 - Tassajara Parks Project: proposed 
annexations to CCCSD and EBMUD of 30+ acres located east of 
the City of San Ramon and the Town of Danville 

May 2016 Currently 
incomplete 

   

LAFCO No. 16-07 -Tassajara Parks Project: proposed SOI 
expansions to CCCSD and EBMUD of 30+ acres located east of 
the City of San Ramon and the Town of Danville    

May 2016 Currently 
incomplete  

   

LAFCO 20-07 – Laurel Place ll, Subdivision 9389 – proposed 
annexation to City of Concord of 3.58+ acres located at Myrtle 
Drive and Bailey Road    

August 6, 2020 Under review 

   

LAFCO 21-01 – City of Concord Out of Agency Service (1974 
Ayers Road)  

March 5, 2021 Under review 

   

LAFCO 21-02 – Byron-Bethany Irrigation District (BBID) – 
Lawrence Annexation – proposed annexation to BBID of 92.8+ 
acres 

March 31, 
2021 

Under review 

   

 



East Bay Times 

Developer who wants to build in south 

Antioch sues to toss Measure T  

Environmentalists say city should honor growth-control 

measure approved by 79% of voters 

ANTIOCH, CA – MARCH 08: A portion of the Sand Creek Focus Area is seen from this drone view near Empire 

Mine and Mesa Ridge Roads in Antioch, Calif., on Monday, March 8, 2021. Development is being proposed in the 

area. (Jane Tyska/Bay Area News Group)  

By Judith Prieve | jprieve@bayareanewsgroup.com | Bay Area News Group 

PUBLISHED: March 19, 2021 at 2:50 p.m. | UPDATED: March 20, 2021 at 3:46 a.m. 

ANTIOCH — A growth-control ballot measure that voters overwhelmingly approved in 

November to limit development in the city’s southernmost border will be challenged in court. 

Oak Hill Park LLC has filed a lawsuit in Contra Costa County Superior Court contending 

Measure T is illegal because it reduces the number of homes allowed, thereby violating state 

Senate Bill 330. That bill, also known as the Housing Crisis Act of 2019, aims to fight the state’s 

housing crisis by restricting local governments’ authority to block residential developments 

through Jan. 1,2025. 

April 14, 2021
Agenda Item 16 C

https://www.eastbaytimes.com/author/judith-prieve/
mailto:jprieve@bayareanewsgroup.com


Measure T, also known as Let Antioch Voters Decide, was passed by 79% of the city’s voters. It 

seeks to preserve open space, ridges, hills, streams and wildlife habitat at Antioch’s southern 

border and to preserve the city’s urban limit line so growth cannot occur beyond it. 

Measure T limits development on about 1,850 acres in the Sand Creek Focus Area from Deer 

Valley Road west to Black Diamond Mines Regional Park. Endorsed by the City Council in 

2018, the measure reduces the number of homes allowed in that area from 4,000 to 2,100. It also 

restricts development in Oak Hill Park’s southwestern, 418-acre area that now can only be used 

for rural and open space purposes. 

“We knew there would be a challenge (to Measure T), but we knew politically we’d be in a 

better position if we had had clear mandate, and 79 percent (approval) is a pretty clear mandate,” 

Save Mount Diablo conservation director Seth Adams said about the ballot measure. 

Save Mount Diablo, which has argued that the Sand Creek Focus Area contains “the prettiest 

three miles in Antioch” and is a rare plant and animal habitat, has fought for decades to preserve 

the land. 

“We qualified our initiative (Measure T) before SB 330 was passed,” Adams said, noting the 

new state bill has not been challenged much in court yet. 

Oak Hill Park representatives would not comment, saying through their attorney, Kevin Collins 

of Buchalter APC, they “do not comment on current litigation.” 

In its suit, Oak Hill Park said Measure T violates SB 330 because “the city cannot modify its 

land-use regulations in a way that would lessen or prohibit housing development.” 

Signed into law a month before the Nov. 3 election, SB 330 significantly limits cities and 

counties’ powers to enact ordinances or policies that hinder housing projects. 

Oak Hill Park contends the bill effectively locks in all housing policies and zoning and planning 

regulations that were in effect on Jan. 1, 2018. “Any downsizing of land designated for 

residential uses below what was effective on that date is illegal,” the developer’s suit contends. 

Because Measure T limits development, it amounts to “an unlawful taking of property without 

just compensation,” according to the suit. 

Before Measure T passed, Oak Hill Park had filed a pre-application with the city for 370 senior 

and executive homes, and attorneys argue those should still be allowed because they comply 

with the city’s planning regulations at the time. 

The lawsuit further asks the city of Antioch to nullify Measure T, saying “there is no possible 

way of preserving any portion” of the initiative because “its sole purpose is to restrict 

development in the city and redesignate land available for residential development as open space 

in the western portion of the Focus Area.” 



 
Measure T locks in Antioch’s urban limit line and reduces the total number of homes permitted in the Sand Creek 

Focus Area. Also, in the focus area west of Deer Valley Road, it restricts development to one home per 80 acres and 

impose creek and hillside protections. (Map courtesy of Save Mount Diablo.)   

The city did not respond to several requests for comment. Earlier this month, an outside counsel 

for the city sent a letter to the Department of Housing and Community Development seeking 

review of the initiative to determine whether Measure T complies with SB 330. That letter was 

included in the developer’s lawsuit. 

Save Mount Diablo attorneys sent a letter asking city officials “to defend the measure and 

implement the voters’ will,” noting it’s the city’s duty to do so. 

In that letter, attorney Robert Perlmutter also said Save Mount Diablo believes there’s ample 

land in the Sand Creek Focus Area so any reduction in development potentially caused by 

Measure T could be offset by increasing residential development east of Deer Valley Road. 

“There are a variety of things the city can do regardless of this lawsuit to enact the will of the 

voters,” Adams said. 

“We have been fighting over land in Antioch for over 20 years and there’s ups and downs along 

the way but the trends have been in our direction,” he said. 



News // Bay Area & State 

Developer Responds To City Council Rejection 

Of Proposed 252-Home Subdivision West Of 

Hwy 4 

Bay City News Service 

March 10, 2021 

 

By Chris Campos 

Bay City News Foundation 

In a rare defeat for Discovery Builders, the Brentwood City Council unanimously denied its 

proposed 252-home Bridle Gate subdivision west of state Highway 4 in a meeting Tuesday night. 

The project has been under consideration for the past 20 years and once was approved for 166 

homes in 2006 but had its permits expire before construction could begin. The proposal was 

resubmitted in 2017 with up to 510 homes proposed, along with multi-unit affordable housing and 

commercial acreage. 

Following hearings, the city's Planning Commission raised a number of objections to aspects of the 

project, including housing density, traffic, protection of Sand Creek, noise, and impact on fire 

district resources. Discovery Builders then cut the number of homes to between 252 and 310, 

eliminated the multi-unit affordable housing element and the commercial acreage. 

Local environmentalist groups, including Save Mount Diablo, filed objections to the project and a 

700-signature petition opposing the subdivision was presented to the Planning Commission. 

Juan Pablo Galvan of Save Mount Diablo said Wednesday, "We hope Brentwood takes this 

opportunity to protect its natural resources and increase the public benefits of proposed projects. 

Other cities should take note that residents are paying attention. Developers that rely on litigation, 

intimidation and threats do not make good partners." 

Galvan's group had submitted objections to the project's impact on the adjacent Sand Creek. 

Discovery Builders stated just before the council meeting that he would withdraw language in the 

proposal threatening to sue over the fire impact fees. 

Discovery Builders, guided by CEO Albert Seeno III, has a long and checkered history of 

development in Contra Costa County. The city of Pittsburg approved the company's proposed 

1,500-home Faria/Southwest Hills project in February. Brentwood has been a frequent political 

battleground over housing development with one initiative for west Brentwood expansion, Measure 

L, failing in November 2019. 

https://www.sfgate.com/news/
https://www.sfgate.com/bayarea/


At the start of the council discussion Tuesday night, Councilmember Karen Rarey told the public 

"Well, buckle your seatbelts," as the council peppered city staff and Discovery representative Louis 

Parsons with challenges to the project's impact on local school and fire district. 

"All of our schools are at capacity," Rarey said while questioning if the school site allocation would 

be sufficient to serve the added student population. Other council members questioned the current 

lack of affordable housing construction, the slim park acreage and lack of traffic improvements. The 

developer was proposing to pay in-lieu fees rather than actually build affordable single-family units 

and also proposed counting "additional dwelling units" or ADUs as affordable housing. 

Scores of residents expressed objections to the project during the public comment session, while a 

number of union representatives voiced their support. 

Summarizing a list of objections from the council, the city clerk cited lack of compatibility with the 

General Plan, violations of land use policies, lack of affordable housing, noise impacts, potential 

flooding of parks and high housing density in finalizing a motion to deny the project's application. 

After more than six hours, the council voted 5-0 to deny the project. 

On Wednesday, Parsons responded to the vote by saying, "We were surprised at the decision by the 

City Council given that city staff recommended approval of the project. We also had an agreement 

with Brentwood Unified School District to provide them a new elementary school site, but it is clear 

that the City Council did not want or support the school site being incorporated into our project. We 

are going to re-assess things and put together a revised application for review and consideration by 

the city." 

 



https://www.thepress.net/news/delta-study-examines-climate-change-e�ect/article_b266cc78-717f-11eb-
bfe7-8f3986c50688.html

EDITOR'S PICK

Delta study examines climate change e�ect
Tony Kukulich
Feb 18, 2021

Press �le photo

According to a new study by the Delta Stewardship Council, global warming could present the largest future threat to
the Delta. 

 

For the better part of the last two centuries, the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta has been

modi�ed in any number of ways to meet the demands of Californians.

But a new wide-ranging study looks at what might be the most serious Delta threat that doesn’t

come in the form of an excavator – global warming.

https://www.thepress.net/users/profile/tonyk
javascript:void(0);


“Delta Adapts: Creating a Climate Resistant Future” was released by the Delta Stewardship

Council (DSC) with an overarching goal of building climate resilience in the Delta by improving

the understanding of the region’s vulnerabilities to worldwide climate change. The DSC is

seeking public comments on the report. Comments will be accepted until March 16.

“We recognized that we needed to study the climate change e�ects on the Delta speci�cally,”

said Harriet Ross, assistant planning director for the DSC. “There have been a lot of studies that

have been done regarding climate change on a particular asset or resource or a particular part

of the Delta, but never comprehensively included the entire legal Delta and Suisun Marsh. This

is the �rst climate change study that covers this large study area. We’re looking at it more

holistically, regionally and comprehensively ”

The 199-page vulnerability assessment is the �rst of two planned phases. Work on the second

phase, adaption, is expected to begin shortly and be completed in about a year. Once

complete, it will detail strategies and tools that governments and other agencies can use to

help communities and ecosystems thrive in the face of climate change, while protecting critical

infrastructure and economic assets.

“The Delta environment is pretty important,” said Roger Mammon, an Oakley resident and

secretary of Restore the Delta. “I think the study is important, and it got a lot of young people

involved.”

An estimated 27 million Californians depend on the Delta for at least a portion of their drinking

water. Water from the Delta is the life blood for much of the state’s $3 trillion economy

including the critical agriculture sector. Given the importance of the Delta, the �ndings of the

vulnerability assessment are concerning.

“Climate change is already altering the physical environment of the Sacramento-San Joaquin

Delta and Suisun Marsh, and we will continue to experience its e�ects through hotter

temperatures, more severe wild�res and prolonged droughts,” reads the report’s executive

summary. “Over the long term, climate change in the Delta is expected to harm human health

and safety, disrupt the economy, diminish water supply availability and usability, shift

ecosystem function, compromise sensitive habitats, and increase the challenges of providing

basic services. Many of these impacts will disproportionately a�ect vulnerable communities.”

javascript:void(0);


Among the report’s key �ndings are that �ooding will continue to worsen. By 2050, 10% of the

Delta’s population and 33% of Delta land will be exposed to �ooding from a 100-year �ood

event, which is a severe type of �ood that has a 1% chance of occurring in any given year.

By 2085, signi�cant �ood exposure will increase to 21% of Delta residents and 68% of Delta

land. Additionally, the report �nds that Delta water exports will be less reliable as dry years

become drier, wet years become wetter and years with average rainfall become less frequent.

Noting the report’s �nding, Kathryn Phillips, director of Sierra Club California, questioned the

logic of the $15.9 billion Delta Conveyance Project that proposes the construction of a tunnel

through the Delta to improve the reliability of water delivery to the Central Valley and Southern

California.

“The report notes that climate change will signi�cantly reduce river �ows o� the Sierra

snowpack and into the Delta,” wrote Phillips. “In other words – our words – there won’t be

water to capture upstream of the Delta to send elsewhere in a climate changed world. Better to

invest in local and regional projects to reduce, conserve and recycle.”

The DSC also noted that there appears to be an inherent social inequity in the e�ects of climate

change in the Delta. Residents who lack a vehicle will have trouble evacuating in the event of a

major �ood, while extreme heat days will disproportionately a�ect people who work outdoors,

older adults, people with chronic illness and those experiencing homelessness.

“Climate change does not a�ect everyone equally,” Ross said. “People with resources are able

to adapt to climate change, while people without resources or with limited resources can’t

adapt as well.”

Public workshops to discuss the planning for the adaptation phase of Delta Adapts are planned

for Feb. 25. and March 1.

“Climate change is here, and it’s happening,” Ross said. “We’re going to have to understand

exactly how those impacts are going to play out in our communities. We all have a part in

addressing how we respond to those impacts. That’s our call to action, to get folks involved in

our process. Climate change is happening, no matter what. It’s going to take everyone at the

federal, state and local government, as well as the general public, to pitch in together and come

up with a strategy that works.”

javascript:void(0);


Tony Kukulich
Sta� Photographer/Writer

Don't have a facebook account? Click here to add your comment to the story.

The Delta Adapts report can be found at http://bit.ly/thepress_DeltaAdapts. Comments can be

emailed to the DSC at climatechange@deltacouncil.ca.gov. For more information on the Delta

Stewardship Council, visit https://deltacouncil.ca.gov/. Information on Restore the Delta can be

found at www.restorethedelta.org.

https://www.thepress.net/users/profile/tonyk
https://www.thepress.net/site/forms/online_services/submit_a_comment/add_your_comment/
http://bit.ly/thepress_DeltaAdapts
mailto:climatechange@deltacouncil.ca.gov
http://%20https//deltacouncil.ca.gov/
http://www.restorethedelta.org/
javascript:void(0);


Frazier Bill Would Dissolve Los Medanos 

Community Healthcare District  written by ECT Mar 9, 2021 

If approved by the legislature and signed by the Governor, a bill introduced by Assemblyman Jim Frazier 

(D-Fairfield) would dissolve the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District by February 1, 2022. 

This comes after a 2017-18 Contra Costa County Grand Jury Report recommended dissolving the district as 

it pays more in administrative costs than it does administering grants. In 2019,  Lamar Thorpe, who is now 

the Mayor of Antioch, was appointed as the Executive Director of the Los Medanos Community Healthcare 

District. According to a District agreement, he is making $96,000 per year. 

According to the 13-page Grand Jury Report: 

• The Grand Jury also found LMCHD grant program administrative expenses are high compared to the 

amount spent on For example, in FY2016-2017, LMCHD spent 40% of its revenue on grants and 

36% administering those grants, with the remaining 24% going to reserves. LMCHD’s FY2017-2018 

budget allocates 42% for grant programs, and 51% for grant program administration. 

• The FY2017-2018 budget shows a general fund revenue of $1.0 million. Of that amount,$0.5 million 

is allocated to administrative overhead, $0.4 million to community health programs, and $0.1 million 

to reserves. 

• The Grand Jury found no evidence that LMCHD collaborated with the County, non-profit hospitals, 

or other local entities to avoid duplication of services. Several organizations received grants from 

both the County and This duplication of services occurred because the County grant administrator, 

Keller Canyon Mitigation Fund, supports some of the same programs funded through LMCHD. If the 

County were to assume administration of LMCHD grant programs, there would be no duplication of 

administrative expenses because the County grant process is already in place. 

• LMCHD receives nearly all its annual revenue from property taxes. It uses this revenue to pay for 

program and wellness grants, as well as administrative expenses. 

In 2017, the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors voted 5-0 to dissolve the District with Supervisor 

Federal Glover stating the time for a health care district board of directors has come and gone. LAFCO has 

also rejected the bid for the District to stay open, however, a judge allowed it  Meanwhile, the hospital closed 

in 1994. 

The District services Antioch, Bay Point, Clayton, Concord, Pittsburg and other local communities within 

the county. 

Frazier’s bill (AB 903), which he has not responded to a request for comment, aims to put this debate to rest 

through State Law. 

AB 903 would: 

Require the dissolution of the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District, as specified. The bill would 

require the County of Contra Costa to be successor of all rights and responsibilities of the district, and 

require the county to complete a property tax transfer process to ensure the transfer of the district’s health-

related ad valorem property tax revenues to the county in order to operate the Los Medanos Area Health 

Plan Grant Program. By requiring a higher level of service from the County of Contra Costa as described 

above, the bill would impose a state-mandated local program. 

According to the Bill: 

https://eastcountytoday.net/author/burkforoakley/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB903
https://www.lmchd.org/files/d8db20007/Board+Support+Information+12-16-19.pdf
http://www.cc-courts.org/civil/docs/grandjury/2017-2018/1802/1802-LMC_Healthcare_District.pdf
http://contracostaherald.com/11081702cch/
https://www.lmchd.org/about-us
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB903


CHAPTER  11. Los Medanos Community Healthcare District Dissolution   32499.6. 

(a) The Los Medanos Community Healthcare District shall hereby be dissolved, effective February 1, 2022. 

(b) The County of Contra Costa shall be the successor to the district. All assets, rights, and responsibilities of 

the district are transferred to the county as the successor of the district. As of the effective date of dissolution, 

the county shall have ownership, possession, and control of all books, records, papers, offices, equipment, 

supplies, moneys, funds, appropriations, licenses, permits, entitlements, agreements, contracts, claims, 

judgments, land, and other assets and property, real or personal, owned or leased by, connected with the 

administration of, or held for the benefit or use of the district. Accounts payable and all other contract 

obligations shall be transferred to the county. 

(c) The county shall complete all of the following by the effective date of dissolution: 

(1) The county board of supervisors shall form a Los Medanos Health Advisory Committee that reports 

directly to the county board of supervisors and shall develop and conduct the Los Medanos Area Health Plan 

Grant Program focused on comprehensive health-related services. The county board of supervisors shall 

appoint five members to the Los Medanos Health Advisory Committee. The Los Medanos Health Advisory 

Committee shall: 

(A) Develop an area health plan that identifies major health disparities impacting residents in the district’s 

territory and identify priorities for improving health outcomes. 

(B) Solicit proposals from service providers interested in participating in the Los Medanos Area Health Plan 

Grant Program and that are capable of addressing the priorities in an adopted health plan. 

(C) Monitor the efficacy of the programs to which grants are made. 

(D) Report to the county board of supervisors not less than once a year on the execution of a health plan and 

the status of the grant program. 

(2) The county board of supervisors shall commence and complete a property tax transfer process as outlined 

in Article 5 (commencing with Section 99) of Chapter 6 of Part 0.5 of Division 1 of the Revenue and 

Taxation Code to transfer the district’s health-related ad valorem property tax revenues to the county. 

(3) The county board of supervisors shall direct the auditor-controller to establish a new special fund for the 

county treasure to track the receipt and disbursement of ad valorem property tax revenues received by the 

county pursuant the property tax transfer process. 

(4) The Los Medanos Area Health Plan Grant Program shall be funded by ad valorem property tax funds 

received by the county as a result of the dissolution of the district and any other funds made available to the 

program. 

(5) The county shall accept all real and personal property, books, records, papers, offices, equipment, 

supplies, moneys, funds, appropriations, licenses, permits, entitlements, agreements, contracts, claims, 

judgements, and all other assets and obligations transferred from the district in “as-is” condition, without any 

payment or repair obligations from the district. 

 

SEC. 2. 

The Legislature finds and declares that a special statute is necessary and that a general statute cannot be 

made applicable within the meaning of Section 16 of Article IV of the California Constitution because of the 

unique circumstances surrounding the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District. 

 

SEC. 3. 

No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant to Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California 

Constitution because a local agency or school district has the authority to levy service charges, fees, or 

assessments sufficient to pay for the program or level of service mandated by this act, within the meaning of 

Section 17556 of the Government Code. 
 



















Huge Wetlands Restoration Project Begins In 
Contra Costa County 
By John Ramos  
CBS San Francisco 
March 25, 2021 

MARTINEZ (KPIX 5) — A massive wetlands restoration project getting underway in the East Bay aims 
to fix a longtime problem in Martinez.  

On Tuesday, Contra Costa County approved an $11 million contract to restore the wetlands at the mouth 
of Walnut Creek.  It’s the largest such project in the county’s history. Officials say this time, they intend 
to do it right.  

Back in the 1960s, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers dredged and installed levees on Lower Walnut 
Creek in Martinez to create a flood-control channel deep enough for big ships to navigate.  

But there has always been one problem.  

“This area is like a sediment trap,” said Tim Jensen, Assistant Chief Engineer with the Contra Costa 
County Flood Control and Water Conservation District.  

This area where the creek empties into the Carquinez Strait collects silt from the Mt. Diablo watershed. 
Jensen told KPIX it is natural for water to spread out in flat areas, but the Army Corps kept trying to 
dredge a deep channel that would quickly fill back in.  

“It was just getting very expensive,” said Jensen. “They said, ‘We’ve got to figure out another way to do 
this.’ Uou know? Sure, it’s a good project, but there’s got to be a less environmentally damaging way to 
do it.”  

The county has now hired a company called Four M Contracting to widen out the flood control channel so 
it flows more naturally. The project will be done with state and federal funding, as well as money from 
Measure AA, a regional conservation initiative passed by Bay Area voters in 2016.  

But officials also discovered there’s lots of money available for wetland habitat creation, so the company 
will be doing that as well, increasing tidal flows, improving access for salmon and steelhead.  

A partnership with the John Muir Land Trust will eventually provide public recreation including, hiking 
and bike trails, kayaking and birdwatching.  Jensen says they’ve learned a lot about achieving flood 
control without standing in the way of nature.  

“It’s the way it should have been done back then,” he said.  “Just, the science wasn’t there and the 
understanding of how to work with nature instead of against it, basically, is what they were 
doing.  Levees, dams…all those manmade facilities don’t always do it right.”  

 



Copyright (c)2021 East Bay Times, Edition. Please review new arbitration language here. 2/11/2021

By Peter Hegarty

phegarty@bayareanewsgroup.com

ORINDA >> Orinda has chosen a new city manager.

David Biggs, who has served as Hercules city manager since June 2014, will step down at the end of March to
become Orinda's city manager April 5.

"While there is never a good time to make a change, especially when you are in a position which you enjoy and
feel that there is more you can accomplish," Biggs said in a statement, "I am happy that I can look back on a
number of significant accomplishments during my tenure in Hercules, none of which would have been possible
without a supportive and encouraging City Council and a great department head team and employees." In
Orinda, Biggs will take over from Steve Salomon, who retired Jan. 7.

Biggs previously served as assistant city manager in Redondo Beach, director of economic development in
Huntington Beach and as director of economic development and housing in Morgan Hill.

Details about his salary in Orinda and other benefits were not available.

In 2018, Salomon's pay and benefits totaled about $263,234, according to transparentcalifornia.com, a website
that provides information on compensation made to the state's public employees.

"David has been a committed and dedicated public servant and has been a key figure in assisting Hercules in
becoming more financially stable and to advancing a number of important projects including the Hercules
Regional Intermodal Transportation Center and the Bayfront development, amongst many others," Hercules
Mayor Chris Kelley said in a statement. "I enjoy working with Mr. Biggs, and on behalf of the entire City
Council, I would like to thank David for his service and wish him well in his next position." The Hercules City
Council met in a closed session Feb. 1 to begin the process to hire a new city manager.

Hercules has a population of about 25,000, and Orinda has about 20,000 people, according to the U.S. Census
Bureau.

Salomon was Orinda interim city manager after Janet Keeting, the former city manager, retired in 2017. He was
named city manager the same year. Contact Peter Hegarty at 510-748-1654.

Copyright (c)2021 East Bay Times, Edition. Please review new arbitration language here. 2/11/2021
Powered by TECNAVIA

Orinda hires a new city manager; he takes over in April

LOCAL GOVERNMENT

Thursday, 02/11/2021   Page .B05

mailto:phegarty@bayareanewsgroup.com
javascript:pl_openIFrame("http://local.digitalfirstmedia.com/common/dfm/arbitration.html");
javascript:pl_openIFrame("http://www.newsmemory.com");


Copyright (c)2021 East Bay Times, Edition. Please review new arbitration language here. 2/24/202Wednesday, 02/24/2021   Page .B01 Copyright (c)2021 East Bay Times, Edition. Please review new arbitration language here. 2/24/202Wednesday, 02/24/2021   Page .B04



Copyright (c)2021 East Bay Times, Edition. Please review new arbitration language here. 2/24/202Wednesday, 02/24/2021   Page .B01 Copyright (c)2021 East Bay Times, Edition. Please review new arbitration language here. 2/24/202Wednesday, 02/24/2021   Page .B04



Roddy Ranch Golf Course Habitat Restoration 

and Public Access Plan Public Meeting 

written by ECT Mar 9, 2021 

 

 

The East Bay Regional Park District is developing a new Regional Park at the former Roddy Ranch Golf 

Course in Antioch. The land use plan being developed will include restoration of native grassland habitat and 

recreational paths and facilities for walking, jogging, and picnicking. 

The 230-acre Roddy Ranch golf course property was acquired by the Park District in 2018 with the majority 

of funding coming from the East Contra Costa County Habitat Conservancy and the District’s Measure WW 

approved by voters in 2008. The 18-hole golf course closed in 2016. 

The Park District is holding its first public meeting as part of the planning process to restore habitat and 

design and build recreational amenities at the Roddy Ranch golf course site. The public is invited to attend 

the meeting via Zoom to learn about the planning process, property constraints, and project goals. 

The former golf course property is part of the District’s planned 3,500-acre Deer Valley Regional Park 

intended to protect habitat and expand recreational opportunities in East Contra Costa County. 

• What:  Roddy Ranch Golf Course Habitat Restoration and Public Access Plan Public Meeting 

• When: Thursday, March 11, 2021 – 6:30-7:30 P.M. 

• Meeting Link: https://ebparks.zoom.us/j/93304942688  

• Meeting ID: 933 0494 2688 

For more information about the public meeting, contact Eddie Willis, Project Planner 

at ewillis@ebparks.org. 

For more info, visit the project webpage at www.ebparks.org/about/planning/roddyranch 

 

https://eastcountytoday.net/author/burkforoakley/
https://ebparks.zoom.us/j/93304942688
mailto:ewillis@ebparks.org
http://www.ebparks.org/about/planning/roddyranch
https://eastcountytoday.net/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/Roddy-Ranch-Antioch.gif










East Bay Times 

Expect spring to be even drier out west, says 

NOAA  

 
Dry weather is expected to linger into the spring, with below-average precipitation forecast across much of the West. 

This will likely make the drought situation even worse. (CNN)  

By CNN.com 

 

PUBLISHED: March 19, 2021 at 11:39 a.m. | UPDATED: March 19, 2021 at 11:39 a.m. 

By Allison Chinchar and Jackson Dill | CNN Meteorologists 

Saturday marks the first day of astronomical spring and the outlook is grim for the western 

portion of the country, where drought conditions will persist. 

“Drier conditions in the Southwest US associated with La Niña and the failed 2020 summer 

monsoon have been contributing factors to the development and intensification of what 

represents the most significant US spring drought since 2013,” said NOAA. 

Dry weather is expected to linger into the spring, with below average precipitation forecast 

across much of the West. This will likely make the drought situation even worse. 

One of the contributing factors to the western drought has been lack of snowfall. The greatest 

area of snow drought expansion has been in the Sierra Nevada where no large storms have 

occurred since the strong atmospheric river in late January. This has left almost all of the Sierra 

https://www.eastbaytimes.com/author/cnn-com/


Nevada weather stations below the 30th percentile of snow water equivalent, and a few locations 

in the Southern Sierra are even below the 10th percentile. 

But what is bad for some can be good for others in terms of snowpack. It’s the ultimate 

dichotomy. 

That’s because unlike in some previous years, that lack of snowmelt means flooding will be less 

severe across the Plains and Midwest, but it also means lack of necessary water for the western 

states that rely on it to keep drought conditions in check. 

Drought conditions to worsen as we head into peak fire season 

Drought continues to plague about 44% of the contiguous US, mostly in the western states, and 

the spring outlook expects that drought to persist. 

Currently, the most severe drought conditions are across the western US, with 20% of the region 

in exceptional drought. This is the worst category on the National Drought Mitigation Center’s 

scale. Nearly 90% of the region overall is at least abnormally dry, and these drought conditions 

could worsen. 

Going into summer with dry conditions is also worrisome since that is when wildfire season 

begins to ramp up. 

“With warmer spring temperatures forecast and the drought deepening, fire season could start 

earlier in some places and be more severe this year,” says Chad Myers, CNN Meteorologist. 

Some major cities in the West have experienced record dry streaks within the past year, and this 

persistent drought has had an effect on the agriculture industry. 

The National Integrated Drought Information System (NIDIS) — a division of NOAA — breaks 

down crops and livestock affected by drought. As of this week, more than 150 million acres of 

crops are under drought conditions in the US. The drought’s impact on agriculture can be 

connected to higher prices due to crop losses. 

In other portions of the US, a drought may begin: “Warmer-than-average temperatures this 

spring and low soil moisture will allow drought conditions to develop and expand in the southern 

and central Great Plains as well as southern Florida,” according to NOAA. 

Meanwhile in the Northeast and mid-Atlantic regions, a wetter than normal spring is forecast. 

Some areas in this part of the country are currently experiencing dry conditions and, in some 

cases, a moderate drought but that will give way in the Northeast to a wet spring.. 

NOAA anticipates any drought in the Northeast to end thanks to the expected weather patterns 

this spring. 

There is a bright side, but not for everyone 

https://www.cnn.com/2021/03/08/weather/western-us-drought-snowpack-lack-of-rain/index.html


However, drought isn’t always about rain. Snowpack, again, is a factor. 

“In the West, winter snowpack can be more effective at relieving drought than summer 

thunderstorms. The snowpack melts slowly and doesn’t just run off the parched soil,” says 

Myers. 

As of this week, nearly 70% of western contiguous US weather stations are below median for 

snow water equivalent. 

Snow drought conditions remain focused over the southwestern US, especially across the Sierra 

Nevada and Rocky Mountains. In these areas, nearly one-third of snow telemetry stations are 

below the 30th percentile snow water equivalent. 

Lack of strong storms in the Sierra Nevada left states like California, Nevada, and Arizona at a 

huge disadvantage going into the dry season — the summer. 

While snow drought may be low across the Colorado River headwaters, they have improved 

along the Colorado and Wyoming Front Range since the beginning of the month. 

Last week’s record snow in the Rockies helped boost overall snowpack. In fact, for the Upper 

Rio Grande most basins received a 15% boost in snow water equivalent. 

While that particular basin saw enough of a surge to reach near average levels, “water supply 

forecasts still remain below average,” the West Gulf River Forecast Center says. 

For the first time since 2018, NOAA hydrologists are forecasting limited widespread flooding 

this spring. More importantly, there are no areas greater than a 50% chance of major flooding. 

“A reduced flood risk exists for the majority of the Greater Mississippi River Basin, Red River 

of the North, and Souris Basins, primarily due to abnormally dry conditions, ongoing drought, 

and a lack of snowpack and associated water equivalent.” 

Even compared to last year the flood threat for much of the Midwest and Plains regions is lower, 

which is welcome news for people in those areas of the country. The last two years have brought 

increased flood threats to much of the Mississippi and Missouri River basins, so the drier 

conditions that are forecast this year are actually considered a positive compared to what’s 

happening to the western US states. 

Spring could feel more like summer 

Temperatures this spring during the months of April, May and June are forecast to be warmer 

than normal for the large majority of the country. 

NOAA forecasts all of the contiguous US to experience temperatures above average overall with 

the exception of the Northwest. Western Washington is expected to feel below average 

https://www.drought.gov/drought-status-updates/snow-drought-current-conditions-and-impacts-west-1
http://www.cnn.com/2021/03/15/weather/denver-weather-storms-monday/index.html
https://www.weather.gov/owp/2021NHA


temperatures while the rest of the region has an equal chance of above, below or near-normal 

conditions. 

The greatest chance for above average temperatures is across the interior Southwest, which is 

also dealing with exceptional drought conditions. 

Past springs (in months April through June) have also been on the warm side. The last time the 

US experienced below average temperatures during this time period was more than a decade ago 

in 2008. 

The-CNN-Wire™ & © 2021 Cable News Network, Inc., a WarnerMedia Company. All rights reserved. 

https://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/cag/national/time-series/110/tavg/3/6/1895-2021?base_prd=true&begbaseyear=1901&endbaseyear=2000&trend=true&trend_base=10&begtrendyear=1895&endtrendyear=2021

	Notice and Agenda
	04 - January 13 2021 DRAFT Meeting Mintues
	06 - City of Martinez - Bay's Edge Subdivision 9065
	06 - 20-08 City of Martinez - Bays Edge, Subdivision - Staff Report
	EX A - 20-08 Map of Property (APNs 375-311-001 and  -003)
	Att 1 - 20-08 City of Martinez - Bay's Edge Subdivision 9065 - Draft Resolution  
	Att 3 - Letter dated January 5,  2021 from Wilson F. Wendt, Former Landowner Representative

	07 - Parks & Recreation Service MSR -SOI Updates - 2nd Round
	7- Parks & Recreation Services MSR-SOI Updates (2nd Round) - Staff Report
	Att 1 - Parks & Recreation  MSR-SOI Updates (2nd Round)  - Correspondence from Roger Chelemedos

	08 - Fiscal Year 2021-22 Proposed Budget and Work Plan
	07 - Fiscal Year 2021-22 Proposed Budget and Work Plan - Staff Report
	Att - Proposed Budget  2021-22 

	09 - Legislative Update and Position Letters
	09 - Legislative Update and Position Letters - Staff Report
	Att 1 - CALAFCO Legislative Report
	Att 2 - AB 1581 CALAFCO Omnibus Bill - Letter of Support
	Att 3 - AB 903 - Letter of Support

	10 - Call for Nominations - 2021 Special Districts Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) Board of Directors
	10 - SDRMA 2021 Board Election - Staff Report
	2021 SDRMA Nomination Packet

	11 - FY 2020-21 Third Quarter Budget Report
	11 - Third Quarter Budget Report - Fiscal Year 2020-21 - Staff Report

	12 - Acturarial Evaluation - Post Employment Medical Benefits Plan GASB 75 Supplemental Schedules Reporting Period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021
	12 - Acturarial Evaluation - Post Employment Medical Benefits Plan GASB 75 Supplemental Schedules Reporting Period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021
	Att 1 - GASB 75 2021 Report

	13 - Chang Property Reorganization - Update
	13 - Chang Property Reorganization - Annexation to the City of San Ramon, Central Contra Costa Sanitary District and East Bay Municipal Utility District and Detachment from County Service Area P- 6
	Att 2 - Correspondence dated April 6, 2021 from Steve Savage  , Vice President, Toll Brothers 

	14 - Correspondence from Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association
	CCCERA Meeting Agenda 01.13.21
	CCCERA Meeting Agenda 01.27.2021
	CCCERA Meeting agenda 02.10.2021
	CCCERA Meeting Agenda 02.24.2021
	CCCERA Meeting Agenda 03.10.2021
	CCCERA Meeting Agenda 03.24.2021
	CCCERA Spring 2021 Newsletter

	16 B - CC LAFCO Pending Proposals
	16 C - News Articles
	Antioch Measure T Challenge EBTimes 3-20-21
	City of Brentwood Rejects Development Project
	Delta study examines climate change effect _ News _ thepress.net
	Frazier Bill Would Dissolve LMCHD
	Game Changer - Public Agencies Cannot Mandate Payment of Attorney Fees Under Indemnity Agreement Without Specific Statutory Authority
	Holland & Knight - Is it Legal to Require Indemnification on Project Application or as a Condition of Approval
	Huge Wetlands Restoration Project Begins In Contra Costa County
	Orinda HIres New City Manager 2-11-21
	Pittsburg OKs plan to build 1,500 homes
	Roddy Ranch Golf Course Habitat Restoration and Public Access Plan Public Meeting
	Rising sea levels, wildfires endanger state par systems
	Western US Drought CNN-EBTimes 3-19-21

	07 - Parks & Recreation Service MSR -SOI Updates - 2nd Round.pdf
	7- Parks & Recreation Services MSR-SOI Updates (2nd Round) - Staff Report
	Att 1 - Parks & Recreation  MSR-SOI Updates (2nd Round)  - Correspondence from Roger Chelemedos


	Text1: 
	Text2: 
	Text3: 
	Text4: 
	Text5: 
	Text6: 
	Text7: 
	Text8: 
	Text9: 


